
 

 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Wednesday, 27 January 2021.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

 

     

 

 

 
 

Thursday, 4 February 2021 at 2.00 pm 
Virtual meeting - This meeting is being held remotely using 

Skype for Business 
 

 
Committee 
Members: 

 
Councillor Ian Stokes, Vice-Chairman of the Council (Chairman) 
Councillor Paul Wood (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor Gloria Johnson, Councillor Philip Knowles, Councillor Mark Whittington, 
Councillor Sue Woolley and Councillor Jacky Smith 

 
 

Agenda 

 Virtual Meeting - Joining Arrangements 
Councillors should access the meeting using the link in their calendar. 

Members of the press and public can gain access to the meeting by using the following link: 

Governance and Audit Committee - 4 February 2021 

If you are using a smartphone or tablet it may be necessary to download the Skype for Business app 

before you can enter the meeting; please allow yourself time to do this. If you are using a laptop or 

desktop computer, you should be able to access the meeting via your web browser. 

When you follow the link to the meeting you will enter a virtual lobby; you will be invited into the 

meeting from the lobby just before the meeting begins. Members of the public should not use the 

Chat function in Skype for Business. This is for use by Councillors, who will use it to indicate that 

they would like to speak. 

If you have any questions about how to join the meeting, please e-mail 

democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk. 

Governance 

and Audit 

Committee 

https://meet.southkesteven.gov.uk/d3/983SDPL8
mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk


 

 

 
1.   Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence  

   
2.   Disclosure of interests 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 

meeting. 

 

   
3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 19 November 2020 (Pages 3 - 10) 

   
4.   Minutes of the meeting held on 30 November 2020 (Pages 11 - 16) 

   
5.   Updates from previous meetings 

To note the actions from the 19 November 2020 and 30 November 2020 
meetings of the Committee. 

(Pages 17 - 19) 

   
6.   Internal Audit Progress Report 

Report from the Council’s Internal Auditors, RSM, giving a summary update on 

progress against the Internal Audit Plan 2019/20. 

(Pages 21 - 76) 

   
7.   Internal Audit Follow-up Report 

Report from the Council’s Internal Auditors, RSM. 
(Pages 77 - 92) 

   
8.   Update on Internal Audit Follow-up 1 Report 

Report from the Council’s Internal Auditors, RSM, giving an update on the 

progress of management actions agreed from the follow-up 1 report. 

(Pages 93 - 98) 

   
9.   Indicative Internal Audit Plan 2021-22 

This report will provide Governance and Audit Committee an opportunity to 

review the Indicative Internal Audit Plan 2021-22 ahead of the draft internal 

audit plan being presented at the March meeting. 

(Pages 99 - 108) 

   
10.   Strategic Risk Register 

This report is a follow up to the report presented to Governance and Audit 

Committee on 30 November 2020 and provides an update on the development 

of the Council’s Strategic Risk Register. 

(Pages 109 - 118) 

   
11.   Treasury Management Strategy 2021-22 

The Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 
2003 to produce a Treasury Management Strategy for each financial year.  
This report meets the requirements of the CIPFA code of practice on Treasury 
Management (the Code) and Government Investment Guidance. 

(Pages 119 - 143) 

   
12.   Work Programme (Pages 145 - 146) 

   
13.   Any other business, which the chairman, by reasons of special 

circumstances, decides is urgent. 
 

   



 

Meeting of the 
Governance and Audit 
Committee 
 

Thursday, 19 November 2020,   
2.00 pm 

 

Meeting held virtually, via Skype 
 

 

Committee Members 
 
Councillor Ian Stokes (Chairman) 
Councillor Paul Wood (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor Gloria Johnson 
Councillor Philip Knowles 
Councillor Jacky Smith 
Councillor Mark Whittington 
Councillor Sue Woolley 
 

Members in attendance 
 

Councillor Bob Adams 
Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor Phil Dilks 
Councillor Graham Jeal 
Councillor Virginia Moran 
Councillor Ray Wootten 

Cabinet Members 
 

Councillor Kelham Cooke (Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Dr Peter Moseley (Cabinet Member for Commercial and Operations) 
Councillor Robert Reid (Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning) 
Councillor Adam Stokes (Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources) 
 

Officers 
 

Karen Bradford (Chief Executive) 
Ken Lyon (Assistant Chief Executive) 
Richard Wyles (Interim Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer)) 
Chris Stratford (Interim Assistant Director of Housing) 
Nova Roberts (Head of Customer Experience and I.T) 
Carol Drury (Community Engagement and Policy Development Officer) 
Tracey Elliott (Governance and Risk Officer) 
Shelley Thirkell (Acting Principal Democratic Officer) 
Chris Prime (Communications Officer) 
Zena West (Scrutiny Officer (Technical Support)) 
 
Internal Audit 
 
Amjad Ali (RSM) 
Rob Barnett (RSM) 
Sheila Patel (RSM) 
 
 
 

3

Agenda Item 3



 

1. Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence 
 

Following a register of attendance, it was confirmed that all Members of the 
Committee were present.  

 

2. Disclosure of interests 
 

No interests were disclosed. 
 

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 13 August 2020 
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 13 August 2020 were proposed, seconded and 
agreed as a correct record. 

 

4. Updates from previous meeting 
 

A Member enquired if the Voids Policy for Council housing allocations was yet in 
place.   The Cabinet Member advised that it was currently being developed with 
Officers and that a draft Policy would be provided to the Committee at a future 
meeting.  The Chief Executive advised that the Voids Policy would be available by 
January 2021, it would be considered by Rural and Communities Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee. Any financial implications of the Policy would be considered by 
both the Governance and Audit Committee and the Finance, Economic Development 
and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  
 
The Interim Director of Finance provided an update on the actions detailed within the 
minutes.   

 

5. Internal Audit Progress Report 
 

The Chairman advised the Committee that consideration to Agenda item 6 (Internal 
Audit Progress Report), would be given prior to Agenda Item 5 (Internal Audit Follow-
up Report).  
 
The Committee received a report on South Kesteven District Council’s Internal Audit 
Progress 2020.  The report detailed findings from the Internal Auditors (RSM), on 
action taken to address management actions agreed.  Areas of the progress report 
covered; General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) Post Implementation Review 
and Housing Compliance – Gas, Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety.  The 
appendices to the report covered; Progress against the Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 
and Impact of findings to date 2020/21.    
 
Members enquired about GDPR and if there would be any further training available.   
The Chairman advised that there was more training scheduled and all Members would 
receive the necessary training on GDPR, as necessary.  
 

4



 

It was queried what were the terms of reference for the recently conducted audit, in 
respect of Section106 agreements. It was advised that the S106 audit was due to be 
completed shortly and it included policies and procedures, roles and responsibilities, 
use of funds and compliance of agreements.  Members requested that a draft 
progress report be provided to the Committee, as soon as it was available.  The 
Interim Director of Finance advised that the next scheduled meeting of the Committee 
was March 2021 and asked that Members consider a further meeting be added to the 
schedule in February 2021.  

 
Concerns were raised regarding housing compliance and if the Committee would 
receive further updates on the matter.  It was advised that the Management Team had 
requested a separate piece of work to be undertaken on Housing Compliance and 
provide independent assurance. The Chief Executive advised that some actions 
identified in the audit were legacy actions, that had unfortunately not been actioned.  
As the comprehensive audit had been commissioned, these would be actioned 
accordingly.  
 
It was highlighted to Members that there were changes to the Plan and requested that 
the Committee approve those changes.  It was proposed that a number of audits be 
removed from the Plan; Financial Regulations, Customer Services, Disabled Facilities 
Grants, Car Parks and Council Tax.  Further audits to be added included; Stock 
Control, Housing Compliance and I.T.  It was felt that the resource was more 
appropriately placed to those areas and that the Plan should be flexible and 
responsive to issues and areas of concern.  
 

ACTIONS 
 

1. That a meeting of The Governance and Audit Committee be set for early 
February 2021, for the Committee to consider the progress report on S106 
agreements.  

2. That the changes to the Audit Plan be implemented, as proposed. 
 

6. Internal Audit Follow-Up Report 
 

Members received the Internal Audit Follow up Report; Follow up 1 – 2020/21.  The 
report was compiled by Internal Auditors (RSM) and detailed a review of follow up 
progress made by South Kesteven District Council on previously agreed management 
actions. The audits which were considered as part of the review were:  
 

  Corporate Governance 

  Follow Up 1 

  Building Control 

  Allocations and Lettings  

  Housing Benefits  

  Customer Relationship Management  

  Complaints and Freedom of Information (FOI) 

  Health and Safety Arrangements and Reporting  

  Follow Up 2 

5



 

 

39 Management actions were considered as part of the review, 39 ‘medium’ and 16 
‘low’.  The focus was to provide assurance that all actions made previously were 
adequately implemented. The Internal Auditors’ opinion was that the Council had 
demonstrated ‘reasonable progress’.  
 
Members were advised that those actions not implemented would remain and be 
followed up until they were either implemented or superseded. The Chief Executive 
assured Members that there would be a significant improvement in completion of 
actions. 

 
Concerns were raised regarding actions that did not receive a response, by officers at 
the time of compiling the report.  A written response on those items, where no 
response was received, would be provided to the Committee.   

 

ACTION 
 

1. That a written response be provided to a future Committee meeting in 
respect of the actions that did not receive an update by Officers and 
Management.  

 

7. Housing Compliance Audit 2020 and Updated HRA 3 year rolling 
New Build Programme 

 
The Committee received a report on Housing Compliance Audit 2020 and Updated 
HRA 3 year rolling New Build Programme.  The report detailed a review of Housing 
Compliance; Gas, Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos and Fire Safety.  Upon completion 
of the Audit Key Findings were provided and management actions were agreed upon, 
actions were assigned a priority level ‘High, Medium or Low’.  
 
The Leader of the Council echoed the concerns that the report had highlighted, there 
had been systematic failings over a number of years within the Housing Service.  Re-
assurance was provided that the issues and failings would be addressed, measures 
would be put in place to ensure they were fully resolved.  The Council had been 
working closely with the Regulator, an action plan was in place, providing monthly 
update reports, which demonstrated the work which had been undertaken.  Tenants 
would be supported throughout the process, as its main priority and a dedicated team 
had been set up to engage with tenants.     
 
The Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning advised Members of the work that was 
being undertaken, which supported the recommendations of the report.  It was also 
important for the Council to also ensure that properties were built, to maintain a full 
Housing Service for South Kesteven.  
 
Members agreed that the report highlighted the significant failings of the Council but 
that it was commendable that this was brought to the attention of the Regulator. It was 
requested that Members receive an action plan, which provided timelines and what 
measures were being undertaken.  The Chief Executive advised that Members were 

6



 

to receive an Improvement Plan that captured both the outcomes of the Compliance 
Audit, but also other elements, such as the Voids Policy.  

 
A Member of the Committee queried if staff training, appraisals and a suitable 
structure were in place. Members were advised that briefings were to be made to the 
Housing Service Officers and appraisals would be implemented. A new Corporate 
Management Structure had been agreed by full Council, which would see the 
recruitment of a Director of Housing and Property.  Performance Indicators were being 
developed for the Housing Service, to capture areas such as customer satisfaction 
and engagement with tenants.   A Housing Complaints Officer would also be recruited, 
who would be a dedicated resource, to ensure any complaints were actioned and 
resolved accordingly.  

 
The Committee agreed that it was important for information to be readily available and  
evidence based.  It was important that all information be captured, to ensure failings 
would not occur again.  The Chief Executive agreed that it was important for fact-
based information to be readily available.  Suitable I.T. systems, comprehensive 
checks and robust procedures were all to be put in place, which would provide 
assurance following the audit.  
 
An advisor from the Internal Auditor suggested to the Committee that any issues 
would be documented on a regular basis to the Committee, thus providing continual 
assurance to tenants and the Committee.  A Member queried why targets that had 
been set for building of houses were not being met.  The Cabinet Member advised 
that an affordable and achievable, three-year delivery programme would be put in 
place. 
 
Following a vote by exception, the recommendations of the report were agreed.  
 

ACTION: 
 

1) That the Committee receive periodically, a copy of the Improvement Plan 
  

DECISIONS: 
 

a) That members reviewed the Compliance Audit and action plan to meet the 
recommendations indicated within the Audit plan and agreed to receive 
quarterly updates on the progress being made within the work programme. 

 
b) Members noted and provided comments on the revised 3 year rolling HRA 

New Build Housing Investment programme and support the principle that 
the Housing Service should focus on compliance priorities, utilising where 
necessary funds released through rationalising the HRA New Build 
Housing Investment Programme proposals. 

 
c) That Officers provide necessary updates to members regarding key 

performance and delivery of programmes to ensure capital investment and 
compliance objectives are achieved. 

 

7



 

d) It was noted that the Council had reported itself to the Regulator and was 
jointly working with the Regulator towards compliance as a matter of 
priority. 

 

8. Ombudsman Annual Report 
 

The Committee received the Local Government Ombudsman Annual Report 2019/20. 
Annually the report provided the Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 
Annual Review Letter.  This detailed the number and type of complaints and their 
decisions for South Kesteven District Council, for the period covering 1 April 2019 – 31 
March 2020.  Members were advised of a total of 17 complaints that were reviewed 
during that period, the decisions that were made and the areas in which they were 
related to.   
 
The report was noted by Members and following a vote by exception, the 
recommendations were agreed.  
 
DECISIONS: 
 

a) That the Governance and Audit Committee notes the contents of the Local 
Government Ombudsman Annual Review Letter for the period 1 April 2019 
to 31 March 2020 

b) That a report be presented to a future Governance and Audit Committee, 
on the complaint themes and the resulting changes to service delivery. 

 

9. Safeguarding Annual Report 2019 - 2020 
 

In accordance with Article 11 of the Constitution, Members received an Annual Report 
on Safeguarding, which provided an overview of the Council’s involvement and 
responsibilities in the safeguarding of children, young people and vulnerable adults for 
2019/20.  
 
Members requested clarification on the figures for the completion of training modules, 
for Taxi Licence holders; how many licence holders were there and how many had 
completed the training.  The Officer explained that Licence holders were not able to 
obtain that licence, or maintain upon renewal, a Taxi Licence if they had not 
completed Safeguarding Training. It was advised that figures on the number of Taxi 
Licence Holders in the District, would be provided to Members, for their information. 

 
There was concern from Members about national reporting of domestic abuse, that 
these figures had increased considerably.  It highlighted that it was important for 
Members and Officers to be equipped with the knowledge and awareness of the signs, 
where a safeguarding issue may be apparent.  It was advised that any concerns 
should be raised with the Council’s Safeguarding Officers, even at what might appear 
to be the earliest signs.  The Policy detailed signs which Members and Officers should 
be mindful of.  There was also a free e-learning programme available through the 
Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children’s Partnership and Adult Board.     
 

8



 

Following a vote by exception, the recommendations of the report were agreed.  
 
ACTION: 
 

1. The number of Taxi Licence Holders within the District be provided to 
Members.   

 

DECISIONS: 
 

a) That the Governance and Audit Committee approve:  

i. The 2019/20 Safeguarding Annual Report and note its contents 

ii.  Noted the update report in six months setting out the progress on the 
internal review, with a view to understanding how safeguarding 
practices are being embedded in the Council 

 

10. Treasury Management 2020 - 2021 Mid-year review 
 

A report was provided to the Committee on the Treasury Management Activity, Mid-
Year review 2020/21.  Regular reports were required to be provided to Members 
under regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003.  The report covered 
the Council borrowing and investment strategies, which were as follows:  
 

  A review of debt management operations  

  A review of investment operations  

  An update on the treasury management Prudential Code Indicators  

  An economic update for the first part of the 2020/21 financial year 
 
Members queried the increase of borrowing rates at the Public Works Loan Board and 
what impact that would have. The Interim Director of Finance advised that the current 
rates offered were not overly favourable, a level of risk was being factored into them, it 
was comparable to long term borrowing sources. It was noted that the Council had no 
current requirement to borrow any funds.  
 
The Committee asked if there was a possibility for the Council to extend their agreed 
level of lending to other Councils.  It was advised that the current level was £10m, 
which if appropriate, would be reviewed.  
 
A Member queried the current status of the investments within a Property Fund.  The 
Officer advised that South Kesteven could invest up to £5m of the Portfolio into 
property funds.  The current Fund was an external organisation with a diverse portfolio 
with an anticipated 5-year return.  The Council was currently receiving interest of 
approximately £25,000 per quarter return based on the level of the investment.    

 
Following a note by exception, the report was agreed to be noted.  
 
 
 
 

9



 

DECISION: 
 

a) Members note and approve the contents of the mid-year review of treasury 
management activity for 2020-21 

 

11. Work Programme 
 

The Committee received a copy of the Governance and Audit Committee Work 
Programme for 2020/21.   
 
The Chairman requested that the Work Programme be updated to only show 
forthcoming meetings and reports that were to be received on an annual basis, be 
allocated to meetings accordingly.  
 
The Interim Director of Finance advised that items that had been removed from this 
agenda; Risk Management Framework, Strategic Risk Register, Governance Review 
and Planning Review. These items would be considered at the next meeting of the 
Committee on 30 November, except for the Risk Management Framework which will 
be considered later in the year.  It was requested that the Committee schedule an 
additional meeting in February 2021 to consider the item along with other items to be 
presented by the Auditors on Housing Compliance.  
 
Members noted the reports that were to be considered at the meeting of the 
Committee on 30 November 2020. 

 

ACTIONS: 
 

1. That the Work Programme be updated to only show forthcoming meetings 
and reports that were to be received on an annual basis, be allocated to 
meetings accordingly 

 
2. That a meeting of Governance and Audit Committee be scheduled for 

February 2021 
 

12. Any other business, which the chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent. 

 
There were none.  

 

13. Close of meeting 
 

The Chairman closed the meeting at 16:17.
 

10



Meeting of the 
Governance and Audit 
Committee 
 
Monday, 30 November 2020,    
2.00 pm 

 

Meeting held virtually, via Skype 
 

 

Committee Members 
 
Councillor Ian Stokes (Chairman) 
Councillor Paul Wood (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor Gloria Johnson 
Councillor Philip Knowles 
Councillor Jacky Smith 
Councillor Mark Whittington 
 

Other Members present 
 

Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor Phil Dilks 
Councillor Penny Milnes 
 

Cabinet Members 
 

Councillor Kelham Cooke (Leader of the Council) 
Councillor Robert Reid (Cabinet Member for Housing and Planning) 
Councillor Adam Stokes (Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources) 
 

Officers 
 

Karen Bradford (Chief Executive) 
Shahin Ismail (Director of Law and Governance) 
Richard Wyles (Interim Director of Finance (Section 151 Officer)) 
Alison Hall-Wright (Head of Finance) 
Tracey Elliott (Governance and Risk Officer) 
William Tse (Special Projects and Regeneration Officer) 
Shelley Thirkell (Acting Principal Democratic Officer) 
Zena West (Scrutiny Officer (Technical Support)) 
 
External Audit 
 
Paul Harvey (Grant Thornton) 
John Gregory (Grant Thornton) 
 

 

 

14. Note from the Chairman 
 

The Chairman advised the Committee that Agenda Item 8, Planning Service External 
Review had been withdrawn.  It was explained that after consideration it was more 
appropriate for Members of the Planning Committee to consider its contents and the 
Governance & Audit Committee receive updates on the progress of recommendations.  

11

Agenda Item 4



15. Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence 
 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Sue Woolley.  
 

16. Disclosure of interests 
 

No interests were disclosed. 
 

17. Minutes of the meeting held on 19 November 2020 
 

The Chairman advised that due to the frequency of meetings, the minutes of the 
meeting held on 19 November 2020, would be included within the agenda for the next 
scheduled meeting.  

 

18. Updates from previous meeting 
 

There were none.  
 

19. External Audit - Annual Governance Report 
 

The Committee received a report from the External Auditors, Annual Governance 
Report, year-end 31 March 2020.  The report detailed the key findings and other 
matters arising from the Statutory Audit and the preparation of the Council’s financial 
statements.  The main headlines to the report were:  
 

  Covid-19 

  Financial Statements 

  Value for Money arrangements 

  Statutory Duties 
 

Members queried understated values of assets, referring to Appendix A of the report.  
External Auditors advised that the value of assets fed through into income and 
expenditure accounts, from depreciation. The Head of Finance confirmed that the 
reverse of depreciation was then allocated to the re-valuation of reserves and a written 
explanation would be provided to members.   
 
A Member requested that the cost of the audit be confirmed.  A cost of £53,485 was 
confirmed, £5,000 for CFO Insights and Housing Benefit Grant Claim and Housing 
Capital Receipts Claim was still to be charged.  
 
The Chairman thanked the representatives from Grant Thornton for providing a 
comprehensive report.   

 

ACTION: 
 

1) That the Head of Finance provide the Committee with a written explanation 
on reverse depreciation and re-evaluation of reserves.  

 

12



20. Statement of Accounts and Annual Governance Statement 
2019/20 

 
Members of the Committee received the Statement of Accounts and Annual 
Governance Statement 2019/20.  The draft Statement of Accounts were published on 
28 August 2020, the audit had subsequently been completed and required updates 
made to reflect changes identified by both the Finance Team and the External 
Auditors (Grant Thornton).  In accordance with Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2020, the Council’s final accounts were required to be 
approved by 30 November 2020. 

 
The Statement of Accounts 2019/20 were presented for approval in accordance with 
the statutory timeframe. The report covered:  

  Accounts and Audit (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020  

  Section 21(2) Local Government Act 2003 

  Revised Statement of Accounts  

  Commentary on the outcome of the audit of the Statement of Accounts 
 

The Head of Finance highlighted key changes that were made since the draft 
Accounts were provided to Members.  The changes were detailed in tables 1, 2 and 3 
of the Officer’s report.  
 
The Chairman and Members thanked the Finance Team for a detailed report and 
expressed great appreciation for the efforts made.  
 
Members queried what percentage contribution was made to Pensions.  The Head of 
Finance confirmed that the rate for 2019/20 was 16.5% and the current financial year 
was 17.5%.  
 
The recommendations to the report were proposed and seconded, following a vote by 
exception they were agreed. 
 

DECISIONS: 

a) That the 2019/20 Statement of Accounts be approved and a letter of thanks 
be submitted on behalf of the Committee to the Council’s Finance team 

b) Noted the outcome of the audit work 

c) That the letter of representation be approved by management 
 

21. Strategic Risk Register 
 

The Committee received a follow up report on the Strategic Risk Register, last 
considered by the Committee on 4, June 2020.  
 
At that meeting Members were informed that the Corporate risks would be subsumed 
within the proposed strategic risks. Appendix A to the report detailed the new draft 

13



Strategic Risk Register which included the risk driver, the effect if the risk was not 
managed and the risk appetite. There were six Strategic Risk Themes: 
 

  Enabling Community Transformation 

  Achieving Council Transformation 

  Ensuring efficient and effective internal control/compliance 

  Achieving future financial resilience 

  Creating the right culture, capacity and capability 

  Ability to be agile and shift focus in response to policy and national political 
change 

 

Members thanked the Officers for a detailed report and queried if any updates would 
be provided to the Committee.  The Interim Director of Finance advised that updates 
would be provided to the Committee, the first of which was scheduled for the next 
meeting on 4 February 2021. 

 
The recommendations to the report were proposed and seconded, following a vote by 
exception, they were agreed unanimously.  

 

DECISIONS: 
 

a) The Governance and Audit Committee noted the contents of the report and 
review and approved the draft Strategic Risk Register, attached at 
Appendix A to the report. 

b) The Governance and Audit Committee requested an updated Strategic Risk 
Register at their next meeting, to include an assessment of the 
effectiveness of controls, residual risk scores and action owners and 
implementation dates. 
 

22. Delivering Good Governance - External Review 
 

The Chief Executive presented a report to the Committee on Good Governance – 
External Review.  In September 2019, following officer and political changes, the 
Interim Chief Executive and the Leader of the Council commissioned a review of the 
Council’s Governance culture and decision-making arrangements.   

 
The review highlighted that there were a number of positive aspects and also a 
number of areas for improvement.  Since commissioning the report, a number of 
actions had been implemented, details of which were included in documents 
appended to the report.  

 
Members queried if actions relating to the Constitution were added to the Work Plan of 
the Constitution Committee.  The Chief Executive advised that Appendix B to the 
report detailed current progress on the Constitution review, with a number of critical 
areas addressed.  A report detailing an update to the Constitution would be 
considered at the next Constitution Committee on 7, December 2020.   
 

14



Concerns were raised regarding the completed review of the Constitution and how 
that would be undertaken. Officers advised that the Constitution Committee had been 
reviewing individual Articles, which would then need to be adopted at a future full 
Council meeting.  As the document was lengthy, at the next meeting of the 
Constitution Committee a way forward on how it would be considered by all members, 
would be addressed.  
 
A Member noted that the review was dated December 2019 and queried why this had 
only now been provided to the Committee. Officers advised that the report had been 
drafted earlier in the year, but due to the cancellations of meetings due to Covid-19 
and the Committee being required to consider more urgent work, the current meeting 
was the earliest opportunity for full consideration. 

 
The recommendations to the report were proposed and seconded, following a vote by 
exception, they were agreed unanimously.  

 

DECISIONS: 
 

a) The Governance and Audit Committee noted and accepted the contents of 
the externally commissioned review on ‘Delivering Good Governance’ 

b) That the implementation plan attached in Appendix B to the report, be 
approved, noting the progress to date and a further review of progress be 
provided in six months’ time 

c) That the implementation plan be adopted as the performance criteria for 
the Corporate Plan target to “Implement findings of the governance review 
across the Council’s assets (including companies)” 

 

23. Work Programme 
 

Members received the Committee’s proposed Work Programme for 2020/21.  It was 
requested that the Strategic Risk Register and the Planning Service External Review, 
be added to the 4 February 2021 meeting of the Committee.  

 

ACTION: 
 

1) To add the Strategic Risk Register and Planning Service External Review, 
be added to the Work Programme for consideration at the 4 February 2021 
meeting of the Committee.  

 

24. Any other business, which the chairman, by reasons of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent. 

 
There were none.  

 

25. Close of meeting 
 

The meeting closed at 15:42. 

15



This page is intentionally left blank

16



Action Sheet 
Governance and Audit Committee – 19 November 2020 

Min 
no 

Agenda item Action Assigned to Comments/Status Deadline 

5 Internal Audit 
Progress Report 

That a meeting of The Governance and 
Audit Committee be set for early 
February 2021, for the Committee to 
consider the progress report on S106 
agreements. 

Democratic Services Complete 
Meeting was arranged for 4 
February 2021. 

Jan 2021 

5 Internal Audit 
Progress Report 

That the changes to the Audit Plan be 
implemented, as proposed. 

Richard Wyles/Tracey 
Elliott 

In progress 
Stock Control audits have 
been undertaken for Street 
Scene and Repairs.  The 
Housing Compliance Follow 
Up audit is being 
undertaken w/c 15 
February and the IT audit 
w/c 8 February. 
 

Spring 2021 

6 Internal Audit 
Follow-up Report 

That a written response be provided to a 
future Committee meeting in respect of 
the actions that did not receive an 
update by Officers and Management. 

Richard Wyles/Tracey 
Elliott 

Complete 
Item 8 on agenda for 4 
February 2020. 

Feb 2021 

7 Housing Compliance 
Audit 2020 and 
Updated HRA 3 year 

That the Committee receive periodically, 
a copy of the Improvement Plan. 

Director of Housing and 
Property (vacant post) 

On-going 
This action will be 
forwarded to the Director 

N/A 
 

17

A
genda Item

 5



Min 
no 

Agenda item Action Assigned to Comments/Status Deadline 

rolling New Build 
Programme 

of Housing and Property, 
when appointed. 

9 Safeguarding Annual 
Report 2019 - 2020 

The number of Taxi Licence Holders 
within the District be provided to 
Members. 

Carol Drury Complete 
An e mail was sent to all 
members of Governance 
and Audit Committee on 
22.01.21. 

Jan 2021 

11 Work Programme That the Work Programme be updated 
to only show forthcoming meetings and 
reports that were to be received on an 
annual basis, be allocated to meetings 
accordingly 

Democratic Services Complete 
Work programme has been 
amended for 4 Feb 2021 
meeting 

Jan 2021 

11 Work Programme That a meeting of Governance and Audit 
Committee be scheduled for February 
2021 

Democratic Services Complete Jan 2021 

 

Governance and Audit Committee – 30 November 2020 

Min 
no 

Agenda item Action Assigned to Comments/Status Deadline 

19 External Audit – 
Annual Governance 
Report 

That the Head of Finance provide the 
Committee with a written explanation on 
reverse depreciation and re-evaluation 
of reserves. 

Alison Hall-Wright In progress 
Email to be circulated 
prior to the next meeting 

4 Feb 2021 

23 Work Programme To add the Strategic Risk Register and 
Planning Service External Review to the 
Work Programme for consideration at 

Democratic Services The Strategic Risk Register is to be 
considered on 4 Feb 2021. 
 

18



Min 
no 

Agenda item Action Assigned to Comments/Status Deadline 

the 4 February 2021 meeting of the 
Committee. 

The Planning Service External Review item 
is still being considered by the Planning 
Committee and will be included when a 
comprehensive update can be given.  
 

 

19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Internal Audit Progress Report 

4 February 2021 
This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed.  
To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no  
responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party. 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 1 of 56

21

A
genda Item

 6



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council : Progress Report | 2 
 

 

Contents 
 

1 Key Messages .....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................3 

2 Reports ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................4 

Appendix A – Progress against the internal audit plan 2020/2021 .......................................................................................................................................................................... 12 

Appendix B – Other matters ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 15 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 2 of 56

22



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council : Progress Report | 3 
 

 

1 Key Messages 
 

 

Since the last Governance and Audit Committee meeting, we have finalised a further six internal audit assignment reports: 

 Contracts and Procurement;  

 Business Continuity and Emergency Planning; 

 Rent Collection and Arrears,; 

 Follow Up 2; 

 Repairs – Stock Control; and  

 Section 106 Agreements.  

The Follow Up 2 report is issued as a separate agenda item and this review resulted in a ‘good progress’ opinion being made to implement 
previously agreed actions. Two reviews resulted in ‘partial assurance’ (Contracts and Procurement and Section 106 Agreements) and the Repairs 
Stock Control review has resulted in a ‘no assurance’ opinion. Further details are provided in Section 2 of this Progress Report. [To discuss and 
accept] 

 

 

We have provided an update to the Internal Audit Plan, detailing the scheduled completion dates for the remainder of the Plan. [To note] 

 

We will provide an internal audit opinion upon completion of the agreed internal audit plan. With a number of internal audits from which the Council 
can only take ‘partial’ or ‘no’ assurance, this will impact on the annual opinion (see Appendix B). [To note] 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 3 of 56

23



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council : Progress Report | 4 
 

 

 

  

2 Reports 

2.1 Summary of final reports being presented to the Governance and Audit Committee 
This section summarises the reports that have been finalised since the last Governance and Audit committee meeting. We have finalised six reports since the previous 
meeting and these are detailed below:  

Assignment  Actions agreed 

H M L 

Contracts and Procurement 

Objective of the review: 

We will focus on whether policies and procedures are being adhered to with regards to obtaining tenders and quotations, and the level of due 
diligence performed on potential new suppliers. We will also review the level of contractor performance management undertaken across the 
Council and how this results in payments being made to contractors. We will review pre, mid and post contract processes for each of the 
sampled contracts. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0 7 1 

Page 4 of 56

24



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council : Progress Report | 5 
 

 

Assignment  Actions agreed 

H M L 

 
Overall assurance rating and management actions:  

 

An overall assurance rating of partial assurance has been given for this review. We have agreed seven medium and one low priority 
management actions.  

We identified the following medium priority findings where management actions were agreed: 

 A review identified that the central contract register is not maintained up to date. Three contracts were identified that were not recorded on 
the contracts register; (Medium) 

 For the 23 contracts sampled, testing identified one case where the contract did not include clauses governing the circumstances whereby 
early termination or exit of the contract is permitted; (Medium) 

 For a sample of 23 contracts, in 13 cases, no information was provided by the named Contract Manager to confirm if contract monitoring was 
being undertaken; (Medium) 

 For a sample of 23 contracts, testing identified one instance where no information was provided to confirm that a risk assessment had been 
undertaken as required; (Medium) 

 Of the 23 contracts sampled, in one case the procurement for trade waste software totalling £5,400 was recorded on the contract register as 
having been procured, however the named Contract Manager advised that this procurement had not actually been undertaken.                             

Page 5 of 56

25



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council : Progress Report | 6 
 

 

Assignment  Actions agreed 

H M L 

On further enquiry it was established that a request for the purchase order was made, and a valid commitment for cost of the contract was 
recorded in the finance system, but we were unable to establish whether the procurement exercise had been completed; (Medium) 

 An annual Service Plan is in place with Welland Procurement. A review of the plan for 2020/21 identified that target completion dates for 
each procurement exercise have not been agreed; (Medium) 

 For the 23 contracts sampled, testing identified one case where the purchase order was raised after the invoice was received and one case 
where the purchase order / instruction for the works was issued to the successful bidder prior to the contract being signed; (Medium) 

Business Continuity and Emergency Planning 

Objective of the review: 

To review the current plan in place and the business continuity plans bespoke to Covid-19 considering whether Business Impact Assessments 
have been completed, priorities have been established and testing of the plan undertaken. 

Overall assurance rating and management actions:  

 

An overall assurance rating of substantial assurance has been given for this review. We have agreed one medium and one low priority 
management actions.  

We identified the following medium priority finding where management action was agreed: 

0 1 1 

Page 6 of 56

26



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council : Progress Report | 7 
 

 

Assignment  Actions agreed 

H M L 

 The BCPs for the six service areas reviewed have not been updated to capture: the journey from the time the lockdown was announced; the 
processes used to ensure/ maintain continuity of service by these services and the learning that has occurred.; (Medium) 

Rent Collection and Arrears 

Objective of the review: 

To provide assurance over the Council’s ability to collect and accurately account for rental income in a timely basis. We will also ensure that 
legal recovery action is initiated promptly, and enforcement procedures are adhered to. 

Overall assurance rating and management actions:  

 

An overall assurance rating of reasonable assurance has been given for this review. We have agreed three medium priority management 
actions.  

We identified the following medium priority findings where management actions were agreed: 

 Information on the Council’s website on rents is not up to date. The “Tenants Handbook – paying your rent” booklet is dated June 2015, 
information on rent free weeks refers to 2017/18 and a leaflet on Information about rent increase relates to 2015; (Medium) 

0 3 0 

Page 7 of 56

27



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council : Progress Report | 8 
 

 

Assignment  Actions agreed 

H M L 

 An up to date debt recovery policy is not in place. A Fair Collection and Debt Recovery Policy is published on the Council’s website however 
it was noted this Policy was last reviewed in March 2015; (Medium) 

 On testing a sample of 20 arrears cases, it was noted that in seven cases early arrears action could not be evidenced. The current rent 
arrears management process is reactive and a proactive and preventative approach to rent arrears is not in place; (Medium) 

Follow Up 2 

Objective of the review: 

To provide assurance on action taken to address management actions previously agreed by management. 

Overall assurance rating and management actions:  

Good Progress. 

The Follow Up 2 review consisted of 37 previously agreed management actions across six reports. We noted that the Council made good 
progress in implementing previously agreed management actions. It was noted that 23 actions had been fully implemented, two actions were 
ongoing, nine had not been implemented, one had been superseded and two were not yet due. 

Full details of the actions that have been reiterated are provided in the full report which is a separate agenda item. 

0 6 7 

Repairs – Stock Control 

Objective of the review: 

To ensure that Council stock is managed and monitored effectively and make sure there is a readily supply of stock items available to assist in 
the efficient operations of the Council. 

 
 

2 7 0 

Page 8 of 56

28



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council : Progress Report | 9 
 

 

Assignment  Actions agreed 

H M L 

 
Overall assurance rating and management actions: 

 

An overall assurance rating of no assurance has been given for this review. We have agreed two high and seven medium low priority 
management actions.  

We identified the following high and medium priority findings where management actions were agreed: 

 A stocklist spreadsheet is maintained detailing stock items and estimated stock levels. However, the stocklist spreadsheet is a live document 
that is overwritten as soon as it is updated, and a full audit trail of what stock is ordered, held and used is not maintained; (High) 

 We tested a sample of 10 void properties and could confirm in eight instances that where stock had been used, it was correctly signed out of 
store stock by the assigned operative. In the remaining two instances, no record of stock used could be located. We tested an extended 
sample of 73 repair jobs to confirm if stock used had been correctly signed out of store stock by an Operative. In 47 instances where 
materials were used, no record of stock sign out for materials used could be located; (High) 

 There is no repairs stock management policy in place; (Medium) 

 There are no stock management procedures in place; (Medium) 

 Training on stock control has not been delivered to all staff regarding the correct stock management processes; (Medium) 

 Stock takes of all repairs stock is currently not being undertaken and therefore possible variances are not being identified and accounted; 
(Medium) 

Page 9 of 56

29



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council : Progress Report | 10 
 

 

Assignment  Actions agreed 

H M L 

 There is no formal process in place for identifying excess stock which has not been used for the repairs; (Medium) 

 It was confirmed with the Repairs Manager that there is currently no formal procedure in place for the writing off of obsolete or damaged 
stock; (Medium) 

 Through discussion with the Repairs Manager it was confirmed that no additional security measures, such as van trackers, have been 
installed on Council vans; (Medium) 

Section 106 Agreements 

Objective of the review: 

To provide assurance that policies and procedures are complied with, and opportunities presented by planning applications are maximised, such 
as contributions from developers and other bodies.  

We will also review the procedures for the repayment of funds not spent, and the separation of funds for the administration and completion of 
works. 

Overall assurance rating and management actions:  

 

An overall assurance rating of partial assurance has been given for this review. We have agreed one high, one medium and three low priority 
management actions.  

1 1 3 

Page 10 of 56

30



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council : Progress Report | 11 
 

 

Assignment  Actions agreed 

H M L 

We identified the following high and medium priority findings where management actions were agreed: 

 There is no formal process by which the status, remaining balances and expiry dates of Section 106 contributions are monitored; (High) 

 There is no structured process whereby the Council are able to identify whether planning obligations have been discharged by a developer, 
and no routine information is received from other Council departments, such as the Building Control team, of the completions signed off each 
month; (Medium) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11 of 56

31



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council : Progress Report | 12 
 

 

Appendix A – Progress against the internal audit plan 2020/2021 
The current Covid-19 situation means that our clients and internal audit are working differently. We understand and recognise the organisations’ strategic / primary objectives, 
and that the developments around Covid-19 will continue to impact on all areas of the organisations’ risk profile. We will work closely with management to deliver an internal 
audit programme which remains flexible and agile to ensure it meets your needs in the current circumstances. In Appendix B we have highlighted changes to the internal audit 
plan which have been agreed with management. 

Assignment  Assurance Opinion Status  Target Governance and  Audit 
Committee  

Contracts and Procurement 

 

Final Report Completed –  to be presented at February 
meeting 

February 2021 

Business Continuity Planning 

 

Final Report Completed –  to be presented at February 
meeting 

February 2021 

Rent Collection and Arrears 

 

Final Report Completed –  to be presented at February 
meeting 

February 2021 

Follow Up 2 Good Progress Final Report Completed –  to be presented at February 
meeting 

February 2021 

Page 12 of 56

32



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council : Progress Report | 13 
 

 

Assignment  Assurance Opinion Status  Target Governance and  Audit 
Committee  

Repairs – Stock Control  

 

Final Report Completed –  to be presented at February 
meeting 

February 2021 

S106 

 

Final Report Completed –  to be presented at February 
meeting 

February 2021 

Housing Compliance – Gas, 
Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos 
and Fire Safety 

 

Final Report Completed – presented at November 
meeting  

November 2020 

Follow Up 1 Reasonable Progress Final Report Completed – presented at November 
meeting 

November 2020 

General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR) – Post 
Implementation Review 

Advisory Final Report Completed – presented at November 
meeting  

November 2020 

Street Scene – Stock Control  Advisory Review Draft Report Issued –  to be presented at the March 
meeting 

March 2021 

Page 13 of 56

33



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council : Progress Report | 14 
 

 

Assignment  Assurance Opinion Status  Target Governance and  Audit 
Committee  

Consultants and Agency 
Workers 

 Draft Report Issued –  to be presented at the March 
meeting 

March 2021 

IT – Secure Remote Working 
and Operational Resilience 

 Fieldwork scheduled –  to take place week commencing 
8 February 

March 2021 

Housing Compliance Follow Up   Fieldwork scheduled –  to take place week commencing 
15 February 

March 2021 

Project Management 
Governance 

 Fieldwork scheduled –  to take place week commencing 
22 February 

March 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 14 of 56

34



 
 

  

 

South Kesteven District Council : Progress Report | 15 
 

 

 

 

Appendix B – Other matters 

Impact of findings to date on 2020/21 Opinions 
The Governance and Audit Committee should note that the assurances given in our audit assignments are included within our Annual Report. In particular, the Committee 
should note that any negative assurance opinions will need to be noted in the annual report and may result in a qualified or negative annual opinion.  

To date we have issued nine final reports, two of which were ‘no assurance’ and two of which were ‘partial’ assurance (negative) opinions.  These will result in a qualification 
to our annual opinion. We will provide further updates as more reports are finalised.  

Changes to the internal audit plan 
There have been no changes to the internal audit plan since the last Audit and Governance committee meeting in November 2020. 

Other assurance activity 

Note Activity Overview of output 

1 Housing Benefit Grant Validation We have completed the housing benefit grant validation testing and provided the 
results to Management and the Council’s external auditors. 
This work was undertaken as a separate engagement and we do not see this as a 
conflict of interest. The work performed does not form part of the internal audit 
annual opinion. 

  

Page 15 of 56

35



 

 

rsmuk.com 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the 
weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Actions for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact.  This report, or our work, should not 
be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of 
internal controls rests with management and our work should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist.  Neither should our work be relied 
upon to identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 

Our report is prepared solely for the confidential use of South Kesteven District Council and solely for the purposes set out herein. This report should not therefore be 
regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing to acquire any rights from RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP for any purpose or in any context. Any 
third party which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on it (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk 
Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or expense of 
whatsoever nature which is caused by any person’s reliance on representations in this report. 

This report is released to you on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as otherwise permitted by agreed written terms), without 
our prior written consent. 

 

For more information contact 
Rob Barnett 
Robert.barnett@rsmuk.com 
Head of Internal Audit 
 
RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP 
Fifth Floor, Central Square, 29 Wellington Street, Leeds, LS1 4DL 
T: +44 113 285 5000 | DL: +44 7791237658 | W: www.rsmuk.com 

 
Amjad Ali 
Amjad.ali@rsmuk.com 
Senior Manager 
 
RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP 
Suite A, 7th Floor, East West Building, 2 Tollhouse Hill, Nottingham, NG1 5FS 
T: +44 115 964 4450 | DL: +44 7800 617139 | W: www.rsmuk.com 

Page 16 of 56

36



    

 
 

   2
 

 

Why we completed this audit 
With the use of secure portals for the transfer of information, and through 
electronic communication means, remote working has meant that we have 
been able to complete our audit and provide you with the assurance you 
require. It is these exceptional circumstances which mean that 100 per cent of 
our audit has been conducted remotely. Based on the information provided by 
you, we have been able to sample test.  

A review of Contracts and Procurement was undertaken at South Kesteven 
District Council as part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 
2020/21. 

The Council’s Procurement Lead, who commenced employment in September 
2019, left the Council in July 2020.  

The Council’s Contract Procedure Rules set out the principles, roles and 
processes involved in procurement at the Council and requires all 
procurements to realise value for money through the optimum combination of 
whole life costs and quality of outcome.   

In April 2019 the Council put into place an agreement with Welland 
Procurement for procurements in excess of £50,000. An annual service plan is 
agreed with Welland Procurement and for 2020/21 there are 36 procurements 
listed to be undertaken.  

Conclusion  
This review has confirmed that a control framework for undertaking 
procurement exercises and the subsequent awarding and letting of contracts 
is in place however we identified weaknesses in adherence to the controls 

 

 

    

 

and have therefore agreed seven ‘medium’ and one ‘low’ priority action with 
management. 

As part of the audit work, the 11 ‘medium’ and one ‘low’ priority management 
actions agreed as part of the 14.19/20 Procurement and Contracts audit 
undertaken in February 2020 were also followed up. Of the 12, five were 
found to be implemented, one was superseded, three management actions 
were found to be not implemented and three were found to be partially 
implemented and these are reiterated in this report and have been included in 
the key findings and detailing findings below.  For details of the five actions 
considered closed, please see Appendix A.  

Internal audit opinion: 
Taking account of the issues 
identified, the Council can 
take partial assurance that the 
controls to manage this risk 
are suitably designed and 
consistently applied. Action is 
needed to strengthen the 
control framework to manage 
the identified risk. 
 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY – CONTRACTS AND PROCUREMENT 

Page 17 of 56

37



 

3 
 

 

Key findings 
We confirmed that the following controls are operating effectively in practice: 

 

We confirmed that Financial Regulations and Contract Procedure Rules are in place. The Financial Regulations outline the overall governance and 
procurement process that is undertaken at the Council and were last subject to review in December 2019. The Contract Procedure Rules are part of 
the Constitution and the Constitution is published on the Council’s website. 

 

Testing a sample of 23 contracts established that where appropriate:  

-> The procurements were scored against a scoring matrix where both price and quality were evaluated.   

-> The award letters were issued to the successful bidder and unsuccessful letters were issued to unsuccessful bidders.   

 -> Due diligence checks were undertaken on the successful applicant.  

-> Signed contracts/ service levels agreements were in place for all contracts.  

-> No contract variations were identified.  

 

We confirmed that a Service Level Agreement is in place between Welland Procurement and South Kesteven District Council for the provision of 
procurement services for all contracts where the estimated spend is expected to be more than £50,000. The agreement was signed on 24 December 
2018, was valid for 3 years and commenced on 1 April 2019.  

 

On testing a sample of 23 contracts, no instances were noted where an Exception Form to waive Contract Procedure Rules was required to be 
completed and authorised.   

 

We established that the dedicated Contract Manager who is responsible for ensuring the contract is being delivered in line with agreed terms was 
recorded on the Contract Register.  

 

We identified the following findings where management actions were agreed: 

 

A review identified that the central contract register is not maintained up to date. Three contracts were identified that were not recorded on the 
contracts register (Medium).  

 

For the 23 contracts sampled, testing identified one case where the contract did not include clauses governing the circumstances whereby early 
termination or exit of the contract is permitted (Medium). 

Page 18 of 56

38



 

4 
 

 

 

For a sample of 23 contracts, in 13 cases, no information was provided by the named Contract Manager to confirm if contract monitoring was being 
undertaken (Medium). 

 

 

For a sample of 23 contracts, testing identified one instance where no information was provided to confirm that a risk assessment had been 
undertaken as required (Medium). 

 

Of the 23 contracts sampled, in one case the procurement for trade waste software totalling £5,400 was recorded on the contract register as having 
been procured, however the named Contract Manager advised that this procurement had not actually been undertaken. On further enquiry it was 
established that a request for the purchase order was made, and a valid commitment for cost of the contract was recorded in the finance system, but 
we were unable to establish whether the procurement exercise had been completed (Medium).   

 

An annual Service Plan is in place with Welland Procurement. A review of the plan for 2020/21 identified that target completion dates for each 
procurement exercise have not been agreed (Medium). 

 

For the 23 contracts sampled, testing identified one case where the purchase order was raised after the invoice was received and one case where the 
purchase order / instruction for the works was issued to the successful bidder prior to the contract being signed (Medium). 

 

General training on procurement has not been provided to all relevant staff (Low) . 

 

Page 19 of 56

39



 

5 
 

 

DETAILED FINDINGS AND ACTIONS 
 

This report has been prepared by exception. We have therefore only included in this section those areas of weakness in control or examples of lapses in 
control identified from our testing and not the outcome of all internal audit testing undertaken. 

Objective: A compliance audit to confirm policies and procedures are being consistently, effectively and efficiently applied: ensuring that all 
statutory responsibilities are met. 

Area: Contracts  

Control 1 
 

The Council has a Contract Register in place which is maintained up to date with details of all current 
contracts. The register is maintained by the Procurement Lead. 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

Testing a sample of 23 contracts identified that:   

a) In three cases the contracts for insurance, kennelling of stray dogs and washroom services was not recorded on contract register.   

b) In one case where 13 asset management services procurements were undertaken through a framework, it was noted that the 
contract for CS2 Limited was not listed on the Contract Register.    

If all contracts in place across the Council are not documented within the Contracts Register, there is a risk that the contracts will not be 
correctly managed and monitored.  

The Previous management action "All current contracts in place across the Council will be identified and added to the Contracts 
Register" was found to be not implemented and is being reiterated at this visit. 

Management 
Action 1 

a) All current contracts in place across the Council will be 
identified and added to the Contracts Register.  

b) Going forward the Council will ensure that all contracts are 
recorded onto the contracts register.  

Responsible Owner: 
Heads of Service 

Date: 
30 November 
2020 

Priority: 
Medium 

     
  

Page 20 of 56

40



 

6 
 

 

Objective: A compliance audit to confirm policies and procedures are being consistently, effectively and efficiently applied: ensuring that all 
statutory responsibilities are met. 

Control 2 
 

Contracts include clauses governing the circumstances whereby early termination or exit of the contract is 
permitted. 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

Testing a sample of 23 contracts identified that:   

In one case it was noted for a contract for washroom services, the Service Level Agreement did not include any exit strategies, should 
the Council needs to terminate a contract for any reason.   

If contracts do not include documented exit strategies, in the event of non-performance by the contractor, there is a risk that the Council 
may not have sufficient legal standing to terminate the contract.  

The previous management action "The Council will ensure that for all contracts documented within the Contracts Register, a signed 
contract is in place which include clauses governing the circumstances whereby early termination or exit of the contract is permitted" 
was found to partially implemented and is reiterated at this visit. 

Management 
Action 2 

Where appropriate the Council will ensure that for all contracts 
include clauses governing the circumstances whereby early 
termination or exit of the contract is permitted. 

Responsible Owner: 
Heads of Service 

Date: 
30 November 
2020 
 

Priority: 
Medium 

     
  

Page 21 of 56

41



 

7 
 

 

Objective: A compliance audit to confirm policies and procedures are being consistently, effectively and efficiently applied: ensuring that all 
statutory responsibilities are met. 

Control 3 
 

Contracts are managed and monitored by Contract Managers. Regular progress monitoring on Key 
Performance Indicators (KPI's), financial data and health and safety issues are conducted by the designated 
Contract Manager, to ensure the contract specification, budget and timetable is being met. 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

A sample of 23 contracts from the Council’s current Contract Register were selected and tested. Testing identified that:    

a)  In one case the contract listed on the contract register for Trade Waste Software totalling £5,400 was not procured (see control 5 for 
further information).    

b) In 13 cases no information was provided by the Contract Managers to confirm if contract monitoring was being undertaken.   

If contract delivery is not adequately monitored, there is a risk that the contracts may not be delivered by the contractor in line with agreed 
standards and terms. 

c) In one case the contract was for special consultancy and in another case the contract was for undertaking a staff survey, whereby the 
monitoring of contract performance will be based on the delivery of the survey.   

d) In five cases contract monitoring is undertaken.  

The previous management action "The Council will ensure adequate monitoring is undertaken of all existing contracts. Evidence will be 
maintained on file of all monitoring undertaken" was found to be not implemented and has therefore been reiterated. 

Management 
Action 3 

Where appropriate the Council will ensure adequate monitoring is 
undertaken of all existing contracts.  Evidence will be maintained 
on file of all monitoring undertaken 

Responsible Owner: 
Heads of Service 

Date: 
30 November 
2020 

Priority: 
Medium 

 
  

Page 22 of 56

42



 

8 
 

 

Objective: A compliance audit to confirm policies and procedures are being consistently, effectively and efficiently applied: ensuring that all 
statutory responsibilities are met. 

Control 4 
 

The Council completes initial and on-going contractor / supplier risk assessments for all contracts within the 
Contract Register. 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

A sample of 23 contracts from the Council’s current Contract Register were selected and tested. Testing identified that:  

a) In 15 cases the contracts had been procured through a framework agreement. Risk assessments were completed by the contractors as 
part of the process to join the framework.    

b) In two cases a risk assessment had been carried out by the Contract Manager upon awarding the contract. 

c) In four cases the procurements were by quotation and were below £50k and a risk assessment was not required to be undertaken.    

d) In one case for a procurement for £140k for the kennelling of dogs, no documentation was provided to confirm that a risk assessment 
had been undertaken.    

If risk assessments are not completed for all contracts there is a risk that all health and safety factors relevant to the contract may not 
have been considered by the Council.   

The previous management action "The Council will complete risk assessments for all contracts to ensure all relevant health and safety 
factors have been considered" was found to partially implemented and has been reiterated. 

Management 
Action 4 

Where appropriate the Council will complete risk assessments for 
all contracts to ensure all relevant health and safety factors have 
been considered. 

Responsible Owner: 
Heads of Service 

Date: 
30 November 
2020 

Priority: 
Medium 

Page 23 of 56

43



 

9 
 

 

Objective: A compliance audit to confirm policies and procedures are being consistently, effectively and efficiently applied: ensuring that all 
statutory responsibilities are met. 

Area: Procurement 

Control 5 
 

In accordance with the Contract Procedure Rules, contracts valued from £1 to £10k require a minimum of 
one written quotation. Contracts valued between £10k and £50k require a minimum of three written 
quotations.  A formal tender process is required for procurements valued between £50,000 and the Current 
Goods and Services OJEU Threshold: Supply, Service, Design Contracts at £189,330, Works contracts at 
£4,733,252 and Social and other specific services at £663,540. 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

A sample of 23 contracts from the Council’s current Contract Register were selected and tested.    

Testing identified that: 

a) In 15 cases the procurements were through a framework;  

b) In four cases the procurement was by quotation; 

c) In one case the procurement was a mini tender, whereby the competitiveness of a current supplier is market tested; 

d) In two cases the procurement was by a full tender;  

e) In one case the procurement for waste management software, with Mayrise Systems Limited, totalling £5,400 (£1,800 annually for three 
years) was recorded on the contracts register as having been procured, however the interim Head of Street Scene advised that the 
procurement had not been undertaken.  

There is a risk that the Council may not have accurate and up to date information on its procurement for decision making.   

f) It was also noted that for one of the procurements undertaken through Welland Procurement, the primary contact was not aware that 
procurement documents are maintained on the procurement folder on the server.  

There is a risk that procurement documents may not be maintained on the procurement folder and as a result key procurement 
documentation may not available or may not be found in the event of sickness absence of the member of staff leaving employment with 
the Council.   

The previous management action "All contracts will be procured in line with the Council's Contract Procedure Rules and supporting 
documentation will be maintained on file" was  found to be partially implemented. A new management action has been raised. 

Page 24 of 56

44



 

10 
 

 

Management 
Action 5 

All staff involved in the procurement process will be reminded to 
ensure that all the relevant procurement documentation is 
maintained on the procurement folder on the server. 

Responsible Owner: 
Heads of Service 
 

Date: 
30 November 
2020 
 

Priority: 
Medium 

  

Objective: A compliance audit to confirm policies and procedures are being consistently, effectively and efficiently applied: ensuring that all 
statutory responsibilities are met. 

Control 6 
 

Welland Procurement provide the Council with procurement services for all procurements and tenders in 
excess of £50,000. 
A formal Service Level Agreement is in place outlining the responsibilities of both parties and has been 
signed by both parties. 
A service plan is put into place each year and includes the procurements which the Council identified.   

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

We confirmed that a formal Service Level Agreement is in place outlining the responsibilities of both parties and has been signed by both 
parties. 
The Service Plan in place between the Council and Welland Procurement was obtained and reviewed. It was established that unlike the 
service plan for 2019/20, the service plan for 2020/21 does not include target dates for the procurement exercises to be delivered.   

On review of the Service Plan for 2020/21 it was noted that the project status was recorded as “forecast/ in progress” for seven 
procurements carried forward from 2019/2020 service plan.  

In the absence of targets being agreed for procurements there is a risk that procurements may not be undertaken on a timely basis and 
this may result in delays in the Council providing services. 

The previous management action "Procurements undertaken by Welland Procurement on behalf of the Council will be chased by the 
Council in line with the target completion dates outlined in the Service Plan Schedule" was found to be not implemented and a new 
management actions has been raised. 

Management 
Action 6 

a) Targets will be agreed with Welland Procurement.   

b) Monitoring will be undertaken by the Council to ensure targets 
agreed in the Service Plan are being met. 

Responsible Owner: 
n/a 

Date: 
n/a 

Priority: 
Medium 

Page 25 of 56

45



 

11 
 

 

Management Comment:  As the Council moves towards an 
internal arrangement this management action will need no further 
action. 

 

Objective: A compliance audit to confirm policies and procedures are being consistently, effectively and efficiently applied: ensuring that all 
statutory responsibilities are met. 

Control 7 
 

Once contracts are signed by an individual with delegated responsibility or authority to do so, purchase 
orders for the full value are created and approved on the Finance System. Once invoices are received these 
are then called-off against the overall contract value. Alternatively, individual purchase orders are created in 
advance of works if the amounts can be known. 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

On testing a sample of 23 procurements from the Council’s current Contract Register the following was noted:   

Purchase Orders and Invoices 

a) In one case, the purchase order was raised after the receipt of the invoice, despite the contract value being pre-agreed. There is a risk 
that the goods and services may be ordered without approval and also the commitment to costs are not known to the Council.    

b) In one case for a contract commencing 1 April 2020 the contract was signed by the Council on 2 September 2020 and by the contractor 
on 28 September 2020. It was however noted that a purchase order/ instruction was issued to the contractor on 24 August 2020, before 
the contract was signed. On further enquiry the Improvements Manager Improvements and Repairs (IMIR) advised that:    

 -> Due to all works being put on hold due to Covid-19 and also a change in internal processes, there was a delay in the signing of the 
contracts.    

 -> "We placed orders and obtained quotes and carried out some site visits in order to avoid any further delays so that works could start as 
soon as the contract was signed. No works were physically undertaken on site until the contract had been signed".   

There is a risk the Council may be committed to costs prior to the contractual terms being formalised. This may result in a financial cost to 
the Council in the event of the contract not being formalised.  

c) For 12 procurements , although requested, no information was provided to confirm if a purchase order was raised and if any invoices 
had been received and paid. 

Page 26 of 56

46



 

12 
 

 

Management 
Action 7 

All the relevant staff will be reminded to ensure that:   

a) A purchase order is raised and approved prior to the goods and 
services being ordered. 

b) A signed contract is in place prior to goods and services are 
ordered. 

Responsible Owner: 
Heads of Service 

Date: 
31 December 
2020 

Priority: 
Medium 

 

Objective: A compliance audit to confirm policies and procedures are being consistently, effectively and efficiently applied: ensuring that all 
statutory responsibilities are met. 

Control 8 
 

Missing Control 

Training on procurement has been provided to all the staff involved in Business Continuity planning at the 
Council.  

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

× 
- 

Findings / 
Implications 

Training on the Council’s procurement rules (including procurement methods and their associated limits) has been provided to relevant 
staff however it was noted that general procurement training has not been provided to the relevant staff. This would include procurement 
principles and best practice.   

There is a risk that the relevant staff may not be informed of activities and methods used to drive value from the procurement process. 

Management 
Action 8 

General training on procurement will be provided to all the 
relevant staff.   
Management Update:  Procurement Awareness Training was 
scheduled and has since been provided to all Heads of Service 
and relevant officers. 

Responsible Owner: 
Head of Finance 
 

Date: 
4 December 
2020 

Priority: 
Low  

 

Page 27 of 56

47



    

 
 

   2
 

 

Why we completed this audit 
With the use of secure portals for the transfer of information, and through 
electronic communication means, remote working has meant that we have 
been able to complete our audit and provide you with the assurance you 
require. It is these exceptional circumstances which mean that 100 per cent of 
our audit has been conducted remotely. Based on the information provided by 
you, we have been able to sample test.  

A review of Business Continuity and Emergency Planning was undertaken at 
South Kesteven District Council (the Council) as part of the approved internal 
audit periodic plan for 2020/21. 

The Community Resilience Lead Commercial and Operational Services and 
the Emergency Planning Officer (a shared resource) have business continuity 
and emergency planning responsibilities at the Council.  

The Heads of Service have responsibilities for business continuity planning for 
their areas and currently the responsibility for repairs business continuity 
planning sits with the Repairs Manager.  

When lockdown was announced, the Council set up an incident response 
group consisting of the ‘pink’ team and the ‘orange’ team. The Strategic 
Director – Commercial and Operations led the orange team and the pink team 
was led by Strategic Director – Growth. The pink and orange teams included 
members of the management team from the service areas / departments.    

The purpose of the group was to coordinate the Council’s collective response 
to the crisis, ensuring robustness and resilience should there be an outbreak 
amongst one of the incident teams. The incident response group enabled 
service areas to flag issues and help resolve them, formulate a coordinated 
response, ensuring that key actions were captured, monitored and achieved.  

 

 

 

A meeting structure was documented setting out for each day of the week the 
meetings to be held. 

 The Council has put a Future Waves Brief together. This document’s aim is 
“To pull together an outline approach and checklist for SKDC to use in the 
event of future waves of Covid-19”.  

On 17 March 2020 Cabinet agreed three priorities for SKDC in response to 
the Covid-19 pandemic:   

 Protect the health of our staff, members and residents. 
 Maintain our critical services. 
 Support our local businesses. 

These three priorities remains the cornerstone for future wave planning. The 
brief details what considerations and actions will be needed under each 
priority in case of a future outbreak.  

Conclusion  
Internal audit opinion: 

This review has confirmed that a control framework is in place for business 
continuity and emergency planning; however, we identified weaknesses in 
adherence to the controls and have agreed one ‘medium’ and one 'low' priority 
management actions. Further details are provided in Section 2 of this report. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY – BUSINESS CONTINUITY AND EMERGENCY 
PLANNING    

Page 28 of 56

48



    

 
 

   3
 

 

Internal audit opinion: 

Taking account of the issues 
identified, the Council can take 
substantial assurance that the 
controls upon which the Council 
relies to manage the identified 
area are suitably designed, 
consistently applied and 
operating effectively. 
 

 

Page 29 of 56

49



 

4 
 

 

Key findings 
We confirmed that the following controls are operating effectively in practice: 

 

For the six service areas reviewed: Housing; Repairs; IT; Refuse; Environment Health; and Customer Services, testing confirmed that the process of 
reviewing the Business Continuity Plans (BCP’s) for 2020 commenced in November 2019 and was completed by February 2020.   

 

It was confirmed that in all six cases business-disruptive incidents, such as office closures, ICT failures, etc. had been considered and were included in 
the Pre-Covid and Post-Covid Business Continuity Plans. The impact of specific scenarios considered and the identified mitigating actions were 
documented on the BCP’s.  

 

For the six service areas reviewed, it was confirmed that the BCP’s included responsibilities of service area’s Business Manager and the service 
area’s staffing requirements for fulfilling their business commitments.  

 

Business Impact Assessments had been carried out in all six service areas reviewed and these included criticality score, the maximum tolerable period 
of disruption  and restoration timescale and the requirement by timescale in disruption.  

 

The BCP’s included the requirements by type of resource e.g. staff, desks, networked PC’s/ laptops/ landline telephones, mobiles, fax machines, 
printers and specialist equipment. The failure of IT systems was considered in the six service areas BCP’s. 

 

Testing confirmed that interdependencies with other departments had been identified by all six service areas and had been included in their BCP’s. 
The interdependencies included identification of who the service area is dependent / reliant on; what the dependency was for example make repairs 
and get the property fit for use; a description of the impact if lost for example delay in returning the property to housing for letting and whether the 
interdependency was internal or external.   

 

Distribution lists were included in the BCP’s with a minimum of four copies being distributed to key staff. The names of the staff and their locations was 
recorded on the BCP’s. For all six service areas it was confirmed that a copy of their BCP was maintained at the CCTV department at the depot and a 
copy was also maintained on the Council’s area of Resilience Direct.   

 

Discussions held with the Heads of Services / Manager for the six service areas reviewed established that they had taken actions and processes had 
been undertaken by the service area to ensure continuity of service.  

 

It was confirmed that there was regular communications with key stakeholders including governance, staff, tenants and the public during the 
pandemic. Communications were by means of letter, social media, the Council’s website, emails, posters, leaflets, etc. 

 

An emergency communications is in place and includes the sharing of daily key messages by the Leader of the Council and Chief Executive and 
providing key updates and information on the pandemic to staff and members. 

 

 
 

Page 30 of 56

50



 

5 
 

 

 

It was confirmed that  there was partnership working within the Council and also with external agencies like the Local Resilience Forums (LRFs), the 
Police, and Lincolnshire Local Authorities. Across the UK there is a network of LRFs that co-ordinate a local multi-agency response to the crises 
(including senior representation from Councils, Police, Health and Fire). The Council is an active member of the LRF’s and was part of a co-ordinated 
response to Covid-19.  The Council remains actively engaged with the LRF, including the Strategic Co-ordinating Group and Tactical Co-ordinating 
Group.   

 

We identified the following findings where management actions were agreed: 

 

The BCPs for the six service areas reviewed have not been updated to capture: the journey from the time the lockdown was announced; the 
processes used to ensure/ maintain continuity of service by these services and the learning that has occurred. (Medium)  

 

A member of staff with business continuity responsibilities who commenced employment at the start of lockdown has not been provided business 
continuity planning training. Refresher business continuity training has also not been provided to staff with business continuity responsibilities. 
Business continuity training, awareness programs  and refresher training can have the potential to deliver significant value across the Council as an 
effective training and awareness program directly correlates to the ability to recover effectively and in a timely manner. (Low)  

 

Page 31 of 56

51



 

6 
 

 

DETAILED FINDINGS AND ACTIONS 
 

This report has been prepared by exception. We have therefore only included in this section those areas of weakness in control or examples of lapses in 
control identified from our testing and not the outcome of all internal audit testing undertaken. 

Objective: To review the current plan in place and the business continuity plans bespoke to Covid 19 considering whether Business Impact 
Assessments have been completed, priorities have been established and testing of the plan undertaken. 

Area: Contracts  

Control 
 

Robust pre and post Covid-19 plans Business Continuity Plans (BCPs) are in place for each service area / 
department.  
Included in the BCPs are the Business Impact Assessments that had were undertaken to identify those areas 
and services whose loss would have the greatest impact on the service area / department and therefore 
need to be recovered quickest. 
The BCP’s have been tested and any lessons learnt have been captured and implemented. 

Assessment: 
Design 
Compliance 

 
 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

For the following service areas / departments: Housing; Repair; IT; Refuse; Environment Health; and Customer Services a review of the 
BCP’s for 2020 confirmed that in all cases a desk top exercise had been undertaken with specific scenarios for example inadequate 
staffing levels; inability to access premises as a result of fire, flood damage and industrial action; failure of IT systems, etc.    
As part of the audit work the BCP plans for 2019 and 2020 were reviewed, discussion were held with the Heads of Service / Manager for 
each of above areas and the supporting documentation reviewed. 
On discussion,  each Head of Service / Manager explained the processes they used to ensure / maintain continuity of service during the 
lockdown and the continuing pandemic. It was however noted that the BCPs have as yet not been updated with process used to ensure / 
maintain continuity of service and the learning that has occurred.  
As the audit trial of this journey is maintained by the relevant Head of Service / Manager, however, there is a risk that in an event of 
sickness absence or the member of staff leaving employment with the Council this audit trail may not be available to the key staff. 

Management 
Action 1 

The Business Continuity Plans are due for annual review shortly 
and the processes used to ensure / maintain continuity of service 
during the pandemic will be captured in the plans. 

Responsible Owner: 
Individual Heads of Service / Managers 
with Business Continuity Planning 
responsibilities 

Date: 
31 March 2021 

Priority: 
Medium 

 

 

 

Page 32 of 56

52



 

7 
 

 

Objective: To review the current plan in place and the business continuity plans bespoke to Covid 19 considering whether Business Impact 
Assessments have been completed, priorities have been established and testing of the plan undertaken. 

Control 
 

Key individual BCP responsibilities have been assigned.  
The relevant staff have been provided with effective training on the management of business disruptive 
situations and business continuity arrangements.  

Assessment: 
Design 
Compliance 

 
 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

For the following service area/ departments: Housing; Repair; IT; Refuse; Environment Health; and Customer Services a review of the 
BCP’s for 2020 established that key responsibilities had been assigned and was documented on the BCP’s.    
For one of the areas (Repairs) the BCP for 2020 was already in place when the member of staff commenced employment with the Council 
at the start of the lockdown. It was noted that this member of staff had as yet not been provided with any training on business continuity 
planning.   
It was also noted the refresher business continuity training has not been provided to the relevant staff.  
There is a risk that effective business continuity planning may not be undertaken where training has not been provided. 

Management 
Action 2 

For new members of staff with business continuity planning 
responsibilities training on business continuity planning will be 
provided as part of their staff induction.  
All the relevant staff will be provided with refresher training on 
business continuity planning. 

Responsible Owner: 
Community Resilience - Lead 
Commercial and Operational Services 

Date: 
31 March 2021 

Priority: 
Low  

Page 33 of 56

53



    

 
 

 

 

Why we completed this audit 
With the use of secure portals for the transfer of information, and through 
electronic communication means, remote working has meant that we have 
been able to complete our audit and provide you with the assurance you 
require. It is these exceptional circumstances which mean that 100 per cent of 
our audit has been conducted remotely. Based on the information provided by 
you, we have been able to sample test.  

A review of Rent Collection and Arrears was undertaken at South Kesteven 
District Council (SKDC) as part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 
2020/21. 

Rent Setting is undertaken by the Financial Accountant. Once the rent 
increase has been calculated and checked, the Housing IT System 
Development and Support Officer - ICT Service is responsible for the 
uploading of the new rents onto Anite (the housing management system).The 
Revenues Team are responsible for producing and sending out the rent 
change letters to tenants. Rent arrears management is undertaken by Income 
Recovery Officers. 

In 2019, the Government confirmed that social housing rent will be increased 
by a maximum of the September 2019 Consumer Price Index (CPI)+1% from 
April 2020. For 2020/21 the Council applied a rent increase of 2.7% 
(Consumer Price Index inflation at September 2019 of 1.7% plus 1%).  

The Coronavirus Act 2020 (CVA 2020) received Royal Assent on 25 March 
2020 and came into force on 26 March 2020. The CVA 2020 was passed as 
an emergency measure in response to the spread of the 2019 coronavirus 
disease (COVID-19) and had significant implications for landlords and its 
tenants. It introduced the moratorium on enforcing legal proceedings on 
tenants in arrears.  

This ended on 21 September 2020 and the Council can now seek possession 
of homes consistent with its normal practice once the Council has investigated 

                                 

all other possible actions. A guide to the Rents Team – The Changes to the 
Possession Action Process was put into place on 6 November 2020 and has 
been disseminated to the relevant staff.   

The rent collection totalled £5,961,486 against a target of £6,001,384 in 
quarter one and £12,378,850 against a target £12,420,704 in quarter two. In 
respect of 2020/21, the Council issued 6,291 rent increase letters. The rent 
debit for 2020/21 is budgeted at £24,557m. The rent arrears as at November 
2020 were £1,311,003.   

Conclusion  
Internal audit opinion: 

This review has confirmed that a control framework is in place for rent 
collection and arrears; however we identified weakness in adherence to the 
controls and have agreed three ‘medium’ priority management actions. 
Further details are provided in the detailed  findings and actions section of this 
report. 

Internal audit opinion: 

Taking account of the issues 
identified, the Council can take 
reasonable assurance that the 
controls in place to manage this 
area are suitably designed and 
consistently applied. However, 
we have identified issues that 
need to be addressed in order 
to ensure that the control 
framework is effective in 
managing the identified 
objective. 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY – RENT COLLECTION AND ARREARS    

Page 34 of 56

54



 

 
 

 

Key findings 
We confirmed that the following controls are operating effectively in practice: 

 

A dedicated member of the Finance Department – the Financial Accountant (FA) is responsible for the rent setting process including maintaining an up 
to date stock listing (new builds, right to buys etc).  

 

Procedures on the setting of rent are in place. A review of the procedures established that the procedures provides guidance on the rent setting 
spreadsheet, calculating the rental income budget and maintaining the rent setting spreadsheet. The procedures are maintained by the Financial 
Accountant with the rent setting spreadsheets. 

 

As part of the year end process, a reconciliation is undertaken of the properties recorded on Anite (the housing database) and the housing stock 
spreadsheet maintained by the Financial Accountant. The FA also undertakes quarterly reconciliations to ensure that the movements in properties 
due to sales, demolitions and new build are reflected in the rent setting spreadsheet. 

 

Once the rent setting exercise is completed and checked by the FA the spreadsheet is then passed to the Income Recovery and Technical Officer and 
the IT Department for checking and uploading to Anite.  

 

A matching exercise is then undertaken by IT and the Income Recovery and Technical Officer to confirm the accuracy of the rent uploads. The rents 
on the rent setting spreadsheet (updated after adding in the service charges) are matched to the rents uploaded onto Anite. 

 

On completion of the completeness and accuracy checks of the changes to the rents, rent increase letters are produced for each of the properties. 
This is done in house by the Revenues Team and a PDF copy of the letter is maintained electronically on file. Testing confirmed that the rent increase 
letters were sent on 4 March 2020 giving the tenants the required 28 days’ notice of the rent increases. 

 

On testing of the rents set for 2020/21 it was established that the rents were increased by 2.7% in line with government guidance (Consumer Price 
Index as at September 2019 of 1.7% plus 1%).  For a sample of 20 properties testing confirmed that the rent increase had been applied accurately. 
Testing also confirmed that rent recorded onto Anite was for the property was in accordance to the rent increase spreadsheet.    

 

A review of the reconciliations spreadsheet ascertained that a weekly reconciliation is carried out by the Income Recovery and Technical Officer, of the 
rents on tenants account, rents recorded on Anite and also to the rents received by the banking hall. 

 

Statements of accounts are sent to tenants every six months. Testing a sample of 20 properties established that a statement was last issued to the 
tenants at the properties on 6th April 2020. 

 

In March 2020 a total of £33,717.39 former tenants debts were identified for write off. A report of the former tenants debts was prepared by the Income 
Co-ordinator and the report included the reason for the write off. Testing confirmed that the write off was authorised appropriately by the Income 
Recovery and Technical Officer, the Income Coordinator and Interim Director - Finance. 

 

There is regular reporting to management on the collection of rents. A reviewed confirmed that the rents performance for quarter one and quarter two 
2020/21 was published on the Council’s website. 

Page 35 of 56

55



 

 
 

 

We identified the following findings where management actions were agreed: 

 

Information on the Council’s website on rents is not up to date. The “Tenants Handbook – paying your rent” booklet is dated June 2015, information on 
rent free weeks refers to 2017/18 and a leaflet on Information about rent increase relates to 2015.  

 

An up to date debt recovery policy is not in place. A Fair Collection and Debt Recovery Policy is published on the Council’s website however it was 
noted this Policy was last reviewed in March 2015.  

 

On testing a sample of 20 arrears cases, it was noted that in seven cases early arrears action could not be evidenced. The current rent arrears 
management process is reactive and a proactive and preventative approach to rent arrears is not in place.  

Page 36 of 56

56



 

 
 

 

DETAILED FINDINGS AND ACTIONS 
 

This report has been prepared by exception. We have therefore only included in this section those areas of weakness in control or examples of lapses in 
control identified from our testing and not the outcome of all internal audit testing undertaken. 

Objective: To provide assurance over the Council’s ability to collect and accurately account for rental income in a timely basis. We will also ensure that 
legal recovery action is initiated promptly, and enforcement procedures are adhered to. 

Area: Rent Collection and Arrears 

Control 
 

Up to date information is provided to the tenants and the public on rents, rent  increases and rent payments.  
 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

The Council’s website includes a page on paying the rent and provides the methods of paying the rent.  
 
It was noted that this webpage includes:   
 
- The rent free weeks for 2017/18.  
 
- The Tenants’ handbook – paying your rent. This booklet is dated June 2015.   
 
- A  Leaflet on Information about rent increase and states “To avoid paying the new rent amount your written notice must arrive with us by 
Friday 20th March 2015 for your tenancy to be terminated on Sunday 19th April 2015”.   
 
There is a risk that tenants and the public may not be provided with the most up to date information on the rents, payments and rent 
increases.  

As good practice information published should be reviewed every three years or earlier in the event of any changes in the processes. 

Management 
Action 1 

a) The rent free weeks information, the Tenants’ handbook – 
paying your rent and the Leaflet on Information about rent 
increase will be reviewed, updated and published on the Council's 
website.     
 
b) Going forward the Council's webpage on rents will be 
maintained with the most up to date information on rents, rent 
increase and making rent payments. 

Responsible Owner: 
Senior Housing Policy and Strategy 
Officer 

Date: 
31 March 2021 

Priority: 
Medium 

 

Page 37 of 56

57



 

 
 

 

Objective: To provide assurance over the Council’s ability to collect and accurately account for rental income in a timely basis. We will also ensure that 
legal recovery action is initiated promptly, and enforcement procedures are adhered to. 

Control 
 

An up to date Income Collection Policy is in place.  
The policy is subject to regular review. 
 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

A Fair Collection and Debt recovery Policy dated March 2015 is in place.   
 
A review of the Policy established that the Policy is comprehensive and includes the policy aims; the benefits of our fair collection and debt 
recovery policy; statement of principles for our fair collection and debt recovery policy; when people get into debt; duty to collect and 
recover; other Council debts; Council tax recovery process; Council housing rent recovery procedure; making arrangements for people in 
arrears; payments dates; obtaining details; documentary evidence; monitoring payment arrangements; when payment arrangements are 
not maintained; and maintaining current instalments.    
 
A review of the Council’s website established that the Fair Collection and Debt Recovery Policy is published on the Council’s website.     
 
There is a risk that staff and the public may not be provided with the most up to date information on the Council’s debt management 
policy.  
 
As good practice policy should be reviewed every three years or earlier in the event of any changes in the processes.

Management 
Action 2 

The South Kesteven District Council Fair Collection and Debt 
Recovery Policy will be reviewed and updated.    
 
Going forward the Fair Collection and Debt recovery Policy will be 
reviewed every three years as good practice or earlier in an event 
of a change occurring. 

Responsible Owner: 
Interim Revenues and Benefits 
Manager 
 
Income Recovery and Technical Officer 

Date: 
30 June 2021 

Priority: 
Medium  

 
Objective: To provide assurance over the Council’s ability to collect and accurately account for rental income in a timely basis. We will also ensure that 
legal recovery action is initiated promptly, and enforcement procedures are adhered to. 

Control 
 

Current tenants in arrears are contacted as soon as they fall into arrears. Each month arrears reports are 
produced from Northgate and Income Recovery Officer use the reports to monitor the arrears levels and the 
cases where arrears management actions are undertaken. The reports are for: 1 week; 0-2 weeks; 2-4 
weeks; 4-8 weeks; and over 8 weeks. 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

  

Page 38 of 56

58



 

 
 

 

Findings / 
Implications 

The District is not divided into patches and all Income Recovery Support Officers can deal with any query on the arrears and undertake 
arrears management processes on any property.  
 
For the review of arrears cases, a report is produced each week and the Income Recovery Officers work their way through the report.  
 
With this process there is a risk that the current  processes used to review the current rent arrears cases are not proactive, targeted and 
preventative and are focused mainly on reactive enforcement measures and this may result in arrears building up as early preventative 
arrears actions like targeted monitoring to identify cases where arrangements have broken down, payments have been missed, direct 
debits or standing orders have bounced and where follow-up action needs to be taken to prevent small arrears becoming larger.  
 
For a sample of 20 testing identified that in seven cases early arrears actions could not be evidenced.    
 
Where early preventative arrears actions is not undertaken and on a timely basis there is a risk of the arrears increasing and the tenants 
not being able to clear the arrears. 

Management 
Action 3 

The rent arrears management process will be reviewed and 
updated to ensure that early proactive and preventative 
approaches are taken on rent arrears cases. 

Responsible Owner: 
Interim Revenues and Benefits 
Manager 
 
Income Recovery and Technical Officer 

Date: 
31 July 2021 

Priority: 
Medium  

Page 39 of 56

59



    

 
 

   2
 

 

Why we completed this audit 
With the use of secure portals for the transfer of information, and through 
electronic communication means, remote working has meant that we have 
been able to complete our audit and provide you with the assurance you 
require. It is these exceptional circumstances which mean that 100 per cent of 
our audit has been conducted remotely. Based on the information provided by 
you, we have been able to sample test.  

A review of Repairs – Stock Control was undertaken at South Kesteven 
District Council as part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 
2020/21. 

A Repairs Manager is new to post within the Repairs Department, along with 
the new Interim Head of Technical Services.  

Historic working practices have found that prior to the start of the 
implementation of the new procedures, little record of stock held, stock 
ordered, and stock used was retained meaning that there was minimal control 
over how stock was managed. A timeline has been put in place to implement 
a series of new procedures due to several control weaknesses previously 
identified.  

Whilst efforts have been made since May 2020 to implement new stock 
management procedures and processes, the Repairs Department have faced 
staffing issues and have revised normal working procedures which has 
allowed them to work throughout the Covid-19 national lockdown ensuring a 
continuity of a repairs service to tenants. This, however, has reduced the 
amount of changes they have been able to make to the stock management. 
Further implementation of new stock management procedures and processes 
is planned for the coming months to tighten the control measures in this area.  

 

Conclusion  
This review has confirmed that the Council does not have adequate controls 
for repairs - stock control in place. We identified gaps in the control framework 
and weaknesses in adherence to the controls for managing repairs stock and 
have agreed two ‘high’ and seven ‘medium’ priority management actions. 
Further details are provided in section 2 of this report.   

Internal audit opinion: 

Taking account of the issues 
identified, the Council cannot 
take assurance that the 
controls upon which the Council 
relies to manage this risk are 
suitably designed, consistently 
applied or effective. Action 
needs to be taken to ensure 
risks relating to Repairs Stock 
are effectively managed.  

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY- REPAIRS – STOCK CONTROL 

Page 40 of 56

60



 

3 
 

 

Key findings 
We confirmed that the following controls are operating effectively in practice: 

 

Buildbase is a key supplier used by the Council for procurement of materials. ID cards are issued to staff authorised to collect stock from Buildbase. 

 

Stock retained by the Council is held at the Council’s Depots. All sites are securely locked and key access is restricted to authorised staff. 
 

We identified the following findings where management actions were agreed: 

 

A stocklist spreadsheet is maintained detailing stock items and estimated stock levels. However, the stocklist spreadsheet is a live document that is 
overwritten as soon as it is updated, and a full audit trail of what stock is ordered, held and used is not maintained. (High) 

 

We tested a sample of 10 void properties and could confirm in eight instances that where stock had been used, it was correctly signed out of store 
stock by the assigned operative. In the remaining two instances, no record of stock used could be located.  
We tested an extended sample of 73 repair jobs to confirm if stock used had been correctly signed out of store stock by an Operative. In 47 instances 
where materials were used, no record of stock sign out for materials used could be located. (High) 
 

 

There is no repairs stock management policy in place. (Medium) 

 

There are no stock management procedures in place. (Medium) 

 

Training on stock control has not been delivered to all staff regarding the correct stock management processes. (Medium) 

 

Stock takes of all repairs stock is currently not being undertaken and therefore possible variances are not being identified and accounted for. 
(Medium) 

 

There is no formal process in place for identifying excess stock which has not been used for the repairs. (Medium) 

 

It was confirmed with the Repairs Manager that there is currently no formal procedure in place for the writing off of obsolete or damaged stock. 
(Medium) 

 

Through discussion with the Repairs Manager it was confirmed that no additional security measures, such as van trackers, have been installed on 
Council vans. (Medium) 

Page 41 of 56

61



 

4 
 

 

DETAILED FINDINGS AND ACTIONS 
This report has been prepared by exception. Therefore, we have included in this section, only those areas of weakness in control or examples of lapses in 
control identified from our testing and not the outcome of all internal audit testing undertaken. 

Objective: To ensure that Council stock is managed and monitored effectively and make sure there is a readily 
supply of stock items available to assist in the efficient operations of the Council.  

Control 
 

Following procurement of stock for repairs, the stock list is updated in a timely manner to show purchased 
items now in stock and available to be used. 

Assessment: 
Design 
Compliance 

 
 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

The Repairs Department currently have a stocklist spreadsheet in place detailing stock items and current stock levels. This is a live 
document which is constantly overwritten when new stock is purchased, or stock is used to complete repairs. Subsequently, this control 
was unable to be tested as materials purchased cannot be traced back to the stocklist. 
If materials cannot be traced back to the stocklist, there is a risk that not all stock will be accounted for or recorded correctly, leading to 
incorrect stock levels. 

Management 
Action 1 

A full audit trail of stock ordered and stock used will be maintained 
by the Repairs Department. 

Responsible Owner: 
Interim Head of Housing Technical 
Services 

Date: 
31 January 
2021 

Priority: 
High 

 

Objective: To ensure that Council stock is managed and monitored effectively and make sure there is a readily 
supply of stock items available to assist in the efficient operations of the Council.  

Control 
 

Stock is ordered by the Stocks Supervisor after receiving an order request via email. Orders for stock are 
placed via email or over the telephone with the supplier.   

Assessment: 
Design 
Compliance 

 
 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

A walkthrough of a sample of five material orders receipted by the Repairs Supervisor was undertaken with the Repairs Manager.  

The Council's main supplier for materials is Buildbase and once stock is ordered, the Council’s Operatives are able to collect material 
stock directly from the supplier using an authorised ID card.    

As the stocklist maintained by the Council is a live document, which is constantly overwritten, we were unable to review a full audit trail of 
the stocklist being updated as and when stock has been purchased and added to stores.    

If an accurate record of stock ordered and collected is not kept, there is a risk that accurate stock levels will not be maintained and there is 
a risk of financial loss due to excessive stock being ordered. 

Page 42 of 56

62



 

5 
 

 

Management 
Action 2 

See previous management action  Responsible Owner: 
 

Date: 
 

Priority: 
 

 

Objective: To ensure that Council stock is managed and monitored effectively and make sure there is a readily 
supply of stock items available to assist in the efficient operations of the Council.  

Control 
 

A member of the Repairs Team is responsible for the ordering and managing of stock. A spreadsheet is 
maintained detailing parts ordered and a sign out book is completed by the operative when materials are 
taken from the stores. The spreadsheet is reconciled to the sign out book on a weekly basis.  

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

Testing a sample of 10 void properties confirmed that in eight instances, stock used on the void property had been correctly signed out of 
store stock by an operative working on the property. 

In the remaining two instances, no evidence could be provided to confirm that stock had been used on the void property and that it had 
been correctly signed out by an operative.    

For a sample of 20 repair jobs there was no record of stock sign out.  

The sample was then extended by a further 20 repair jobs. It was confirmed with the Repairs Manager that in eight instances the repair 
was too early to test against stock records held by the Council as new processes only began to be implemented towards the end of May. 
In the remaining 12 instances, it was confirmed with the Repairs Manager that there was nothing logged on the stock control sign out 
sheet and therefore the stock was assumed to be van stock, but this could not be confirmed. 

The sample was then extended by a further 33 recorded repairs and in 15 instances we were unable to confirm that the stock used in the 
repair job was correctly signed out of stores as no record of sign out could be found.    

If stock used on voids and repair jobs are not correctly recorded and signed out by an operative, there is a risk that this will lead to 
inaccurate stock levels being recorded and there is a further risk of fraud and theft of materials. 

Management 
Action 3 

Stock will be correctly recorded and signed out by an operative 
when stock is used on void properties or general repair jobs. 

Responsible Owner: 
Interim Head of Housing Technical 
Services 

Date: 
31 January 
2021 

Priority: 
High 

 

Page 43 of 56

63



 

6 
 

 

Objective: To ensure that Council stock is managed and monitored effectively and make sure there is a readily 
supply of stock items available to assist in the efficient operations of the Council.  

Control 
 

Missing Control 

A Repairs Stock Control Policy is in place outlining guidance and procedures regarding the managing and 
monitoring of stock. The policy is maintained up to date and made available to all to staff. 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

× 
- 

Findings / 
Implications 

Through discussions with the Repairs Manager it was confirmed that there is currently no Repairs Stock Control Policy in place regarding 
the managing and monitoring of stock.  

The Repairs Department have been implementing a change in procedure since May 2020 and is still ongoing. The policy is in early draft 
stages and will be updated as the new procedures are implemented.   

Without a Repairs Stock Control Policy in place, there is a risk that no central guidance is being communicated to staff and this may cause 
inconsistent working practices. 

Management 
Action 4 

The Repairs Stock Control Policy will be put into place ensuring 
that guidance in regard to stock ordering, stock usage, stock 
counts and stock write offs is covered in detail and approved by 
the relevant committee. The Policy will be circulated to all staff. 

Responsible Owner: 
Interim Head of Housing Technical 
Services 

Date: 
30 April 2021 

Priority: 
Medium 

 

Objective: To ensure that Council stock is managed and monitored effectively and make sure there is a readily 
supply of stock items available to assist in the efficient operations of the Council.  

Control 
 

Missing Control 

Guidance documents are in place for the management of repairs stock clearly outlining all procedures 
regarding the management of repairs stock including guidance on stock ordering, stock usage, stock counts 
and stock write offs  

Guidance notes are maintained up to date and made accessible to all staff.  

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

× 
- 

  

Page 44 of 56

64



 

7 
 

 

Findings / 
Implications 

The Repairs Department are currently implementing new processes with regard to stock management / control and therefore, no formal 
guidance documents have been drafted and circulated amongst staff. It was confirmed with the Repairs Manager that this will be 
completed when the new processes are in place.    

We were, however, able to confirm that guidance has been issued in the form of emails to staff in relation to office processes as a result of 
Covid-19 and ensuring that access at the Council depot and stock rooms are limited due to the need to socially distance.    

If procedural guidance documents are not in place outlining the processes regarding stock management and control, there is a risk that 
this will cause inconsistent working practices amongst staff. 

Management 
Action 5 

Once the new stock processes have been agreed and 
implemented, formal guidance documents will be written and 
circulated to all staff. 

Responsible Owner: 
Interim Head of Housing Technical 
Services 

Date: 
31 March 2021 

Priority: 
Medium 

 

Objective: To ensure that Council stock is managed and monitored effectively and make sure there is a readily 
supply of stock items available to assist in the efficient operations of the Council.  

Control 
 

Missing Control 

Staff have received comprehensive training regarding the stock control and management system. Training 
has been provided on ordering stock, managing stock and keeping stock secure.  

A log of training undertaken and which staff have completed the training is retained by the Repairs Manager.  

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

× 
- 

Findings / 
Implications 

Through discussions with the Repairs Manager it was confirmed that as the new stock control procedures have not been fully 
implemented yet. Therefore formal training has not been delivered to the team.  The Repairs Manager also outlined that the department 
has been placed under further pressures due to the impact of COVID-19 and new working arrangements, which is making it difficult to get 
staff together to conduct training.  

As the new stock control processes are implemented and social distancing measures are eased, training will be delivered to all staff.    

Without delivering relevant training regarding stock management to staff, there is a risk that inconsistent working practices may exist 
amongst staff and subsequently stock will be mis-managed. 

Management 
Action 6 

Training relating to the new stock control system will be delivered 
to all staff. All training completed will be included in the Staff 
Training Matrix. 

Responsible Owner: 
Interim Head of Housing Technical 
Services 

Date: 
30 April 2021 

Priority: 
Medium 

 

Page 45 of 56

65



 

8 
 

 

Objective: To ensure that Council stock is managed and monitored effectively and make sure there is a readily 
supply of stock items available to assist in the efficient operations of the Council.  

Control 
 

Missing Control 

Regular stocktakes are undertaken to ensure that accurate stock balances are maintained, and reorder 
levels are monitored.  Variances resulting from stocktakes are investigated and accounted for. 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

× 
- 

Findings / 
Implications 

Through discussion with the Repairs Manager it was confirmed that at present no stocktakes are currently being undertaken.  

As the department are currently updating their processes on stock control they are not in a position to undertake regular stocktakes. A 
method of identifying and accounting for all stock is currently being identified and stock takes will occur once the new procedures have 
been implemented.    

If regular stock counts are not undertaken, there is a risk that Council stock will not be correctly recorded and accounted for, and there is a 
further risk that the Council will be subject to fraud and theft of materials. 

Management 
Action 7 

Stock takes of all repairs stock will be undertaken (full and blind) 
on a monthly, where variances are identified, these will be 
investigated and accounted for. 

Responsible Owner: 
Interim Head of Housing Technical 
Services 

Date: 
31 March 2021 

Priority: 
Medium 

 

Objective: To ensure that Council stock is managed and monitored effectively and make sure there is a readily 
supply of stock items available to assist in the efficient operations of the Council.  

Control 
 

Missing Control 

Processes are in place for recording and managing excess stock purchased for a repair job and for jobs that 
have been cancelled.  

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

× 
- 

Findings / 
Implications 

It was confirmed with the Repairs Manager that there is currently no formal procedures in place for the recording and managing of excess 
stock purchased or in instances where stock was purchased for a repair job that was later cancelled.  

The Repairs Team are in the process of improving their stock recording and management processes; however, at the time of audit, no 
formal processes were in place for the management of excess or unwanted stock. At present, excess stock will remain in stores or 
become part of van stock until it is used in a repair job.    

Without formal procedures in place for the recording and management of excesses stock, there is a risk that all stock will not be correctly 
accounted for and recorded and there is a further risk that the Council will be subject to fraud and theft of materials. 

Page 46 of 56

66



 

9 
 

 

Management 
Action 8 

A formal procedure will be agreed and implemented for the 
recording and managing of excess stock not used. 

Responsible Owner: 
Interim Head of Housing Technical 
Services 

Date: 
31 March 2021 

Priority: 
Medium 

 

Objective: To ensure that Council stock is managed and monitored effectively and make sure there is a readily 
supply of stock items available to assist in the efficient operations of the Council.  

Control 
 

Missing Control 

Stock write off processes are in place for stock that is damaged or obsolete. 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

× 
- 

Findings / 
Implications 

There are no formal stock write off process in place to deal with damaged and obsolete stock 

The Council have been reviewing all stock on an 'as and when' basis and have been identifying methods of utilising as much of it as 
possible. As the new stock control processes are implemented and all current stock has been reviewed, a formal procedure for writing off 
damage or obsolete stock will be agreed and implemented.    

Without formal stock write off processes in place there is a risk that stock records will be incorrect and useable stock may be written off 
unnecessarily. 

Management 
Action 9 

A formal stock write off process will be agreed and implemented. Responsible Owner: 
Interim Head of Housing Technical 
Services 

Date: 
31 March 2021 

Priority: 
Medium 

 

Objective: To ensure that Council stock is managed and monitored effectively and make sure there is a readily 
supply of stock items available to assist in the efficient operations of the Council.  

Control 
 

Missing Control 

Stock held in Council vans is managed and accounted for and security arrangements are in place where 
stock is held in vans overnight.  

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

× 
- 

Findings / 
Implications 

The Repairs Manager confirmed that there is no additional security on Council vans to protect stock other than standard vehicle door 
locks.  

Page 47 of 56

67



 

10 
 

 

We were informed by the Repairs Manager that tools used for repairs are not owned by the Council and are the property of the Operatives 
and are removed from vans overnight by Operatives. 
If additional security measures are not in place to protect stock held in Council vans, there is a risk of financial loss to the Council in case 
of thefts from vehicles. 

Management 
Action 10 

The Council will consider additional security measures for Council 
vans.  
Management Comment  

Trackers are to be fitted on all vehicles and instructions to 
Operatives to not leave any tools in Council vehicles. 

Responsible Owner: 
Interim Head of Housing Technical 
Services 

Date: 
31 December 
2020 

Priority: 
Medium 

 

Page 48 of 56

68



    

 
 

 

 

Why we completed this audit 
With the use of secure portals for the transfer of information, and through 
electronic communication means, remote working has meant that we have 
been able to complete our audit and provide you with the assurance you 
require. It is these exceptional circumstances which mean that 100 per cent of 
our audit has been conducted remotely. Based on the information provided by 
you, we have been able to sample test.  

A review of Section 106 Agreements was undertaken at South Kesteven 
District Council as part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 
2020/21. The objective of the audit was to provide assurance that policies and 
procedures governing the administration, application and management of 
Section 106 agreements are complied with, and opportunities presented by 
planning applications are maximised, such as contributions from developers 
and other bodies. We also reviewed the procedures for the repayment of 
funds not spent, and the separation of funds for the administration and 
completion of works. 

New development often creates demand for additional or improved community 
facilities and services, or affordable housing. Without meeting this demand, 
there could be a detrimental effect upon the quality of the environment and 
local amenity for existing residents. Planning Obligations, which are also 
known as Section 106 Agreements, are the mechanism that local authorities 
use to secure such measures and to ensure the enhancement of both the 
development and the wider environment. In situations where it is not possible 
to provide additional facilities or services as part of a development, a financial 
contribution will be required to be made to mitigate this, which can then be 
spent by the Council on relevant improvements to the district, within a 
predetermined timeframe. 

 

Conclusion  
This review has confirmed that the Council does not have adequate controls in 
place to manage Section 106 agreements. We identified gaps in the control 
framework and weaknesses in adherence to the controls and have agreed 
one ‘high’, one ‘medium’ and three ‘low’ priority management actions. Further 
details are provided in section 2 of this report.   

Internal audit opinion: 

Taking account of the issues 
identified, the Council can take 
partial assurance that the controls 
upon which the Council relies to 
manage this risk are suitably 
designed, consistently applied or 
effective. Action needs to be taken 
to ensure risks identified are 
effectively managed.  

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY – SECTION 106 AGREEMENT 

Page 49 of 56

69



 

 
 

 

Key findings 
We confirmed that the following controls are operating effectively in practice: 

 

The current Local Plan for the South Kesteven district was introduced in 2011, was last reviewed in January 2020 and is available on the Council's 
website. The Local Plan sets out the Authority's long-term vision and objectives for the growth and development of the district and includes details on 
how Section 106 principles and receipts will be used to further this for the provision of affordable housing and infrastructure. The outcomes of the 
review of the Local Plan in January 2020 was approved by Full Council at their meeting held on 30 January 2020. 

 

The Council also has a supplementary document specific to planning obligations (also known as Section 106 agreements). This sets out, in broad 
terms, the infrastructure which the Council will prioritise its requests, how contributions are broadly calculated and how agreements are drafted and 
monitored. 

 

Testing of a sample of 15 Section 106 agreements confirmed that the specific planning obligations detailed within the agreements are negotiated 
between by the relevant Planning Case Officer and the developer, and are subject to review by the Head of Planning, prior to being signed by a 
representative of the developer and on behalf of the Council by the Councils Solicitor, with the Council's seal attached.  

 

The Planning and Development Management team seek to identify and maximise contributions from developers. The Councils policy is to seek to 
ensure that contributions will only be sought from developments where there is a recognised need to mitigate the impact of the development proposal. 
There is no prescribed formula by which the Council determine which planning applications will be subject to a Section 106 agreement; this is based 
on the content of the Local Plan and determines by each Planning Case Officer during the pre-planning application process, however, in general, 
developments over 10 domestic dwellings would attract a Section 106 agreement, and over 5 dwellings would attract an obligation for affordable 
housing.  

 

An access database is maintained by the Planning Enforcement and Section 106 Technician to record details of all Section 106 agreements in place. 
This is used to monitor and identify any conditions agreed in Section 106 agreements to ensure they are being adhered to. 

 

Clear managerial accountability has been established in the event of any appeals, queries or issues arising in relation to Section 106 Agreements. The 
Council has a dedicated Officer responsible for the administration of Section 106 agreements, who works within the Planning team.   

 

The Council is entitled to apply legal and administration costs to the Section 106 agreements it raises. These are set using a formula as stated within 
the Planning Obligation - Supplementary Planning Document. Our sample testing of 15 agreements confirmed that all 15 contained details of the legal 
/ administration fee associated with the agreement. We confirmed to memos and copies of receipts held in the Access Database that all fees due had 
been received prior to the agreement being discharged. 

  

We identified the following findings where management actions were agreed: 

 

There is no formal process by which the status, remaining balances and expiry dates of Section 106 contributions are monitored (High). 

Page 50 of 56

70



 

 
 

 

 

There is no structured process whereby the Council are able to identify whether planning obligations have been discharged by a developer, and no 
routine information is received from other Council departments, such as the Building Control team, of the completions signed off each month 
(Medium). 

 

Roles and responsibilities of all teams involved in the development, agreement, and monitoring of Section 106 agreements, and the receipt and 
spending of contributions, are not defined (Low). 

 

The procedure notes setting out the end to end process for the development, agreement, and monitoring of Section 106 agreements, and the receipt 
and spending of contributions, require review and updating to reflect current working practices (Low).  

 

There is currently no reporting undertaken to management or to any of the Councils Committees on the status of Section 106 agreements, the benefits 
realised for the district as a result of the agreements, or the balance of any contributions received (Low). 

Page 51 of 56

71



 

 
 

 

DETAILED FINDINGS AND ACTIONS 
 

This report has been prepared by exception. Therefore, we have included in this section, only those areas of weakness in control or examples of lapses in 
control identified from our testing and not the outcome of all internal audit testing undertaken. 

 

Objective: To provide assurance that policies and procedures are complied with, and opportunities presented by planning applications are 
maximised, such as contributions from developers and other bodies. We will also review the procedures for the repayment of funds not spent, 
and the separation of funds for the administration and completion of works. 

Control 
 

Missing Control  

Roles and responsibilities are clearly defined for all departments within the Council with an involvement in the 
development or approval of Section 106 agreements, and the associated receipt and spending of any 
contributions, and monitoring of the discharging of conditions. 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

× 
- 

Findings / 
Implications 

Roles and Responsibilities 
Through review of the procedure notes available, and from discussions with staff in both Planning and Finance, we could not confirm 
whether the roles and responsibilities of all those individuals and departments involved in the development, negotiation, agreement of 
Section 106s, and the receipt, spending and monitoring of any contributions, such as Planning, Legal, Finance and teams such as 
Housing and Parks and Open Spaces, were formally identified and assigned. As such, there is a risk that contributions from developers 
may not be received as expected, or spent in line with any required timescales, and there is no internal process to identify this. 
Communication 
Furthermore, our discussions with staff in both Planning and Finance identified that there is no formal communications or meetings held to 
discuss the status of Section 106 agreements and the usage of funds.   
If the funds are not appropriately managed there is a risk that the funds will not be spent within prescribed timeframes and will have to 
returned to the relevant 

Management 
Action 1 

We will formalise the process for monitoring the receipt of Section 
106 contributions due and received, the spending of any 
contributions with conditions attached, and the balance of the 
contributions against their expiry dates. 

Responsible Owner: 
Head of Planning  
 

Date: 
30 April 2021 

Priority: 
High 

Management 
Action 2 

Clear roles and responsibilities will be defined between 
departments in relation to the receipt any spending of Section 106 
monies. 

Responsible Owner: 
Head of Planning  

Date: 
30 April 2021 

Priority: 
Low 

 

Page 52 of 56

72



 

 
 

 

Objective: To provide assurance that policies and procedures are complied with, and opportunities presented by planning applications are 
maximised, such as contributions from developers and other bodies. We will also review the procedures for the repayment of funds not spent, 
and the separation of funds for the administration and completion of works. 

Control 
 

Clauses are included within Section 106 agreements which state that the Council must re-pay funding to the 
relevant developer if the funds are not used for their allocated purpose within the prescribed time frames 
documented.   
The spending of contributions is monitored in line with these deadlines to ensure monies do not have to be 
returned to the developer. 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

Our testing of 15 Section 106 agreements confirmed that clauses were contained which specified whether any contributions due to the 
Council would be subject to repayment, and the defined deadline. Financial contributions will normally be required to be paid to the 
Council upon first occupation or when the impacts of the development that the contribution is intended to address occur, whichever is 
sooner.   
All financial contributions received by the Council are held within separate Section 106 accounts by each department, so that contributions 
to the capital programme can be easily identified.   
Repayment of balances 
Through our sample testing we identified one Section 106 agreement (S04-1463 (37), signed in 2007), whereby the developer had paid 
the Council £80,000 towards the CCTV provision in the area. However, the Access database notes show that £2,627.25 of this 
contribution was not spent. Review of the Section 106 agreement found that the balance should have been repaid back to the developer 
with interest in June 2015 (five years after the condition was triggered), however there are no records to show that this has taken place, 
and there is no internal control which would identify any outstanding balances which would require repayment to the developer.  
There is therefore a risk that contributions are not spent in line with the required deadline, and therefore require repayment back to the 
developer with interest, and the monies cannot be spent for the betterment of the district as intended. 
Financial Monitoring 
A Section 106 Monitoring spreadsheet is maintained within Finance; however this only includes agreements dating back from 2014/15, 
and it is unclear how the receipt and spending of contributions predating this are monitored. This spreadsheet is shared with the Planning 
Enforcement and Section 106 Technician to enable the Access database to be updated.    
There is a risk that contributions from older Section 106 agreements are not monitored, resulting in a loss of income to the Council. 

Management 
Action  

See management action 1 
 

Responsible Owner: 
 

Date: 
 

Priority: 
 

 

 

Page 53 of 56

73



 

 
 

 

Objective: To provide assurance that policies and procedures are complied with, and opportunities presented by planning applications are 
maximised, such as contributions from developers and other bodies. We will also review the procedures for the repayment of funds not spent, 
and the separation of funds for the administration and completion of works. 

Control 
 

Funding due dates or trigger points are clearly specified within each Section 106 Agreement, 
and accurately recorded within the Access database of Section 106 agreements. 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

Our testing of 15 Section 106 agreements confirmed that all contained conditions, or the financial contributions required, such as 
Affordable Housing contributions, or contributions for the upkeep of open spaces. These had been correctly reflected within the Access 
database.   
We confirmed with the Planning Enforcement and Section 106 Technician that the Access database is used to identify any high value, or 
older Section 106 agreements in which the contributions / conditions may have become due, to contact the developer and relevant internal 
Council departments to identify whether the agreement has been discharged and can be closed. However, this is not formal or structured, 
and no routine information is received from other Council departments, such as the Building Control team, of the completions signed off 
each month, which could be used to monitor the progress of developments and identify when contributions may be triggered.  
As such, there is a risk that conditions have been triggered which means that contributions are due to the Council which are not received, 
and the Council does not chase, resulting in loss of income to the Council. 

Management 
Action 3 

A formal process should be developed whereby 
outstanding planning obligations, condition and 
contributions are regularly reviewed and followed up with 
the developer. 

Responsible Owner: 
Head of Planning  

Date: 
30 April 2021 

Priority: 
Medium 

Page 54 of 56

74



 

 
 

 

Objective: To provide assurance that policies and procedures are complied with, and opportunities presented by planning applications are 
maximised, such as contributions from developers and other bodies. We will also review the procedures for the repayment of funds not spent, 
and the separation of funds for the administration and completion of works. 

Control 
 

Procedures notes are in place for the administration of the processes surrounding Section 106. These are 
up to date and available to all staff involved in the key stages of the process. 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

 
× 

Findings / 
Implications 

A set of internal procedure notes and guidance notes is available on the shared network folder of the SKDC Planning and Development 
teams. Upon review these were found to include;  

• Process for developing draft agreements;  
• Completing access database records;  
• How to deal with income received; 
• Trigger monitoring;  
• Budget codes;  
• Reporting and monitoring;  
• Contacts at other agencies for payments to be passed over; and  
• Letter templates for trigger clauses and receipt of monies. 

Testing found that these were broadly reflective of current working practices, however in March 2020 the Planning Enforcement and 
Section 106 Technician began the task of updating the procedure notes to be clearer, better reflect the latest Local Plan and any changes 
to the legislation and to be used as training material for other departments who play a role in the Section 106 process. This update is work 
in progress and the procedures require completion.  
Without doing so creates a risk of inconsistent working practices developing across the various teams involved in administering Section 
106 monies. 

Management 
Action 4 

We will continue to update and develop the procedure notes to 
ensure all staff involved in the end to end Section 106 process 
are aware of their role and responsibility and their key actions.  

Responsible Owner: 
Head of Planning  

Date: 
30 April 2021 
 

Priority: 
Low 

 

 

 

 

Page 55 of 56

75



 

 
 

 

Objective: To provide assurance that policies and procedures are complied with, and opportunities presented by planning applications are 
maximised, such as contributions from developers and other bodies. We will also review the procedures for the repayment of funds not spent, 
and the separation of funds for the administration and completion of works. 

Control 
 

Missing Control  
There is currently no reporting undertaken to management or to any of the Councils Committees. 

Assessment: 

Design 
Compliance 

 

× 
- 

Findings / 
Implications 

The overarching Planning Obligations - Supplementary Planning Document 2012 states that "bi-annual reports will be submitted to 
Councillors with details of planning agreements which have been signed, together with the amounts negotiated and received. These 
reports will also provide details of where funds have been committed for projects through the capital programme".    
We confirmed through discussions with staff in both Planning and Finance that there is no overall oversight of the status of Section 106 
contributions and spending, such as in an annual report. This should include contributions that the Council has already received in 
addition to the money that has been agreed through the planning process but has yet to be received. 

Management 
Action 5 

We will report the Section 106 Contributions received and spent 
each year to Councillors. 
The report will provide an update on the Section 106 contributions 
that the Council has already received in addition to the money that 
has been agreed through the planning process but has yet to be 
received. 
The Infrastructure Funding Statement (IFS) required to be 
submitted annually and a schedule of quarterly reporting to 
Planning Committee has been agreed. 

Responsible Owner: 
Head of Planning / Head of Finance 

Date: 
Implemented 

Priority: 
Low 

 

Page 56 of 56

76



 

 

 

 
 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL  
Follow Up 2 

Internal Audit Report: 7.20/21 

REVISED FINAL  

15 January 2021 
This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed. 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party.  

77

A
genda Item

 7



    

 
 

   2
 

 

Background 
With the use of secure portals for the transfer of information, and through electronic communication means, remote working has meant that we have been able to 
complete our follow up and provide you with the assurances you require. It is these exceptional circumstances which mean that 100 per cent of our audit has been 
conducted remotely. Based on the information provided by the Council, we have been able to sample test, or complete full population testing using data analytics 
tools. 

As part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 2020/21 we have undertaken a review to follow up progress made by the Council to implement the 
previously agreed management actions. The audits considered as part of the follow up review were: 

• 06.19/20 Communication – Social Media; 

• 13.19/20 Purchasing Cards; 

• 15.19/20 Risk Management; 

• 16.19/20 Planning Service; 

• 17.19/20 Homelessness; and 

• 18.19/20 Void Management.  

The 37 management actions considered in this review comprised of 17 'medium’ and 20 ‘low’ priority actions.  

Conclusion  
Taking account of the issues identified in the remainder of the report, in our opinion South Kesteven District Council has demonstrated good progress in 
implementing agreed management actions. 

Testing found that the Council has implemented 23 of the 37 management actions.  

We have made new management actions where appropriate; these are detailed in Section 2 of this report. 

 

 

 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

78



    

 
 

   3
 

 

The following graph highlights the progress made on the actions that have been followed up. 

 

Further details of progress made are provided in this report. It is important to note that until a management action is fully implemented, the Council is still exposed 
to risk.  

 

 

 

79



    

 
 

   4
 

 

 

Progress on actions 
The following table includes details of the status of each management action: 

 
Implementation status by review 

 
Number of 

actions 
agreed 

Status of management actions  

Impl.     
(1) 

Impl. 
ongoing (2) 

Not impl.   
(3) 

Superseded 
(4) 

Not yet due 
(5) 

Confirmation as 
completed or no 

longer 
necessary 

(1)+(4) 

06.19/20 Communication – Social Media  4 2 0 0 0 2 2 

13.19/20 Purchasing Cards 5 5 0 0 0 0 5 

15.19/20 Risk Management 5 2 0 2 1 0 3 

16.19/20 Planning Service 2 0 0 2 0 0 0 

17.19/20 Homelessness 14 14 0 0 0 0 14 

18.19/20 Void Management  7 0 2 5 0 0 0 

Total 37 23 2 9 1 2 24 

80



 

5 
 

 

2 FINDINGS AND MANAGEMENT ACTIONS 
Status Detail 

1 The entire action has been fully implemented. 
2 The action has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 
3 The action has not been implemented. 
4 The action has been superseded and is no longer applicable. 
5 The action is not yet due. 

 

06.19/20 Communication- Social Media   

Original 
management 
action/Priority

A Communications Strategy will be developed, and this will either include Social Media or a separate document will be developed. 
Medium 

Audit finding / 
status 

The Council's new Corporate Plan was approved and rolled out in October 2020. The Communications team does not currently have a 
permanent Head of Communications and is hoping to have filled this position by April 2021. The Communications Strategy will then be 
developed and approved and rolled out.  
5 - The action is not yet due.  

Management 
Action 1 

A Communications Strategy will be developed, and this will either include 
Social Media or a separate document will be developed. 
Management Update:  Action implementation ongoing 

Responsible Owner:  
Head of Communications 

Date:  
31 December 
2020 

Priority: 
Medium 
 

     

06.19/20 Communication- Social Media  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

This will be part of the social media plan that supports our Communications Strategy.  
Low 

Audit finding / 
status 

The Council's new Corporate Plan was approved and rolled out in October 2020. The Communications Team does not currently have a 
permanent Head of Communications and is hoping to have filled this position by April 2021. The Communications Strategy will then be 
developed and approved and rolled out.  
5 – The action is not yet due 

81



 

6 
 

 

06.19/20 Communication- Social Media   

Management 
Action 2 

This will be part of the social media plan that supports our 
Communications Strategy.  
Management Update:  Action implementation ongoing 

Responsible Owner:  
Head of Communications 

Date:  
31 December 
2020 

Priority: 
Low 

 
 

15.19/20 Risk Management   

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

The Head of Finance will remind Heads of Service, via an email, of the importance of attending the Risk Management Group. 
Medium 

Audit finding 
/ status 

It was confirmed with the Governance and Risk Officer that a Risk Management Group has not taken place this year due to a lack of 
availability by attendees at the start of the year and then the impact of Covid-19 on the Council meant that another Risk Management 
Group was not arranged. The management action is therefore being reiterated. 
3 - The management action has not been implemented 

Management 
Action 3 

The Head of Finance will remind Heads of Service, via an email, of the 
importance of attending Risk Management Group. 

Management Update:  A reminder will be sent out ahead of the next Risk 
Management Group 

Responsible Owner:  
Head of Finance 

Date:  
30 April 2021 

Priority: 
Medium 
 

 

15.19/20 Risk Management   

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

The Governance and Risk Officer will discuss further training needs at the next Risk Management Group. 
Low 

Audit finding 
/ status 

It was confirmed with the Governance and Risk Officer that a Risk Management Group has not taken place this year due to a lack of 
availability by attendees at the start of the year and then the impact of Covid-19 on the Council meant that another Risk Management 
Group was not arranged. The management action is therefore being reiterated. 

3 - The management action has not been implemented 

82



 

7 
 

 

 

Management 
Action 4 

The Governance and Risk Officer will discuss further training needs at the 
next Risk Management Group. 

Management Update:  Risk Management Group will be scheduled for April 

Responsible Owner:  
Governance and Risk Officer 

Date:  
30 April 2021 

Priority: 
Low 
 

     

16.19/20 Planning Service  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

A log of all training that staff attend, including additional and internal courses, will be maintained by management. 
Low 

Audit finding 
/ status 

It was unable to be confirmed with the Head of Development Management that a log of all training that staff attend, including additional 
and internal courses is maintained by management. The management action is therefore being reiterated. 
 
3 - The management action has not been implemented. 

Management 
Action 5 

A log of all training that staff attend, including additional and internal 
courses, will be maintained by management. 

Management Update:  Action has now been implemented 

Responsible Owner:  
Head of Development 
Management  

Date: 
31 March 2021 

Priority: 
Low 

     

16.19/20 Planning Service  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

Management will remind staff, via email, to upload all application documentation, including the extension of time notice, to the Planning 
system. 
Low 

Audit finding 
/ status 

It was unable to be confirmed with the Head of Development Management that staff have been reminded to upload all application 
documentation to the Planning system. The management action is therefore being reiterated. 

3 - The management action has not been implemented. 

Management 
Action 6 

Management will remind staff, via email, to upload all application 
documentation, including the extension of time notice, to the Planning 
system. 

Management Update:  Action has now been implemented 

Responsible Owner:  
Head of Development 
Management  

Date: 
31 March 
2021  

Priority: 
Low 

83



 

8 
 

 

18.19/20 Void Management   

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

A Voids Policy will be produced which details the Council's current void management process. 
Medium 

Audit finding 
/ status 

It was confirmed with the Head of Housing Services and the Interim Head of Technical Services that a new Voids Policy is currently being 
drafted with the intention of having it approved by Cabinet in January 2021. The management action is therefore being reiterated.  

2 - The action has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 

Management 
Action 7 

A Voids Policy will be produced which details the Council's current void 
management process. 
Management Update:  Performance report (covering delivery structure, 
process and performance management with recommendations for 
improvements) was approved by Cabinet on 13 January 2021. The policy is 
now being developed and will be complete by 28 February 2021.  

Responsible Owner:  
Interim Head of Technical 
Services  
Head of Housing Services 

Date:  
31 January 
2021 

Priority: 
Medium  
 

     

18.19/20 Void Management  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

The procedure note in place for the Voids Department will be reviewed and updated to reflect current working practices.  
A set review date will also be documented.  
Low 

Audit finding 
/ status 

As the Voids Policy is approved and implemented, the voids procedure notes will also be updated to become reflective of current working 
practices. The management action is therefore being reiterated.  

2 - The action has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 

Management 
Action 8 

The procedure note in place for the Voids Department will be reviewed and 
updated to reflect current working practices.  
A set review date will also be documented.  
Management Update:  Action has now been implemented 

Responsible Owner:  
Interim Head of Technical 
Services  
Head of Housing Services 

Date:  
31 January 
2021 

Priority: 
Low 
 

     

84



 

9 
 

 

18.19/20 Void Management  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

Going forward, the Major Void Refurbishments budget will be re-evaluated and closely monitored to ensure actual and committed spend 
against the budget are in line with set forecasts. 
Low  

Audit finding 
/ status 

The current voids process is currently undergoing review by the Head of Housing and Interim Head of Technical Services. Once this 
review has been undertaken, Major Void Refurbishment budgets can be considered, re-evaluated and monitored as appropriate. The 
management action is therefore being reiterated.  

3 - The management action has not been implemented. 

Management 
Action 9 

Going forward, the Major Void Refurbishments budget will be re-evaluated 
and closely monitored to ensure actual and committed spend against the 
budget are in line with set forecasts. 

Management Update:  Action has now been implemented 

Responsible Owner:  
Interim Head of Technical 
Services  
Head of Housing Services 

Date:  
28 February 
2021 

Priority: 
Low 
 

     

18.19/20 Void Management  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

Training will be provided to staff members within the Void Department regarding the recovery of re-charges identified from Void 
Inspections.  
Medium 

Audit finding 
/ status 

As the current voids process is currently being reviewed with the intention of making significant changes, training will be provided to staff 
once the new process has been reviewed and implemented. The management action is therefore being reiterated.  

3 - The management action has not been implemented. 

Management 
Action 10 

Training will be provided to staff members within the Void Department 
regarding the recovery of re-charges identified from Void Inspections.  
Management Update:  Action has now been implemented 
 

Responsible Owner:  
Interim Head of Technical 
Services 

Date:  
31 March 
2021 

Priority: 
Medium  
 

     

85



 

10 
 

 

18.19/20 Void Management 

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

The Rechargeable Repairs Policy will be reviewed and updated to ensure it is reflective of current working practices.  
Additionally, a set review date and version control will be added to the document. 
Low 

Audit finding 
/ status 

The Interim Head of Technical Services is new to post and is currently looking to dedicate some time to reviewing and updating the 
Rechargeable Repairs Policy. It is intended that this will be done is January 2021. The management action is therefore being reiterated 

3 - The management action has not been implemented. 

Management 
Action 11 

The Chargeable Repairs Policy will be reviewed and updated to ensure it is 
reflective of current working practices.  
Additionally, a set review date and version control will be added to the 
document.  

Management Update:  Action has now been implemented 

Responsible Owner:  
Interim Head of Technical 
Services 

Date:  
31 January 
2021 

Priority: 
Low  
 

     

18.19/20 Void Management  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

A review will be undertaken of the recovery process for void re-charges.  
Medium 

Audit finding 
/ status 

The current Voids Policy and Procedures and currently being reviewed with the intention of having these agreed and implemented in 
January 2021. The management action is therefore being reiterated.  

3 - The management action has not been implemented. 

Management 
Action 12 

A review will be undertaken of the recovery process for void re-charges.  

Management Update:  Action has now been implemented 

Responsible Owner:  
Interim Head of Technical 
Services 

Date:  
31 January 
2021 

Priority: 
Medium  
 

86



 

11 
 

 

     

18.19/20 Void Management  

Original 
management 
action / 
priority 

The current KPI's in place for the void management process will be reviewed and revised to ensure they are reflective of current 
operational practices. 
Medium 

Audit finding 
/ status 

The current KPI's in place for void management is due to be reviewed by the new Interim Head of Technical Services to ensure they are 
reflective of operational practices and that they can be managed by the Council moving forward. This is something the Head of Technical 
Services anticipates being done by the end of quarter four.  

3 - The management action has not been implemented. 

Management 
Action 13 

The current KPI's in place for the void management process will be 
reviewed and revised to ensure they are reflective of current operational 
practices. 

Management Update:  Action has now been implemented 

Responsible Owner:  
Interim Head of Technical 
Services 

Date:  
31 March 
2021 

Priority: 
Medium  
 

87



 

12 
 

 

APPENDIX A: ACTIONS COMPLETED OR SUPERSEDED  
From the testing conducted during this review we have found the following actions to have been fully implemented or superseded.  

Assignment title Management actions
06.19/20 Communication – 
Social Media  

The Council will update the website to reflect platforms and accounts used and review the accounts the Council currently 
has to ensure they are all needed, if so, they will review these to ensure they are used to their full potential. 

06.19/20 Communication – 
Social Media 

The Communications Risk Register will be reviewed and updated.  
Social media risks will be included as part of this review. 

13.19/20 Purchasing Cards A full audit trail of all relevant documentation will be maintained on file in relation to the issuing of Purchasing Cards. 

13.19/20 Purchasing Cards Spot checks of Purchasing Card expenditure will be undertaken by Finance where necessary although it is the Heads of 
Service responsibility to ensure any procurement is in accordance with the Purchasing Cards Policy. 

13.19/20 Purchasing Cards Clear guidance in regard to appropriate purchases to be made on Purchasing Cards will be provided within the 
Purchasing Card User Guide. Finance will continue to monitor Purchasing Card expenditure on a monthly basis to ensure 
that cards are used appropriately. 

13.19/20 Purchasing Cards All purchasing cardholders will be reminded to ensure that all Purchasing Card Expense Reports are fully completed in a 
timely manner and appropriately authorised by their Line Manager.  
Additionally, they will be reminded to ensure all supporting receipts for expenditure are maintained and provided as part of 
the monthly approval process. 

13.19/20 Purchasing Cards A full audit trail of all relevant documentation will be maintained on file in relation to leavers who have been issued a 
Purchasing Cards. 

15.19/20 Risk Management  The Council will ensure that the Financial Regulations section within the Constitution, where risk management practices 
are recorded, is reviewed and updated to ensure that it records current risk management practices within the Council. 

15.19/20 Risk Management The Governance and Risk Officer will review the Service and Corporate Risk registers to ensure the correct risk rating is 
recorded against each risk to be in line with the Council's risk matrix within the Risk Management Framework. 

15.19/20 Risk Management The Governance and Risk Officer will arrange a meeting with the one outstanding Head of Service to discuss and record 
the necessary details to be recorded on the Service Risk register for their area. 

17.19/20 Homelessness A final version of the 2019 to 2023 Housing Strategy will be approved and published on the Council’s website.   

88



 

13 
 

 

17.19/20 Homelessness The Council's website will be updated to include the current version of the Council's Tenancy Strategy once approved. 

17.19/20 Homelessness A review will be undertaken of all homelessness procedure documentations.  
The review will involve ensuring all documents are updated and version controlled with set future review dates. 

17.19/20 Homelessness The Council's current Housing Asset Management Strategy will be reviewed and updated. 

17.19/20 Homelessness The Open Housing Training Log Spreadsheet will be reviewed and updated to record when staff had attended training. 

17.19/20 Homelessness A reminder via email will be issued to all Homelessness Prevention Officers to ensure initial applications are processed in 
a timely manner in line with procedural requirements. 

17.19/20 Homelessness A reminder via email will be issued to all Homelessness Prevention Officers to ensure that Prevention Duties are resolved 
and ended in a timely manner in line with statutory guidelines.  
A reminder via email will also be issued to ensure Decision Letters are created and sent to the original applicant, once a 
duty has come to an end. 

17.19/20 Homelessness A reminder will be issued to all Homelessness Prevention Officers to ensure that Relief Duties are resolved and ended in 
a timely manner in line with statutory guidelines. 

17.19/20 Homelessness The Temporary Accommodation Procedure will be reviewed and updated to reflect current working practices.  
The Procedure will be revised to include information regarding the booking of emergency accommodation and a 
supporting list of approved hotels and bed, and breakfasts will also be documented. 

17.19/20 Homelessness A Temporary Accommodation Request Form will be completed and authorised prior to the booking of temporary or 
emergency accommodation. 

17.19/20 Homelessness Clear guidance will be published, and subsequent training will be delivered to staff members regarding the recovery 
process of rent and service charges in relation to the use temporary and emergency accommodation. 

17.19/20 Homelessness The Temporary Accommodation Rent Procedure will be reviewed and updated to reflect current working practices.  
A set review date will also be documented. 

17.19/20 Homelessness The Emergency Booking Invoice Procedure will be reviewed and updated to reflect current working practices. A set review 
date will also be documented. 

17.19/20 Homelessness Monitoring will be undertaken to identify frequent users of temporary or emergency accommodation.  
Once identified, additional support will be provided to users to avoid them becoming homeless again in the future. 

89



 

14 
 

 

APPENDIX B: SCOPE 
The scope below is a copy of the original document issued. 

Scope of the review 
The internal audit assignment has been scoped to provide assurance on how South Kesteven District Council manages the following objective:   

Objective of the risk under review 

To meet internal auditing standards, and to provide assurance on action taken to address management actions/ recommendations previously agreed by 
management. 

When planning the audit, the following areas for consideration and limitations were agreed: 

Areas for consideration: 

As part of the approved internal audit periodic plan we will review the 37 (17 ‘Medium’ and 20 'Low') management actions agreed in the following Internal 
Audit reviews: 

• 06.19/20 Communication – Social Media; 

• 13.19/20 Purchasing Cards; 

• 15.19/20 Risk Management; 

• 16.19/20 Planning Service; 

• 17.19/20 Homelessness; and 

• 18.19/20 Void Management.  

Report 07.19/20 IT Project Management will be followed up separately by RSM’s Technology Risk Assurance team.  

Limitations to the scope of the audit assignment:  

• Detailed testing will only be carried out on and the medium priority management actions; 
• We will obtain a management update in relation to low priority management actions, but no detailed testing will be carried out; 
• We will not review the whole control framework of the areas listed above. Therefore, we are not providing assurance on the entire risk and control 

framework of these areas; 
• Testing will be completed, where appropriate, on a sample basis over the period since actions were implemented or controls enhanced; and 
• Our work does not provide absolute assurance that material errors, loss or fraud do not exist  
 

90



 

15 
 

 

Debrief held 

 

Draft report issued 

Responses 
received 

Final report issued 

Revised Final 
report issued 
 

27 November 2020 
 
 
8 December 2020 
 
15 January 2021 
 
15 January 2021 
 
15 January 2021 

Internal audit Contacts Robert Barnett, Head of Internal Audit 
Robert.Barnett@rsmuk.com 
07791 237658  
Amjad Ali, Senior Manager 
Amjad.Ali@rsmuk.com 
07800 617139 

 

  Client sponsor Richard Wyles, Director of Finance   

Distribution Richard Wyles, Director of Finance 
Tracey Elliott, Governance and Risk Officer 

 

91



 

rsmuk.com 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the 
weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Actions for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact. This report, or our work, should 
not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system 
of internal controls rests with management and our work should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist. Neither should our work be 
relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 

Our report is prepared solely for the confidential use of South Kesteven District Council, and solely for the purposes set out herein. This report should not therefore be 
regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing to acquire any rights from RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP for any purpose or in any context. 
Any third party which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on it (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, 
RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or 
expense of whatsoever nature which is caused by any person’s reliance on representations in this report. 

This report is released to you on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as otherwise permitted by agreed written terms), 
without our prior written consent. 

We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.  

RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 6th floor, 25 Farringdon Street, London EC4A 4AB. 

 

 

 

92



 

 

 

Governance and Audit 
Committee 
4 February 2021 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 

Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources 

   

         
  

 

Update on internal audit Follow Up 1 report   

This report is an update on Follow Up 1 that was presented to Governance and Audit Committee on 
19 November 2020 and provides further details on the implementation of the internal audit 
management actions that were outstanding at that time. 

Report Author 

Tracey Elliott, Governance & Risk Officer 

 
 01476 406038 

  t.elliott@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance  25 January 2021 

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 26 January 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 

26 January 2021 

 

Recommendation to the decision maker 

1. Governance and Audit Committee is asked to note and approve the contents of this 
report. 

93

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 At the 19 November 2020 meeting of Governance and Audit Committee, Members noted 

the number of internal audit management actions that had not been fully implemented as 

presented in the RSM Follow Up 1 Report. 

The attached Appendix A shows a list of all management actions that were recorded as not 

implemented within the Follow Up 1 report, that was presented by the internal auditors, 

along with the current status on implementation.  There were 17 management actions that 

were reported as outstanding at that time.  Since the meeting officers have been requested 

to ensure all actions are implemented or provide updated status on the action.  It is pleasing 

to note that all the actions referred to in the RSM Follow Up 1 Report have now been 

implemented or are being implemented.  The summary status of each action is summarised 

below: 

Status Number 

Reported as implemented as an update on 
the report presented 19 November 2020 

4 

Implemented 5 

Implementation ongoing 5 

Not implemented 2 

Action not yet due 1 

Total 17 

  

Ref Audit Title  Status 

1 Building Control Previously reported as implemented  

2 Housing Benefit  Previously reported as implemented  

8 Corporate Governance  Previously reported as implemented  

14 Fire Safety  Previously reported as implemented  

4 Complaints & Freedom of Information Implemented 

5 Complaints & Freedom of Information Implemented 

10 Pre-application Fees Implemented 

11 Recruitment and Retention  Implemented 

13 Purchase Orders and Creditors Implemented  

3 Customer Relationship Management  Implementation ongoing 

6 Complaints & Freedom of Information Implementation ongoing  

9 Cyber Security  Implementation ongoing 

12 Land Charges  Implementation ongoing 

15 Fire Safety  Implementation ongoing 

17 Payroll and Expenses  Implementation ongoing 

7 Complaints & Freedom of Information Not implemented (no longer applicable) 

16 Fire Safety  Action not yet due 

 

94



 

 
 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 Governance and Audit Committee is asked to note the management update provided in 

Appendix A.  

3 Reasons for the Recommendation 

3.1 Governance and Audit Committee, as part of its terms of reference, is required to monitor 

and review the internal audit arrangements in place including the implementation of 

internal audit recommendations. 

4 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

4.1 N/A 

5 Financial Implications  

5.1 These are contained within the report where appropriate. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

6 Legal and Governance Implications  

6.1 Governance and Audit Committee is responsible for the monitoring of internal audit report 

recommendations as part of its terms of reference.  This report provides information in this 

respect. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance 

7 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

7.1 None. 

8 Risk and Mitigation 

8.1 These are contained within the report where appropriate. 

9 Community Safety Implications  

9.1 None. 

10 Background Papers 

10.1 Internal Audit Follow Up 1 Report 

Internal Audit Follow Up 1 Report 

11 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a ‘climate emergency’? 

The recommendation will have a neutral effect on the Council’s declaration of a climate 

emergency. 

12 Appendices 

12.1 Appendix A – Follow Up Part 1 - Update on implementation of management actions 

  

95

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s28237/Internal%20Audit%20Follow-up%20Report.pdf


 

 
 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not required 

Previously Considered by: Governance and 
Audit Committee 

19 November 2020 

Final Decision date   4 February 2021 

 

96



Appendix A – Follow Up 1 – Update on implementation of actions 

 

 
Audit Title & Action 

Original 
date 

Revised 
date 

Status 

1. Building Control 
31.07.19 31.10.20 

Previously reported as 
implemented  

2 Housing Benefit  
 

31.08.19 31.10.20 
Previously reported as 
implemented  

8 Corporate Governance  
  

Previously reported as 
implemented  

14 Fire Safety  
30.04.20 31.12.20 

Previously reported as 
implemented  

4 Complaints & Freedom of Information 
The Council is intending to implement a new Civica 
Module for the handling of FOI and complaint 
requests. Once the new module has been 
implemented, refresher training will be provided on 
the use of Civica to ensure that responsibility and 
accountability in regard to FOI requests is understood. 

31.03.20 31.12.20 

Implemented 
Note – The Civica Module 
was not sufficient for the 
requirements. FOIs are now 
processed through another 
system which is working 
well. 

5 Complaints & Freedom of Information 
The Council is intending to implement a new Civica 
Module for the handling of FOI and complaint 
requests. Once the new module has been 
implemented, monthly management reporting of 
FOI's will be actioned. 

31.03.20 31.12.20 

Implemented 
Note – The Civica Module 
was not sufficient for the 
requirements. FOI reports 
are available through 
another system. 

10 Pre-application Fees 
a) The reconciliations between February 2018 to 
February 2019 will be carried out; and b) Going 
forward the reconciliations will be carried out 
monthly. 

30.04.20 31.12.20 

Implemented 
 

11 Recruitment and Retention  
A flowchart will be produced to show the recruitment 
process from start to finish. 

31.01.20 31.12.20 
Implemented 

13 Purchase Orders and Creditors 
a) Monthly monitoring reports will be produced and 
reviewed to identify repeat offenders. b) Repeat 
offenders will be reminded of the importance of 
ensuring a purchase order is raised prior to the 
ordering of goods or services from suppliers. c) An 
escalation process will be implemented. 

31.01.20 31.12.20 

Implemented  

3 Customer Relationship Management  
The Data Disposal Module for Civica will be installed 
and data will periodically be removed in line with 
agreed timescales. 

31.10.19 31.12.20 

Implementation ongoing 
The Data Disposal Module 
has been installed but not 
progressed due to the team 
concentrating on prioritised 
work which has been 
changing and reactive over 
the last year.   

6 Complaints & Freedom of Information 
The Customer Feedback Process - Compliments, 
Comments and Complaints Guidance Document will 
be reviewed to ensure it is reflective of current 
working practices. 

31.12.19 31.12.20 

Implementation ongoing 
Process being reviewed by 
30.03.21 

97

Appendix A



 
Audit Title & Action 

Original 
date 

Revised 
date 

Status 

9 Cyber Security  
Upon completion of the Agile Working Project 
becoming live; a) The Password Policy for the Domain 
User Group and Councillor's group will be updated. b) 
The updated Password Policy will be communicated 
to staff. 

31.01.20 31.12.20 

Implementation ongoing 
Policy being reviewed by 
30.03.21 

12 Land Charges  
We will ensure changes made to the register are 
independently reviewed to supporting documentation 
and checked for accuracy by another member of the 
team after the change has been made. 

31.03.20 31.12.20 

Implementation ongoing 
Progress has been difficult 
during 2020 due to the 
significant backlogs, staffing 
resource pressures and 
Covid.   

15 Fire Safety  
On completion of the surveys of the sheltered 
accommodation and flat with communal facilities, the 
Stay Put Policy will be amended for each property 
based on the findings of the survey. 

28.02.20 31.12.20 

Implementation ongoing 
The assessment of stay put 
by individual block will 
commence immediately 
from when the FRA’s 
commence at end of Jan. 
This policy requirement is in 
the new draft Fire Safety 
management plan which 
hopefully will be in place by 
beginning of February. 

17 Payroll and Expenses  
The Expenses Policy will be reviewed and updated to 
reflect current working practices. 

31.01.20 31.12.20 
Implementation ongoing 
Review will be complete by 
31.01.21 

7 Complaints & Freedom of Information 
The Council is intending to implement a new Civica 
Module for the handling of FOI and complaint 
requests. Once the new module has been 
implemented, refresher training will be provided on 
the use of Civica to ensure that responsibility and 
accountability in regard to complaints is understood. 

31.03.20 31.12.20 

Not implemented 
No longer applicable as 
module not progressed 

16 Fire Safety  
Fire Risk Assessments will be undertaken to all of the 
communal areas within the housing stock in Jan/Feb 
2021. b) Going forward Fire Risk Assessments will be 
reviewed annually for all properties where one is 
required based on the structure, layout and use of the 
property. c) Where the use or layout of the building 
changes requiring a new Fire Risk Assessment these 
will be carried out and any arising actions 
implemented. 

28.02.20 28.02.21 

Action not due 
It is on target for completion 
by the due date 

  

98



 

 

 

Governance and Audit 
Committee 
4 February 2021 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 

Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources 

   

         
  

 

Indicative Internal Audit Plan 2021-22   

This report provides Governance and Audit Committee an opportunity to review the Indicative 
Internal Audit Plan 2021-22 ahead of the draft internal audit plan being presented at the March 
meeting. 

Report Author 

Tracey Elliott, Governance & Risk Officer 

 
 01476 406038 

  t.elliott@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance  26 January 2021 

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 26 January 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 

27 January 2021 

 

Recommendation to the decision maker 

1. Governance and Audit Committee is asked to note the contents of this report, 
review the Indicative Internal Audit Plan at Appendix A and make any suggested 
amendments prior to its approval in March 2021. 

 

99

Agenda Item 9

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 The Indicative Internal Audit Plan 2021-22 provides an opportunity for Governance and 

Audit Committee to discuss and review ahead of the final draft plan being presented to the 

Committee on 18 March 2021.   RSM has used various sources of information and 

discussed priorities for internal audit coverage with the Council’s Statutory Officers Group.  

As a result of those discussions it is proposed that the following areas will be included within 

the 2021-22 plan: 

• Housing Compliance 

• Street Scene Stock Control 

• Repairs Stock Control  

• Medium Term Financial Planning 

• Council Subsidiary Companies 

• Disabled Facilities Grant 

• Continuous assurance reviews – quarterly reviews across key controls 

• Follow up audits – four reviews 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 Governance and Audit Committee is asked to consider the draft Internal Audit Plan and 

make any proposed amendments prior to the final Plan being presented to the Committee 

in March 2021.  The draft Strategic Risk Register attached as Appendix A.  

3 Reasons for the Recommendation 

3.1 Governance and Audit Committee, as part of its terms of reference, is required to monitor 

and review the internal audit arrangements in place. 

4 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

4.1 N/A 

5 Financial Implications  

5.1 These are contained within the report where appropriate. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

6 Legal and Governance Implications  

6.1 Governance and Audit Committee is responsible for the approval of the Internal Audit 

Annual Plan as part of its terms of reference.  This report provides information in this respect. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance 

7 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

7.1 None. 

8 Risk and Mitigation 

8.1 These are contained within the report where appropriate. 

 

100



 

 
 

9 Community Safety Implications  

9.1 None. 

10 Background Papers 

10.1 None. 

11 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a ‘climate emergency’? 

The recommendation will have a neutral effect on the Council’s declaration of a climate 

emergency. 

12 Appendices 

12.1 Appendix A – Indicative Internal Audit Plan 2021-22 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not required 

Previously Considered by: Governance and 
Audit Committee 

Not applicable 

Final Decision date   4 February 2021 

 

101



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Internal Audit Indicative Plan 2021/22                     

4 February 2021 
 

This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed.  

To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no  

responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party. 

103

Appendix A



     

 

 South Kesteven District Council | Indicative Internal audit plan  2021/22 | 1 

CONTENTS 

1 Introduction ................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

2   Internal audit indicative plan 2021/22 ........................................................................................................................... 3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

104



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Indicative Internal audit plan  2021/22 | 2 

1.1 Background 

At the request of the Interim Director of Finance, we were asked to provide details of what we are seeing in the local 

government sector and the key issues that have arisen from the audit reviews completed in 2020/21. These were 

presented to the Statutory Officers Group meeting on 19 January 2021 for comment and a number of audit areas were 

agreed which are detailed in section 2 of this report; these include those areas where ‘partial’ or ‘no’ assurance was 

provided in 2020/21. 

1.2 Governance and Audit Committee Input 

We would welcome input from the Governance and Audit Committee which will be incorporated into the development 

of the 2021/22 internal audit plan. 

Section 2 of this report sets out the individual internal audit areas for inclusion in 2021/22 and will be supplemented by 

the follow up of previously agreed management actions, continuous assurance reviews and RSM management time. 

Once the auditable areas have been agreed, we will issue an internal audit plan to be discussed and agreed at the 

Governance and Audit Committee meeting in March 2021. 

 

 

1 INTRODUCTION 

Our approach to developing your internal audit plan is based on analysing your corporate 

objectives, risk profile and assurance framework as well as other factors affecting South Kesteven 

District Council in the year ahead, including changes within the wider public sector.  

105



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Indicative Internal audit plan  2021/22 | 3 

Audit High Level Scope for 2021/22  

Core Assurance 

Housing Compliance - Gas, 

Electrical, Legionella, Asbestos 

and Fire * 

The Council has a duty to ensure that all properties, including communal areas 

within properties, under its control meet the relevant health and safety regulations 

in respect to each of the following key areas:  

▪ Gas Safety checks (including solid fuel and oil-fired installations); 

▪ Electrical Testing; 

▪ Legionella; 

▪ Asbestos; and 
▪ Fire Risk Assessments. 

 

A compliance audit to provide assurance that policies and procedures are being 

consistently, effectively and efficiently applied, ensuring that all statutory 

responsibilities are met. 

We will look to use data interrogation software to supplement our testing, which 

will enable enables us to provide greater insight, as it allows for wider coverage of 

the areas under review and to check 100% records relating to the key areas 

identified above. 

Management have requested a review in 2021/22 to ensure compliance with key 

areas and to provide assurance that remedial action has been taken following the 

internal audit findings in 2020/21. 

Streetscene – Stock * To ensure that Streetscene stock is managed and monitored effectively and make 

sure there is a readily supply of stock items available to assist in the efficient 

operations of the Council. An internal audit review has been completed in 2020/21 

and a draft report is with management.  

Management have confirmed that in October 2020 the Streetscene department 

contracted a company to provide a ‘project lead’ to setup systems, implement an 

agreed plan, improve stores/stock and provide training and guidance.  

We will look to use data interrogation software to supplement our testing, which 

will enable enables us to provide greater insight, as it allows for wider coverage of 

the areas under review. 

Management have requested a review in 2021/22 of the new system and 

processes being put in place and to ensure these are embedded. 

Repairs – Stock * To ensure that Repairs stock is managed and monitored effectively and make sure 

there is a readily supply of stock items available to assist in the efficient operations 

of the Council 

We will look to use data interrogation software to supplement our testing, which 

will enable enables us to provide greater insight, as it allows for wider coverage of 

the areas under review. 

This area resulted in ‘no’ assurance in 2020/21 and management have requested 

a full audit in 2021/22. 

2   INTERNAL AUDIT INDICATIVE PLAN 2021/22  

106



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Indicative Internal audit plan  2021/22 | 4 

Audit High Level Scope for 2021/22  

Medium Term Financial Planning Following the impact of Covid-19 on Council finances and the recent issue of a 

S114 notice by Croydon Council (unable to balance their budget), there is 

increased pressure on Councils to find savings to deliver a balanced budget, and 

this feeds through to their longer term financial planning, usually documented 

within the Medium Term Financial Strategy. The review will include the following 

areas: 

▪ Review of the process to compile the Medium Term Fianncial Plan; 

▪ An assessment of estimates and assumptions; 

▪ Monitoring expenditure against the Medium Term Financial Plan; 

▪ Plans in place to address any areas of overspend; and 

▪ Linkage to the Council’s savings plan. 

Council Subsidiary Companies To maintain adequate financial and governance arrangements for subsidiary 

companies operating on behalf of the Council. 

The exact scope will be agreed with management and our coverage will include: 
 

▪ A review of the key financial risks the Companies have identified and 

proposals to mitigate these risks; 

▪ Review the corporate governance and reporting arrangements of the 

subsidiaries of the council within a parent-subsidiary environment and identify 

areas where these could be improved; and 

▪ A review of the business plans for the companies, including plans for future 

trading activities and potential impact for the Council’s Medium Term Financial 

Strategy.   

Disabled Facilities Grant We will review applications for grants to ensure that they are processed in line with 

statutory responsibilities and internal policies and procedures. We will also review 

the use of, and payments to, contractors, and tenant / applicant contributions 

made to the total cost following the eligibility assessment. Finally, we will review 

the budget monitoring process in place, and the level of management information 

reported. 

This audit was deferred in 2020/21 and management have requested a review in 

2021/22 to review end to end processes from applications for grant to works being 

completed. 

Other internal audit activity 

Continuous Assurance As part of the internal audit plan we will work with management to identify 10 

fundamental key controls covering both financial and operational areas and 

undertake quarterly reviews. This would provide assurance to management and 

the Governance and Audit Committee that these fundamental key controls are 

operating effectively. These controls can include areas where there is no other 

assurance being received by management and the Governance and Audit 

Committee. 

Follow up To meet internal auditing standards and to provide assurance on action taken to 

address previously agreed management actions. We will undertake four follow up 

reviews in the year and report progress at each Governance and Audit Committee 

meeting. 

107



 

 South Kesteven District Council | Indicative Internal audit plan  2021/22 | 5 

Audit High Level Scope for 2021/22  

Management  This will include: 

• Annual planning; 

• Preparation for, and attendance at, Governance and Audit Committee; 

• Regular liaison and progress updates; 

• Liaison with external audit and other assurance providers; and 

• Preparation of the annual opinion. 

    

* these areas resulted in either ‘partial‘ or ‘no‘ assurance in 2020/21 and have been requested by management to be included in the 

internal audit plan for 2021/22. 

108



 

 

 

Governance and Audit 
Committee 
4 February 2021 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 

Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Resources 

   

         
  

 

Strategic Risk Register Update   

This report is a follow up to the report presented to Governance and Audit Committee on 30 
November 2020 and provides an update on the development of the Council’s Strategic Risk 
Register. 

Report Author 

Tracey Elliott, Governance & Risk Officer 

 
 01476 406038 

  t.elliott@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance  22 January 2021 

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 22 January 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 

26 January 2021 

 

Recommendation to the decision maker 

1. Governance and Audit Committee is asked to note the contents of this report and 
review and approve the draft Strategic Risk Register attached at Appendix A. 

 

109

Agenda Item 10

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 At the 30 November meeting 2020 of Governance and Audit Committee, Members were 

informed that there was an ongoing review of the Strategic Risk Register by Corporate 

Management Team.  The updated Register is attached at Appendix A.  Going forwards it is 

proposed that the Register be presented to Committee every six months in accordance with 

the workplan of Committee. 

1.2 The format of the Register consists of the following: 

• Risk Title – brief description of risk 

• Inherent Risk Score – assessment of risk before risk controls considered 

• Current Circumstances – brief summary of the present situation 

• Risk Control – summary of all the risk controls that are currently in place 

• Residual Risk Score – assessment of risk after risk controls considered 

• Action Required – actions to be undertaken   

1.3 The Register is intended to be a dynamic and responsive document and is reviewed to 

reflect the current and changing environment of the Council from both and external 

influences.  The risk controls are those currently in place across the respective risk area and 

the ‘action required’ column captures the emerging and developing actions to further 

strengthen and mitigate the risk. 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 Governance and Audit Committee is asked to approve the draft Strategic Risk Register 

attached as Appendix A.  

3 Reasons for the Recommendation 

3.1 Governance and Audit Committee, as part of its terms of reference, is required to monitor 

and review the risk management arrangements in place and the activities that are being 

undertaken to mitigate those risks. 

4 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

4.1 N/A 

5 Financial Implications  

5.1 These are contained within the report where appropriate. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

6 Legal and Governance Implications  

6.1 Members of the Committee are responsible for monitoring actions taken, and to be taken, 

on behalf of the Council to identify strategic risks and assess whether they are being 

effectively managed.  It is essential they are kept up to date with details of the risks and how 

they have been mitigated. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance 

7 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

7.1 None. 

110



 

 
 

8 Risk and Mitigation 

8.1 These are contained within the report where appropriate. 

9 Community Safety Implications  

9.1 None. 

10 Background Papers 

10.1 Strategic Risk Register 

Report to the meeting of 30 November 2020 Governance and Audit Committee 

Appendix A Strategic Risk Register 

11 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a ‘climate emergency’? 

The recommendation will have a neutral effect on the Council’s declaration of a climate 

emergency. 

12 Appendices 

12.1 Appendix A – Strategic Risk Register 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not required 

Previously Considered by: Governance and 
Audit Committee 

30 November 2020 

Final Decision date   4 February 2021 

 

111

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s28424/Strategic%20Risk%20Register.pdf
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/documents/s28425/Appendix%20A.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 
 

Appendix A – Strategic Risk Register 

1. Ensuring efficient and effective internal control/compliance 

Inherent 
risk score 

Current circumstances Risk control 
Residual 
risk score 

Action required 

 
Likelihood 3  

x 
Impact 4 

= 
Very High 

12 
 
 
 
 
 

 

A recent internal audit review of 
housing compliance resulted in 
a negative opinion being 
provided, leading to the Council 
making a self-referral to the 
Regulator of Social Housing. An 
action plan has been developed 
to address the matters raised 
and this is in progress. However, 
the level of non-compliance, 
coupled with a nervousness 
over what else control failures 
may exist (but not known/ 
visible), has led to an increased 
level of risk exposure for the 
current time until the remedial 
action plan is complete. 

A. Annual internal audit plan developed by senior officers and 
members is targeted at key risks areas and responsive to 
new areas of risk  

B. External/internal audit regime   
C. Development of staff training plan in connection with core 

responsibilities and duties ie data protection, financial rules, 
freedom of information etc 

D. Annual Assurance Statements compiled testing compliance 
with key business activities, supporting Annual Governance 
Statement compilation 

E. Range of performance indicators that monitor internal 
controls  

F. Maintenance of a range of policies that underpin the control 
framework – Financial Regulations, Counter Fraud Strategy, 
Risk Management Framework, Contract Procedure Rules 
coupled with staff training   

G. Regular reporting at Governance and Audit Committee  
H. Compliance with Transparency Code  
I. Compliance with Local Code of Corporate Governance 
J. Review and update of key policies completed in last 12 

months with a view that these will be kept under review 
K. Key compliance roles identified and assigned ie Section 151 

Officer, Monitoring Officer, Data Protection Officer, H&S etc  
L. Compliance with information governance including General 

Data Protection Rule 
M. Review and update of Business Continuity Plans 
N. Corporate Plan 2021-2023 

 
Likelihood 2 

x 
Impact 4 

= 
Medium 8 

 
 
 
 
 

 

i. Fully implement a tracking 
system across the Council as a 
means of making visible/ 
tracking progress of actions 
stemming from reports and 
plans including internal audit 
actions 

ii. Review responses from 
management Annual Assurance 
Statements and develop 
appropriate actions, track 
through to completion 
including evidence 

iii. Implementation of the action 
plan arising from the 
independent governance 
review  

iv. Undertake actions required to 
address social housing 
regulation non-compliance and 
validate that actions 
undertaken have been 
effective 

v. Undertake a constitution 
review and implement 
outcomes 

vi. Undertake a review of the 
officer scheme of delegation 

vii. Undertake a review of scrutiny 

113

A
ppendix A



Page 2 
 

2. Achieving Council transformation 

Inherent 
risk score 

Current circumstances Risk control 
Residual 
risk score 

Action required 

 
Likelihood 3  

x 
Impact 3 

= 
High 9 

 
 
 
 
 

 

The emergence of Covid-19 has 
identified that the Council can 
effectively respond to a change 
in circumstances to ensure 
continuous operations. This 
rigor now needs to be applied 
to ensure this momentum 
continues and that positive 
experiences and benefits 
achieved as a result of recent 
changes are not lost. 

A. Transformation governance arrangements in place 
B. Communications plan (internal) allowing for regular staff 

engagement/progress updates 
C. Staff/union engagement  
D. Project management/capability 
E. Partnership lead 
F. ICT development roadmap 
G. Organisational change programme in place 
H. Commercial lead/capabilities in house to identify 

opportunities  
I. Regular reporting on transformation programme to 

Corporate Management Team 
J. Financial/budgetary monitoring by Cabinet 
K. Performance management and key performance indicators 

in place 
L. Staff/officer wellbeing and support  
M. Corporate Plan 2021-2023 
N. Development of Workforce Strategy and enabling an agile 

workforce 

 
Likelihood 2 

x 
Impact 3 

= 
Medium 6 

 
 
 
 
 

 

i. Undertake asset management 
review and development of 
asset management plan 

ii. Review office accommodation 
and embed an agile approach 
to working by utilising cultural 
and technological changes 

iii. Develop and implement 
commercial and 
transformational strategies as 
necessary 

iv. Instigate/continue to track 
“lessons learned” from Covid-
19 with a view to identifying 
further opportunities that 
should be progressed in 
connection with improving 
service delivery 

v. Allocate resource to support 
Corporate Plan ambitions 

vi. Continue to work in 
partnership with other public 
sector partners to explore new 
and existing opportunities to 
deliver to residents and 
businesses 

vii. Undertake a peer review within 
2021-22 

viii. Undertake a constitution 
review and implement 
outcomes 

114



Page 3 
 

3. Supporting communities 

Inherent 
risk score 

Current circumstances Risk control 
Residual 
risk score 

Action required 

 
Likelihood 3  

x 
Impact 4 

= 
Very High 

12 
 
 
 
 

 

Communities are likely to be 
negatively impacted due to 
Covid-19 further still as the 
national and local economy 
shrinks. This will create 
additional pressures on local 
businesses and job security. 

A. Review and application of the Council’s Local Plan, including 
active monitoring of the implementation 

B. Clear and agreed transformation objectives 
C. SK Community focussed initiatives and funding streams 

targeted at supporting voluntary and community sectors  
D. “InvestSK” as a local community/economy growth 

accelerator  
E. Corporate Plan (recently revised) including key priorities:  

− Growth and the Economy  

− Housing that meets the needs of all Residents  

− Healthy and Strong Communities  

− Clean and Sustainable Environment  

− High Performing Council 
F. Community liaison officers/leads 
G. Customer Experience Strategy (how they access services 

etc) 
H. ICT Strategy 
I. Customer satisfaction feedback monitored to drive change 
J. Close working partnership with the Police 
K. New cultural strategy 
L. Corporate Plan 2021-2023 
 
 
 

 
Likelihood 2 

x 
Impact 3 

= 
Medium 6 

 
 
 
 
 

 

i. Create a clear set of service plans, 
with KPIs supporting the outcomes 
from the Corporate Plan to enable 
monitoring of progress, outcomes 
and ensure accountability   

ii. Develop strategy to invest in high 
quality leisure facilities across the 
district 

iii. Implement the Covid-19 Recovery 
Plan 

iv. Regeneration of Grantham Town 
Centre supported by the Future 
High Street fund 

v. Identify funding and other 
opportunities to support 
development of Bourne, Stamford 
and Market Deeping town centres 

vi. Review the scope and focus of 
InvestSK to maximise the support 
to local businesses and attract 
inward investment 

vii. Implement key actions for future 
proofing waste service delivery 

viii. Undertake a planning review to 
improve performance and support 
local sustainable, high quality 
growth 

ix. Undertake a housing review to 
provide highest quality service to 
tenants 

x. Continue to work in partnership 
with the police and the 
community in tackling crime by 
investing in the CCTV service 

  

115



Page 4 
 

4. Achieving future financial resilience 

Inherent 
risk score 

Current circumstances Risk control 
Residual 
risk score 

Action required 

 
Likelihood 3  

x 
Impact 4 

= 
Very High 

12 

 
 
 
 

 

The likely economic slowdown 
that has been predicted as a 
result of Covid-19 has the 
potential to weaken the 
Medium Term Financial Plan 
(MTFP) as the opportunity to 
generate new income streams 
could be now be less as the 
economy shrinks, coupled with 
the potential for further need to 
support communities due to 
closure of local businesses and 
job losses. In the longer term it 
is likely that austerity measures 
will return.  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A. Annual review of MTFP updating the three year horizon 
scan including reserve levels and future changes to funding   

B. Annual budget setting for revenue and capital including 
funding    

C. Utilisation of external financial support that provides 
support for funding modelling    

D. Regular budget monitoring reports and updates to senior 
officers and Members   

E. Effective delivery of the transformation plan that includes 
actions that will support the closing of future budget gaps    

F. Treasury Management Strategy to ensure the Council are 
acting within the prudential indicators    

G. Development of savings plans and invest to save initiatives 
H. Maintain appropriate level of financial reserves as 

contingency arrangements to provide resilience over the 
medium term  

I. Development of capital plans in accordance with Capital 
Strategy with full financial appraisal and revenue 
implications 

 
Likelihood 2 

x 
Impact 3 

= 
Medium 6 

 
 
 
 
 

 

i. Continuation of the 
development of the strategic 
finance risk profile/register 

ii. Undertake stress testing on the 
MTFP using various scenarios 

iii. Evaluation of capital scoring 
and appraisal methodology to 
ensure capital schemes support 
the outcomes of the Corporate 
Plan      

116



Page 5 
 

5. Creating the right culture, capacity and capability 

Inherent 
risk score 

Current circumstances Risk control 
Residual 
risk score 

Action required 

 
Likelihood 3  

x 
Impact 3 

= 
High 9 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

There have been a number of 
recent management changes, 
coupled with the continued 
impact of Covid-19, which has 
created some elements of 
uncertainty, whether real or 
perceived, and this can 
undermine resilience of staff. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A. The staff requisition process (assessment of needs and 
business case re posts)   

B. Culture change workshops/action plan to enhance mindsets, 
encourage collaboration and engender a culture that 
enables change and innovation   

C. Mapping of talent to corporate strategy as part of resource 
determination 

D. Learning and development programme providing training, 
tools and techniques to develop the necessary skills    

E. Check-ins (PDRs) 
F. People and Organisational Development Strategy revised 

and issued   
G. Investigation and identification of further collaborations 

that will support building capacity and capability (and 
resilience) including both public and corporate business 

H. Corporate Plan 2021-2023 
 

 
Likelihood 2 

x 
Impact 3 

= 
Medium 6 

 
 
 
 
 

 

i. Review People and 
Organisational Development 
Strategy to include a pay 
review and agile working styles 

ii. Undertake an assessment of 
Council corporate resilience 
with a view to creating a 
programme of learning and 
development that will 
strengthen individual coping 
strategies and performance 

iii. Implement the Covid-19 
Recovery Plan 

iv. Undertake a fundamental 
review of the organisation to 
meet current and future needs 

v. Embedding of new Council 
structure 

vi. Progress learnings from 
employee survey 

vii. Undertake leading and 
developing programmes 
including fostering leadership 
skills 

viii. Embed positive member/ 
officer relationship 

117



Page 6 
 

6. Ability to be agile and shift focus in response to policy and national political change 

Inherent 
risk score 

Current circumstances Risk control 
Residual 
risk score 

Action required 

 
Likelihood 3  

x 
Impact 4 

= 
Very High 

12 
 
 
 
 

 

There are three dimensions that 
should be recognised at this 
point:  
  
- The ongoing impact of Covid-

19 and how this will impact on 
government priorities and 
planning  
 

- The potential for a further 
economic financial crisis, 
including likely future 
austerity measures  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A. Continuous monitoring of political landscape to allow for 
early indicators of policy change  

B. Prudent financial and strategy assumptions to allow for agile 
responses (see controls under Risk 4 re MTFP) 

C. Corporate Plan 2020-2023 reviewed and updated where 
appropriate as changes identified that could impact on the 
Council and its plans ie Covid-19 

D. Section 151 Officer role providing advice to the Council on 
current/ future financial challenges 

E. Monitoring Officer role providing advice to the Council on 
current/future legal challenges 

F. Reports to committee include explicit assessment of 
implications and therefore should identify/reflect current 
and future challenges 

G. Executive to undertake horizon scanning look out/forwards 
and identify possible challenges ahead 

H. Membership of Local Government Association etc providing 
information/insights to the Council 

I. Members roles and responsibilities including involvement in 
local networks, County Council, other agencies and national 
forums, enabling insight to be gained and shared with the 
Council  

J. Staff membership of professional bodies enabling own 
development and also providing for insights through 
membership of challenges that may present themselves to 
the Council 

K. Officer/member forums and networks including County 
Council, other Lincolnshire Councils and wider agencies for 
purpose of collaboratively tackling issues etc 

 
Likelihood 2 

x 
Impact 4 

= 
Medium 8 

 
 
 
 
 

 

i. Develop stakeholder map/ 
engagement plan to identify 
key individuals/organisations 

ii. Establish, maintain and 
monitor a list of “emerging 
risks” and undertake scenario 
planning 

 

118



 

 

 

Governance and Audit 
Committee 

4 February 2021 

Report of: Councillor Adam Stokes 
  Cabinet Member for Finance and 

Resources 

           

 

2021-22 Treasury Management Strategy 

This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to produce 
A Treasury Management Strategy for each financial year.  This report meets the requirements of 
the CIPFA code of practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and Government Investment 
Guidance. 

 

 

Report Author 

Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 

 
01476 406208 

 alison.hall-wright@southkesteven.gov.uk  

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Budget and Policy 
Framework 

All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Claire Morgan, Senior Accountant 21 January 2021 

Approved by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 22 January 2021 

Signed off by: Councillor Adam Stokes, Cabinet Member for Finance 
and Resources 

26 January 2021 

 

Recommendation to the decision maker 

1. Recommends to Council that the 2021-22 Treasury Management Strategy is 
approved. 

 

119

Agenda Item 11

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 The CIPFA Treasury Management Code defines treasury management activities as:  

“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money 

market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with 

those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks”.  

1.2 The CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management in the Public Services (the “CIPFA 

Treasury Management Code”) and the CIPFA Prudential Code require local authorities to 

produce a Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) on an annual basis.   

1.3 The TMSS details the investment and borrowing policies that the Council will follow during 

2021/22.  The CIPFA code and MHCLG statutory guidance also requires the Council to 

have a policy on non-treasury investments which is included in approved by Council on 2 

March 2020. 

1.4 The TMSS sets out the counterparties that the Council will invest with and the limits that will 

be invested with each counterparty.  The main change to the 2021-22 TMSS is the limit that 

the Council can invest with a body of high credit quality.   It is proposed that this limit is 

increased from £10m to £15m and the Corporate Group limit is increased from £12m to 

£15m. 

1.5 The changes to the limits are proposed as the level of investments held by the Council 

during the year have been higher than anticipated and this is causing operating restrictions 

where the investments can be placed.  It is therefore to expand the investment portfolio to 

ensure an even spread of risk.    

1.6 The TMSS also details a change to Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) lending terms which 

were implemented by Government alongside a rate reduction of 1% on 26 November 2020.  

The main point to note is the new terms remove the ability for any Council to access PWLB 

borrowing if the borrowing request is associated with plans to purchase any investment 

assets primarily for yield over a three year period. 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 Governance and Audit committee is responsible for reviewing the Treasury Management 

Strategy so are a key consultee prior to approval by Council. 

3 Available Options Considered 

3.1 N/A 

4 Preferred Option 

4.1 N/A 

5 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

5.1 The Council is required to produce and approve a Treasury Management Strategy as part 

of the treasury management reporting requirements. 

6 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

6.1 The treasury strategy will be presented for approval to Council at their meeting on 1 March 

2021. 

 

120



 

 
 

7 Financial Implications  

7.1 These are considered throughout the report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance  

8 Legal and Governance Implications  

8.1 This report provides details of the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy which forms 

part of the Budget and Policy Framework.  Members should scrutinise any elements which 

will assist the role of the Governance and Audit Committee in its review of the Treasury 

Management Strategy. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance 

9 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

9.1 Not applicable. 

10 Risk and Mitigation 

10.1 Risk has been considered as part of this report and any specific high risks are included in 

the table below: 

Category Action/Controls 

Financial Risk The treasury strategy has been compiled in 
conjunction with the Council’s treasury 
advisors and is monitored by the committee 
on a regular basis. 

 

11 Community Safety Implications  

11.1 Not applicable. 

12 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

12.1 None. 

13 Other Implications (where significant)  

13.1 None. 

14 Background Papers 

14.1 2020/21 Capital Strategy 

http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s25015/Appendix%20F%20-

%20Capital%20Strategy.pdf 

15 Appendices 

15.1 Appendix A – 2021-22 Treasury Management Strategy 

 

 

 

121

http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s25015/Appendix%20F%20-%20Capital%20Strategy.pdf
http://moderngovsvr:8080/documents/s25015/Appendix%20F%20-%20Capital%20Strategy.pdf


 

 
 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

N/A 

Previously Considered by: Governance and 
Audit Committee 

N/A 

Final Decision date   1 March 2021 

 

122



Treasury Management Strategy Report 2021-22 
 
1. Introduction 
 
 Background 
 
1.1 The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that cash 

raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management 
operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with cash being 
available when it is needed.  Surplus monies are invested in low risk counterparties 
or instruments commensurate with the Council’s low risk appetite, providing adequate 
liquidity initially before considering investment return. 

 
1.2 The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the 

Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of 
the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that the Council 
can meet its capital spending obligations.  This management of longer term cash may 
involve arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses.   
On occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or 
cost objectives.  

 
1.3 CIPFA defines treasury management as: 

 
“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent 
with those risks.” 

 
Reporting Requirements 

 
1.4 The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main reports 

each year, which incorporate a variety of polices, estimates and actuals.   
 

• Prudential and treasury indicators and treasury strategy (this report) - The 
first, and most important report covers: 

• the capital plans (including prudential indicators); 

• a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy (how residual capital expenditure 
is charged to revenue over time); 

• the treasury management strategy (how the investments and borrowings are 
to be organised) including treasury indicators; and  

• an investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be 
managed). 

 

• A mid year treasury management report – This will update members with the 
progress of the capital position, amending prudential indicators as necessary, 
and whether any policies require revision.   

 

• An annual treasury report – This provides details of a selection of actual 
prudential and treasury indicators and actual treasury operations compared to 
the estimates within the strategy. 

 
1.5 Governance and Audit Committee – As part of the Committee’s terms of reference 

the above reports are presented to them for consideration and scrutinity during the 

123

Appendix A



year.  The Committee also has delegated authority to approve any in year 
amendments to the Treasury Management Strategy as requested by officers.  

 
1.6 The CIPFA 2017 Prudential and Treasury Management Codes requires all local 

authorities to prepare a capital strategy report which will provide the following:  
 

• a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury 
management activity contribute to the provision of services 

• an overview of how the associated risk is managed 

• the implications for future financial sustainability 
 

1.7 The aim of the Capital Strategy report is to ensure that all elected members on the 
full council fully understand the overall strategy, governance procedures and risk 
appetite.  

  
1.8 The Capital Strategy is reported separately from the Treasury Management Strategy 

Statement; non-treasury investments will be reported through the Capital Strategy. 
This ensures the separation of the core treasury function under security, liquidity and 
yield principles, and the policy and commercialism investments usually driven by 
expenditure on an asset.  The Capital Strategy for the period 2020/21 – 2022/23 was 
approved by Council on 2 March 2020 and will be reviewed later this year. 

Treasury Management Strategy for 2021-22 

1.9 The strategy for 2021-22 covers two main areas: 
 

Capital issues 

• the capital plans and the prudential indicators; 

• the minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy. 

 

Treasury management issues 

• the current treasury position; 

• treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council; 

• prospects for interest rates; 

• the borrowing strategy; 

• policy on borrowing in advance of need; 

• debt rescheduling; 

• the investment strategy; 

• creditworthiness policy; and 

• policy on use of external service providers. 

 

1.10 These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the 
CIPFA Prudential Code, MHCLG MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management 
Code and  MHCLG Investment Guidance. 

Training 

1.11 The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that members with 
responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training in treasury 
management.  This especially applies to members responsibe for scrutiny.  Training 
is provided to  members of Governance and Audit by the Council’s treasury advisors 
and further training will be arranged as required in accordance with Covid-19 

124



limitations. The training needs of treasury management officers are periodically 
reviewed.  

Treasury management consultants 

1.12 The Council uses Link Group, Treasury Solutions as its external treasury 
management advisors.   

 
1.13 The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions 

remains with the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not 
placed upon our external service providers.  

 
1.14 It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury 

management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. The 
Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which their 
value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented, and subjected to regular 
review.  

 
2 The Capital Prudential Indicators 2021-22 to 2023-24 

 

Introduction 

2.1 The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management 
activity.  The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected in prudential 
indicators, which are designed to assist members’ overview and confirm capital 
expenditure plans. 

Capital Expenditure   

2.2 This prudential indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure plans, both 
those agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget cycle.  Members are 
asked to approve the capital expenditure forecasts: 

 

Capital Expenditure 
 

2020/21 
Provisional 

Outturn  
£m 

2021/22 
Estimated 

£m 

2022/23 
Estimated 

£m 

2023/24 
Estimated 

£m 

Non-HRA 3.041 4.093 2.577 2.419 

HRA 3.377 20.993 25.089 28.834 

Total 6.418 25.086 27.666 31.253 

2.3 The table below summarises the above capital expenditure plans and how these plans 
are being financed by capital or revenue resources. Any shortfall of resources results 
in a funding borrowing need.  

Financing of capital 
expenditure 

2020/21 
Provisional  

Outturn  
£m 

2021/22 
Estimated 

£m 

2022/23 
Estimated 

£m 

2023/24 
Estimated 

£m 

Capital receipts 

reserve 

1.218 4.286 3.988 2.616 

Capital grants 0.850 3.539 4.498 5.076 

Reserves 4.350 17.261 19.180 11.040 

Net financing need 

for the year 

0 0 0 12.521 

125



The Council’s Borrowing Need (the Capital Financing Requirement) 

2.4 The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR).  The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which has 
not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital resources.  It is essentially a 
measure of Council’s underlying borrowing need.  Any capital expenditure above, 
which has not immediately been paid for, will increase the CFR.   

2.5 The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the minimum revenue provision (MRP) is 
a statutory annual revenue charge which broadly reduces the borrowing need in line 
with each asset life, and so charges the economic consumption of capital assets as 
they are used. 

2.6 The CFR includes any other long-term liabilities (e.g. PFI schemes, finance leases).  
Whilst these increase the CFR, and therefore the Council’s borrowing requirement, 
these types of scheme include a borrowing facility and so the Council is not required 
to separately borrow for these schemes.  The Council currently has no such schemes 
within the CFR. 

2.7 The Council is asked to approve the CFR projections below: 

 2020/21 
Revised  

£m 

2021/22 
Estimated 

£m 

2022/23 
Estimated 

£m 

2023/24 
Estimated 

£m 

Capital Financing Requirement 

Closing CFR – Non 

Housing 

11.412 11.115 10.824 10.538 

Closing CFR - 

Housing 

96.404 93.182 89.960 99.259 

Total CFR 107.816 104.297 100.784 109.797 

Opening CFR 111.180 107.816 104.297 100.784 

Movement in CFR (3.364) (3.519) (3.513) 9.013 

 

 2020/21 
Revised  

£m 

2021/22 
Estimated 

£m 

2022/23 
Estimated 

£m 

2023/24 
Estimated 

£m 

Movement in CFR represented by 

Net financing need 
for the year  

0 0 0 12.521 

Repayment of HRA 
Borrowing 

(3.222) (3.222) (3.222) (3.222) 

Less MRP/VRP and 
other financing 
movements 

(142) (297) (291) (286) 

Movement in CFR (3.364) (3.519) (3.513) 9.013 

Core Funds and Expected Investment Balances 

2.8 The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either finance capital 
expenditure or other budget decisions to support the revenue budget will have an 
ongoing impact on investments unless resources are supplemented each year from 
new sources (asset sales etc.).  Detailed below are estimates of the year end 
balances for each resource and anticipated day to day cash flow balances. 

126



 

 Year End 
Resources 
 

2020/21 
Revised  

£m 

2021/22 
Estimated 

£m 

2022/23 
Estimated 

£m 

2023/24 
Estimated 

£m 

General Fund 

balances 

13.114 12.643 11.950 10.710 

Capital reserves – 

General Fund  

2.259 0.973 0.578 0.288 

Capital reserves – 

HRA 

6.640 5.398 5.260 6.417 

HRA reserve 14.758 8.537 0.030 0.030 

Major Repairs 

Reserve 

16.385 12.965 9.741 7.094 

Total Core Funds 53.156 40.516 27.559 24.539 

Working Capital - 

GF* 

1.455 1.392 1.392 1.392 

Working Capital - 

HRA* 

2.118 1.562 1.359 1.365 

Expected 

Investments 

56.729 43.470 30.310 27.296 

* Working capital balances shown are estimated year end; these may be higher mid-year.  

3 Borrowing 
 
3.1 An underpinning principle of the local authority financial system is that all capital 

expenditure has to be financed either from capital receipts, capital grants (or other 
contributions) or eventually from revenue income. The broad aim of prudent provision 
is to require local authorities to put aside revenue over time to cover their Capital 
Financing requirements. In doing so, local authorities should align the period over 
which they charge MRP to one that is commensurate with the period over which their 
capital expenditure provides benefits. 

 
3.2 All future capital acquisitions that are financed through prudential borrowing will be 

required to demonstrate affordability but the extent that MRP is accounted for will be 
determined on a case by case basis and be in accordance with the four options set 
out in the statutory guidance. It is expected that the calculation method adopted will 
be the asset life method which allows the MRP provision to be based on the estimated 
useful life of the asset. 

3.3 During the year it is anticipated that there will be a requirement to undertake borrowing 
to fund capital expenditure and this will impact on the prudential indicators that are 
presented in the current version of the Treasury Management Strategy. This will 
require approval to amend the relevant prudential indicators and these will be 
presented as part of the business case for the relevant proposal. It is proposed that 
changes to the Treasury Management Strategy during the year are considered and 
approved by Cabinet and Governance & Audit Committee as necessary. 

 
Debt and Investment Projections  

3.4 The capital expenditure plans set out in Section 1 provide details of the service activity 
of the Council.  The treasury management function ensures that the Council’s cash is 
organised in accordance with the the relevant professional codes, so that sufficient 

127



cash is available to meet this service activity.  This will involve both the organisation 
of the cash flow and, where capital plans require, the organisation of approporiate 
borrowing facilities.  The strategy covers the relevant treasury / prudential indicators, 
the current and projected debt positions and the annual investment strategy. 

Current Portfolio Position 

3.5 The Councils forecast treasury portfolio position at 31 March 2021, with forward 
projections are summarised below.  The table shows the actual external debt (the 
treasury management operations), against the underlying capital borrowing need 
(CFR), highlighting any over or under borrowing. 

 

 2020/21 
Revised  

£m 

2021/22 
Estimated 

£m 

2022/23 
Estimated 

£m 

2023/24 
Estimated 

£m 

External Debt 

Existing Debt at 1 

April  

95.878 92.656 89.434 86.212 

Expected change in 

debt 

0.000 0.000 0.000 12.521 

HRA Settlement (3.222) (3.222) (3.222) (3.222) 

Debt at 31 March 92.656 89.434 86.212 95.511 

Closing CFR 107.816 104.297 100.784 109.797 

Under / (over) 

borrowing 

15.160 14.863 14.572 14.286 

 

3.6 Within the above figures there is no debt to commercial activities / non-financial 
investment. 

3.7 Within the prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to ensure that 
the Council operates its activities within well-defined limits.  One of these is that the 
Council needs to ensure that its gross debt does not, except in the short term, exceed the 
total of CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2021/22 
and the following two financial years This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing 
for future years, but ensures that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue purposes 

3.8 The Section 151 Officer reports that the Council complied with this prudential indicator 
in the current year and does not envisage difficulties for the future.  This view takes 
into account current commitments, existing plans, and the proposals in this budget 
report 

Treasury Indicators: Limits to Borrowing Activity 

3.9 The operational boundary and authorised limit have been increased to reflect the 
potential borrowing requirements that may be considered in order to facilitate the 
delivery of the leisure and strategic land acquisition projects. Any capital schemes 
that have borrowing implications will be fully evaluated to identify the overall impact 
on the prudential indicators. 

3.10 The Operational Boundary.  This is the limit beyond which external debt is not 
normally expected to exceed.  In most cases, this would be a similar figure to the 
CFR, but may be lower or higher depending on the levels of actual debt. 

128



 

Operational 
Boundary  

2020/21 
Revised  

£m 

2021/22 
Estimated 

£m 

2022/23 
Estimated 

£m 

2023/24 
Estimated 

£m 

General Fund 15.000 15.000 22.000 30.000 

HRA  100.000 100.000 115.000 120.000 

Other long-term 

liabilities 

 

0.000 

 

0.000 

 

0.000 

 

0.000 

Total 115.000 115.000 137.000 150.000 

 

3.11 The operational boundary will be reviewed on an individual project basis as required.  

3.12 The Authorised Limit for External Debt – This is a key prudential indicator and 
represents a control on the maximum level of borrowing. This represents a limit 
beyond which external debt is prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or revised by 
the full Council.  It reflects the level of external debt which, while not desired, could 
be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term.  

3.13 This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 
2003. The Government retains an option to control either the total of all councils’ 
plans, or those of a specific council, although no control has yet been exercised.  

3.14 The Council is asked to approve the following authorised limit: 

 

Authorised limit  2020/21 
Revised  

£m 

2021/22 
Estimated 

£m 

2022/23 
Estimated 

£m 

2023/24 
Estimated 

£m 

General Fund 33.000 33.000 40.000 48.000 

HRA  108.765 115.000 120.000 125.000 

Other long-term 

liabilities 

 

0.000 

 

0.000 

 

0.000 

 

0.000 

Total 141.765 148.000 160.000 173.000 

 
Prospects for Interest Rates  

 

3.15 The Council utilises the services of pointed Link Group as its treasury advisor and 
part of their service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates.  The 
following table gives the current Link central view: 

 

Annual Average % Bank Rate PWLB Borrowing Rates 
(including certainty rate adjustment) 

  5 year 25 year 50 year 

Dec 2020 0.10 0.80 1.50 1.30 

Mar 2021 0.10 0.80 1.50 1.30 

Jun 2021 0.10 0.80 1.60 1.40 

Sep 2021 0.10 0.80 1.60 1.40 

129



Dec 2021 0.10 0.80 1.60 1.40 

Mar 2022 0.10 0.90 1.60 1.40 

Jun 2022 0.10 0.90 1.70 1.50 

Sep 2022 0.10 0.90 1.70 1.50 

Dec 2022 0.10 0.90 1.70 1.50 

Mar 2023 0.10 0.90 1.70 1.50 

Jun 2023 0.10 1.00 1.80 1.60 

Sep 2023 0.10 1.00 1.80 1.60 

Dec 2023 0.10 1.00 1.80 1.60 

Mar 2024 0.10 1.00 1.80 1.60 

3.16 The PWLB forecasts are based on the Certainty Rate (minus 20 bps) which has been 
accessible to most authorities since 1 November 2012.  

 
3.17 The Coronavirus outbreak has had a significant economic impact to the UK and 

economies around the world. The Bank of England took emergency action in March 
to cut Bank Rate to first 0.25%, and then to 0.10%, the rate has remained unchanged 
throughout the year.  As shown in the forecast table above, no increase in Bank Rate 
is expected as economic recovery is expected to be only gradual and, therefore, 
prolonged. 

 
Borrowing Strategy 2021/22 – 2022/23 

3.18 The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position.  This means that the 
capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not been fully 
funded with loan debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances and cash 
flow has been used as a temporary measure.  This strategy is prudent as investment 
returns are low and counterparty risk is still an issue that needs to be considered.   

3.19 When the Council is considering undertaking borrowing to fund the capital 
programme, projects or to fund future debt maturities a clear business case must be 
developed.  The business case will need to take into consideration, the revenue 
consequences of the borrowing including interest payable, MRP and any future 
income to be generated from the project.  Borrowing can then be undertaken where 
there is a clear business case and affordability is demonstrated 

3.20 Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will be 
adopted with the 2021/22 treasury operations.  The Section 151 and Deputy Section 
151 Officers will monitor  interest rates in financial markets and adopt a pragmatic 
approach to changing circumstances: 

• if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in borrowing rates, 
(e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around relapse into recession or of risks 
of deflation), then borrowing will be postponed. 

130



 

• if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in borrowing 
rates than that currently forecast, perhaps arising from an acceleration in the 
rate of increase in central rates in the USA and UK, an increase in world 
economic activity, or a sudden increase in inflation risks, then the portfolio 
position will be re-appraised. Most likely, fixed rate funding will be drawn whilst 
interest rates are lower than they are projected to be in the next few years. 

 

3.21 The option of postponing borrowing and running down investment balances will also 
be considered.  This would reduce counterparty risk and hedge against the expected 
fall in investments returns. 

3.22 Any borrowing decisions will be reported to the Governance and Audit Committee at 
the next available opportunity. 

 

Policy on Borrowing in Advance of need 

3.23 The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to 
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in 
advance will be within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates, 
and will be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be demonstrated 
and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds.  

 
3.24 The Section 151 or Deputy section 151 Officer may do this under delegated power 

where, for instance, a sharp rise in interest rates is expected, and so borrowing early 
at fixed interest rates will be economically beneficial or meet budgetary constraints.  
Whilst the Section 151 or Deputy section 151 Officer will adopt a cautious approach 
to any such borrowing, where there is a clear business case for doing so borrowing 
may be undertaken to fund the approved capital programme or to fund future debt 
maturities.  It would not look to borrow more than 24 months in advance of need. 

3.25 Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior 
appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting 
mechanism. 

Debt Rescheduling  

3.26 Rescheduling of current borrowing in our debt portfolio is unlikely to occur as the 100 
bps increase in PWLB rates only applied to new borrowing rates and not to premature 
debt repayment rates. 

 
3.27 If rescheduling was done, it will be reported to the Governance and Audit Committee 

at the earliest meeting following its action. 
 

New financial institutions as a source of borrowing and/or types of borrowing 
 
3.28 Currently the PWLB Certainty Rate is set at gilts + 80 basis points for both HRA and 

non-HRA borrowing.  However, consideration may still need to be given to sourcing 
funding from the following sources for the following reasons: 

 

• Local authorities (primarily shorter dated maturities) 

• Financial institutions (primarily insurance companies and pension funds but also 
some banks, out of spot or forward dates where the objective is to avoid a “cost 
of carry” or to achieve refinancing certainty over the next few years) 

• Municipal Bonds Agency (possibly still a viable alternative depending on market 
circumstances prevailing at the time). 

131



 
3.29 Our advisors will keep us informed as to the relative merits of each of these alternative 

funding sources. 

Approved Sources of Long and Short term Borrowing 

On Balance Sheet Fixed Variable 
   

PWLB • • 

Municipal bond agency  • • 

Local authorities • • 

Banks • • 

Pension funds • • 

Insurance companies • • 

 

Market (long-term) • • 

Market (temporary) • • 

Market (LOBOs) • • 

Stock issues • • 

 

Local temporary • • 

Local Bonds • 

Local authority bills                                                               •  • 

Overdraft  • 

Negotiable Bonds • • 

 

Internal (capital receipts & revenue balances) • • 

Commercial Paper • 

Medium Term Notes •  

Finance leases • • 

 
PWLB amended lending terms 
 
On 26 November 2020 the government reduced Public Works Loan Board (PWLB) 

lending rates by 1% alongside new lending terms.  The key features of the new terms 

are as follows: 

• Councils will be required to submit a 3 year high-level capital spending and 
financing plans. 

• S151 officers will need to confirm that there is no intention to buy investments 
assets primarily for yield at any point in the three year period. 

• As it is not possible to reliably link loans to specific spending plans, this 
restriction applies to the whole programme so the PWLB will not lend to any 
Council which plans to buy investment assets primarily for yield anywhere in 
their capital plans regardless of the source the asset would notionally be 
financed from. 

4 Annual Investment Strategy  

Investment Policy and Counterparty Selection Criteria  

4.1 The Council’s investment policy has regard to the MHCLG’s Guidance on Local 
Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the CIPFA Treasury Management in 
Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes 2018 (“the 

132



CIPFA TM Code”).  The Council’s investment priorities will be security first, portfolio 
liquidity second, then yield. 

 
4.2 In accordance with the above guidance from the MHCLG and CIPFA, and in order to 

minimise the risk to investments, the Council applies minimum acceptable credit 
criteria in order to generate a list of highly creditworthy counterparties which also 
enables diversification and thus avoidance of concentration risk. The key ratings used 
to monitor counterparties are the Short Term and Long Term ratings. 

 
4.3 Ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an institution; it is important 

to continually assess and monitor the financial sector on both a micro and macro basis 
and in relation to the economic and political environments in which institutions 
operate.  The assessment will also take account of information that reflects the opinion 
of the markets. To this end the Council will engage with its advisors to maintain a 
monitor on market pricing such as “credit default swaps” and overlay that information 
on top of the credit ratings.  

 
4.4 Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price and other 

such information pertaining to the banking sector in order to establish the most robust 
scrutiny process on the suitability of potential investment counterparties.  

 
4.5 Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed in Appendix 3 

under the ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investment categories.  Counterparty limits 
will be as set through the Council’s treasury management practices-schedules.  

Creditworthiness policy  

4.6 This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Link Group.  This 
service employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising credit ratings from the 
three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s.  The 
credit ratings of counterparties are supplemented with the following overlays:  

• credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies; 

• CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings; 

• sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy 
countries. 

4.7 This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit Watches and credit 
Outlooks in a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of 
CDS spreads for which the end product is a series of colour coded bands which 
indicate the relative creditworthiness of counterparties.  These colour codes are 
used by the Council to determine the suggested duration for investments.   The 
Council will therefore use counterparties within the following durational bands: 

• Yellow 5 years * 

• Dark pink 5 years for Enhanced money market funds (EMMFs) with a credit 
score of 1.25 

• Light pink 5 years for Enhanced money market funds (EMMFs) with a credit 
score of 1.5 

• Purple  2 years 

• Blue  1 year (only applies to nationalised or semi nationalised UK Banks) 

• Orange 1 year 

• Red  6 months 

• Green  100 days   

133



• No colour  not to be used  
 

4.8 The Link Group creditworthiness service uses a wider array of information than just 
primary ratings. Furthermore, by using a risk weighted scoring system, it does not 
give undue importance  to just one agency’s ratings. 

4.9 Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will be a Short Term rating 
(Fitch or equivalents) of  F1 and a Long Term rating of A-. There may be occasions 
when the counterparty ratings from one agency are marginally lower than these 
ratings but may still be used.   In these instances consideration will be given to the 
whole range of ratings available, or other topical market information, to support their 
use. 

4.10 All credit ratings are monitored daily. The Council is alerted to changes to ratings of 
all three agencies through its use of the Link creditworthiness service.  

• if a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer 
meeting the Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment will 
be withdrawn immediately. 

• in addition to the use of credit ratings the Council will be advised of information 
in movements in credit default swap spreads against the iTraxx benchmark and 
other market data on a weekly basis via its Passport website, provided 
exclusively to it by Link. Extreme market movements may result in downgrade 
of an institution or removal from the Council’s lending list. 

4.11 Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service.  In addition this 
Council will also use market data and market information, information on any external 
support for banks to help support its decision making process.   

4.12 The Treasury Management Officer will use the Link Credit Rating weekly listing as a 
tool for guidance, with the option to deviate from this guidance only when there are 
clear alternative options that are available to the Council.  Any decision of this nature 
should be clearly documented for audit purposes.  

 
Investment Strategy  

4.13 In-house funds. Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and 
cash flow requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates for 
investments up to 12 months). Greater returns are usually obtainable by investing for 
longer periods. While most cash balances are required in order to manage the 
councils cashflow, where cash sums can be identified that could be invested for longer 
periods, the value to be obtained from longer term investments will be carefully 
assessed.  

• If it is thought that Bank Rate is likely to rise significantly within the time horizon 
being considered, then consideration will be given to keeping most investments 
as being short term or variable.  

Y Pi1 Pi2 P B O R G N/C

1 1.25 1.5 2 3 4 5 6 7

Up to 5yrs Up to 5yrs Up to 5yrs Up to 2yrs Up to 1yr Up to 1yr Up to 6mths Up to 100days No Colour

134



• Conversely, if it is thought that Bank Rate is likely to fall within that time period, 
consideration will be given to locking in higher rates currently obtainable, for 
longer periods. 

Investment returns expectations.  
 

4.14 Bank Rate is unlikely to rise from 0.10% for a considerable period so it would be 
prudent to assume that investment earnings from money market-related instruments 
will be below 0.50% for the foreseeable future.  

4.15 The suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on investments placed 
for periods up to about three months during each financial year are as follows (the 
long-term forecast is for periods over 10 years in the future):  

 
 

Average earnings in 
each year 

Link Group Budgeted* 

2020/21 0.10% 0.95% 

2021/22 0.10% 0.25% 

2022/23 0.10% 0.40% 

2023/24 0.25% 0.50% 

2024/25 0.75% - 

Long term later years 2.00% - 

*budgeted rates are higher than Link’s due to the quarterly dividend received from the Property 
Fund 

• The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is probably relatively even 
but is subject to major uncertainty due to the virus.  

 

• There is relatively little UK domestic risk of increases or decreases in Bank Rate and 
shorter term PWLB rates until 2023/24 at the earliest. 

Negative investment rates 

4.16 While the Bank of England announced in August / September 2020 that it is unlikely 
to introduce a negative Bank Rate, at least in the next 6 -12 months, some deposit 
accounts are already offering negative rates for shorter periods.  As part of the 
response to the pandemic and lockdown, the Bank and the Government have 
provided financial markets and businesses with plentiful access to credit, either 
directly or through commercial banks.  In addition, the Government has provided large 
sums of grants to local authorities to help deal with the COVID crisis; this has caused 
some local authorities to have sudden large increases in cash balances searching for 
an investment home, some of which was only very short term until those sums were 
able to be passed on.  

4.17 Money Market Funds (MMFs), yields have continued to reduce with some funds 
offering nil or negative rates for very short-term maturities. This is not universal, and 
MMFs are still offering a marginally positive return, as are a number of financial 
institutions for investments at the very short end of the yield curve.  

4.18 Inter-local authority lending and borrowing rates have also declined due to the surge 
in the levels of cash councils are wanting to invest for short periods.   

4.19 Investment treasury indicator and limit - total principal funds invested for greater 
than 365 days. These limits are set with regard to the Council’s liquidity requirements 
and to reduce the need for early sale of an investment, and are based on the 
availability of funds after each year-end. 

4.20 The Council is asked to approve the treasury indicator and limit: - 

135



 

Maximum principal sums invested > 365 days 

 2021/22 
£m 

2022/23 
£m 

2023/24 
£m 

Principal sums invested > 365 days 15.000 15.000 15.000 

4.21 For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its instant 
access and notice accounts, money market funds and short-dated deposits, 
(overnight to 100 days), in order to benefit from the compounding of interest.   

Investment Risk Benchmarking  

4.22 These benchmarks are simple guides to maximum risk, so may be breached from 
time to time, depending on movements in interest rates and counterparty criteria.  
The purpose of the benchmark is that officers will monitor the current and trend 
position and amend the operational strategy to manage risk as conditions change. 
Any breach of the benchmarks will be reported, with supporting reasons in the Mid-
Year or Annual Report. 

Security - The Council’s maximum security risk benchmark for the current portfolio, 
when compared to these historic default tables, is: 

• 0.012% historic risk of default when compared to the whole portfolio. 

Liquidity – In respect of this area the Council seeks to maintain: 

• Bank overdraft - £0.5m 

• Liquid short-term deposits of at least £9m available with a week’s 
notice. 

• Weighted Average Life benchmark is not expected to exceed a 
maximum of 1 year. 

Yield - Local measures of yield benchmarks are: 

• Investments – Internal returns above the 7-day LIBID rate 

• Investments – External fund managers - returns 110% above 7-day 
compounded LIBID. 

4.23 And in addition, that the security benchmark for each individual year is: 

 1 year 2 years 3 years 4 years 5 years 

Maximum 0.05% 0.15% 0.28% 0.42% 0.59% 

Note: This benchmark is an average risk of default measure (potential loss on 
investments) and would not constitute an expectation of loss against a particular 
investment.   

End of year Investment Report 

4.24 At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment activity as 
part of its Annual Treasury Report. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

136



Appendix 1 

THE MRP STATEMENT  

Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy statement  

The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General Fund capital 
spend each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the Minimum Revenue Provision - 
MRP), although it is also allowed to undertake additional voluntary revenue payments (VRP) 
if required.  

MHCLG Regulations have been issued which requires Council to approve an MRP 
Statement in advance of each year.  A variety of options are provided to councils, so long 
as there is a prudent provision. The Council is recommended to approve the following MRP 
Statement. 

For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 or which in the future will be Supported 
Capital Expenditure, the MRP policy will be: 

• Existing practice - MRP will follow the existing practice outlined in former MHCLG 
Regulations. 

This option provides for an approximate 4% reduction in the borrowing need (CFR) each 
year. 

From 1 April 2008 for all unsupported borrowing (including PFI and finance leases) the 
MRP policy will be: 

• Asset life method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of the assets, in 
accordance with the regulations (this option must be applied for any 
expenditure capitalised under a Capitalisation Direction) (option 3); 

These options provide for a reduction in the borrowing need over approximately the asset’s 
life.  

There is no requirement on the HRA to make a minimum revenue provision but there is a 
requirement for a charge for depreciation to be made (although there are transitional 
arrangements in place). 

This policy will be regularly reviewed against the MHCLG MRP guidance and will be 
amended if necessary. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

137



Appendix 2 
 

CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL AND TREASURY INDICATORS 2021/22 – 2022/23 
 
Affordability Prudential Indicators 

The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing prudential 
indicators, but within this framework prudential indicators are required to assess the 
affordability of the capital investment plans.   These provide an indication of the impact of 
the capital investment plans on the Council’s overall finances.  The Council is asked to 
approve the following indicators: 

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream 
This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long-term 
obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream. 
 

 2020/21 
Revised  

% 

2021/22 
Estimated 

% 

2022/23 
Estimated 

% 

2023/24 
Estimated 

% 

Non-HRA (1.53) (0.72) (0.80) (0.76) 

HRA 13.72 12.67* 

*this indicator cannot be calculated for 2022/23 and 2023/24 as a one-year budget has been 
set for the HRA 
 
The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the proposals in this 
budget report. 
 
HRA Ratios 
 

 2019/20 
Actual 

2020/21 
Estimate 

2021/22 
Estimate 

2022/23 
Estimate 

2023/24 
Estimate 

HRA debt £m 95.878 92.656 89.434 86.212 95.551 

Number of 
HRA dwellings  

5,971 5,925 5,922 5,946 6,035 

Debt per 
dwelling £ 

16,057 15,638 15,102 14,499 15,833 

 
Maturity Structure of Borrowing 
 
Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s exposure 
to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing, and are required for upper and lower 
limits.   
 

Maturity structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2021/22 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 20% 

12 months to 2 years 0% 20% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 50% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 60% 

10 years and above  0% 80% 

Maturity structure of variable interest rate borrowing 2021/22 

 Lower Upper 

Under 12 months 0% 20% 

138



12 months to 2 years 0% 20% 

2 years to 5 years 0% 20% 

5 years to 10 years 0% 20% 

10 years and above  0% 20% 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

139



Appendix 3 

 
Treasury Management Practice (TMP) 1 – Credit and Counterparty Risk Management 
  
The investment policy proposed for the Council is: 
 
Strategy Guidelines – The main strategy guidelines are contained in the body of the 
treasury strategy statement. 
 
Specified Investments – all such investments will be sterling denominated, with maturities 
up to maximum 1 year, meeting the ‘high’ quality criteria where applicable. 
 
Table A – Specified Investments  
 

 Specified Investments Category Limit 

a A body of high credit quality, this category includes the 
following – 
 
□ Any bank or building society using Sector Creditworthiness 

service, following the suggested duration on the list up to a 
maximum of 365 days. 
 

□ Nationalised and Part nationalised banks can be included 
within specified investments as long as they remain part-
nationalised  

£15m per 
institution or  
a maximum of 
30% of total 
investment 
(whichever is 
the greatest), 
£15m per 
corporate 
group 

b The UK Government (such as the Debt Management Account 
deposit facility, UK Treasury Bills or a Gilt with less than one year 
to maturity) 

 

no amount limit 

c UK local authorities, Parish Council or Community Council 
 

£5m per 
institution 

d Pooled investment vehicles (such as money market funds) that 
have been awarded a high credit rating by a credit rating agency. 
This category covers pooled investment vehicles, such as money 
market funds, rated AAA by Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s or 
Fitch rating agencies. 
CLG Investment Guidance specifies that Money Market Funds 
with high credit ratings are classified as Specified Investment. 
These funds are instant access investment. There is possibility 
that part of the investment may be exposed to counterparties the 
Council would not approve normally or invest directly. The 
counterparty risk is mitigated by that – 

• The Fund Managers diversify investment in a range of 
counterparties; 

• The Funds are instant access; 

• The Council only invests in funds rated AAA; 

• MHCLG Investment Guidance classifying such funds as 
Specified Investment. 

 

£5m per fund,  

e Enhanced Money Market Funds  
These are similar to normal money market funds but operate on 
a variable rate basis. The selection criteria will be on the same 
basis as the pooled investment vehicles with only funds rated 

£5m per fund, 

140



AAA by Standard and Poor’s, Moody’s or Fitch rating agencies 
being used. 
 
In addition to this only EMMF’s with a credit score of 1.25 and 
above will be used. 
 

f Ultra Short Dated Bond Funds 
These are similar to normal money market funds but operate on 
a variable rate basis. The selection criteria will be on the same 
basis as the pooled investment vehicles with only funds with a 
credit score of 1.25 and rated AAA by Standard and Poor’s, 
Moody’s or Fitch rating agencies being used. 

£5m per fund 

g Corporate Bond Funds £5m per fund 

 
Non-Specified Investments – Are any other type of investment (i.e. not defined as 
Specified above).  The identification and rationale supporting the selection of these other 
investments and the maximum limits to be applied are set out below.  Non specified 
investments would include any sterling investments with: 
 
Amounts invested with any one corporate group shall not exceed £5m (with the exception 
of Councils own bank). 
 
Amounts invested in non-specified fixed term investments would normally not exceed 35% 
of the total Invested. The Section 151 or Deputy Section 151 has the discretion if required 
to exceed this, and the limits detailed below, should the rate of return on Investment be 
beneficial to the council. Any decision will be based on taking into account current and future 
market conditions as well as counterparty strength and rating. If these circumstances are 
required this will be reported back to the Governance and Audit Committee through the 
annual reporting cycle. 
 
The table below is not an exhaustive list of all non-specified investments; further options 
are identified in the narrative section within the strategy. 
 
Table B – Non Specified Investments  
 

 Non Specified Investment Category Limit  

a.  Any institutions meeting the criteria set out for 
Specified Investments, with a maturity of greater than 
1 year following the suggested duration on the list up to 
a maximum of 5 years. 

(including forward deals in excess of one year from 
inception to repayment).  

£4m maximum of  

3-years  

per institution  

b.  Councils Bank – Should it fail to meet the basic credit 
criteria, monies will be restricted to instant access and 
will be minimised as far as is possible.  

 

£7m  

 

c.  Top 10 building societies, by asset value – The 
operation of some building societies does not require a 
credit rating, although in every other respect the security 
would match similarly sized societies with ratings.  

£2m maximum of  

3-years  

per institution. 

141



The Council may use such building societies that all 
placed within the top 10 by asset value.  

 

£10m for all top 10 
building societies 

d.  UK Local Authorities, Parish Council or Community 
Council  

 £5m per institution 

e.  Property funds The use of these instruments can be 
deemed capital expenditure, and as such will be an 
application (spending) of capital resources.  This 
Authority will seek guidance on the status of any fund it 
may consider using.  

£5m per fund 

No maximum 
duration period. 

 
Note: This Authority will seek further advice on the appropriateness and associated risks 
with investments in these categories.  
 
Maximum limit per institution – The maximum limit for both specified and non-specified 
investments is a total of £15m per corporate group with a higher limit of £18m at the 
discretion of the Section 151 Officer (or deputy) where an institution is considered to be of 
a higher credit quality. 
 
The monitoring of investment counterparties – The credit rating of counterparties will be 
monitored regularly.  The Council receives credit rating information (changes, rating 
watches and rating outlooks) from Link Group as and when ratings change, and 
counterparties are checked promptly.  On occasion ratings may be downgraded when an 
investment has already been made.  The criteria used are such that a minor downgrading 
should not affect the full receipt of the principle and interest.  Any counterparty failing to 
meet the criteria will be removed from the list immediately by the Section 151 Officer (or 
Deputy), and if required new counterparties which meet the criteria will be added to the list.  
 
Ethical Investment Statement – The Council has approved the following ethical 
investment statement that will apply to all cash investments made by, or on behalf of the 
council 
 
“The Council, in making investments through its treasury management function fully 
supports the ethos of socially responsible investments”. 
 
Local Authority Controlled Company – LACC.  
The Council has the ability to make loans to a Local Authority Controlled Company. 
The criteria for a Loan being made with a LACC will be that there is a clear business plan 
that demonstrates the affordability of the investment for the LACC.   
 
Registered Social Landlords (RSL’s) 

• This scheme would lend amounts up to £5m per investment to Registered Social 
Landlords for the purpose of providing housing within the District.  
 

• Repayment terms of up to 10 years would be offered. 
 

• Can be deemed as a service investment as opposed to a Treasury Investment.  
 

142



• Individual Housing Associations do not have credit ratings therefore it is proposed 
that we use our external treasury advisers to undertake due diligence checks to 
assess borrowers’ ability to make good the repayment of the loan.  

 

• Loans would be secured by means of a legal charge over the borrowers assets. 
Related legal costs and loan set up fees would be charged to the borrower. 

 

• Interest rates charged would be set at PWLB/market rates available at the time the 
loan is agreed.  This will provide an investment return and ensure that no gratuitous 
benefit is included which would have soft loan or state aid implications. 

 

• For accounting purposes loans would be treated as capital expenditure and financed 
from internal borrowing. This will increase the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 
by the amount of the loan and then this will be written down upon repayment of the 
principal. 
 

• This approach means that there is no requirement to make a Minimum Revenue 
Provision (MRP) contribution, depending on the circumstances 
 

• Any activity of this type would only take place after detailed due diligence work be 
been undertaken. 

 
Use of External Fund Managers – The Council is not restricted to placing funds with cash 
managers, and will manage funds in house, use fund managers, or brokers if it is 
appropriate to do so. 
 
The fund managers will use both specified and non-specified investment categories and are 
contractually committed to keep to the Council’s investment strategy.  Currently the Council 
has an agreement with King & Shaxson, Tradition UK, Imperial Treasury and Sterling 
International.  The fund managers are required to adhere to the following: 
 

• All investments restricted to sterling denominated instruments; 

• Amounts invested with any one institution or Corporate Group should not exceed 
the limits specified in Table A and Table B. 

• Portfolio management is measured against the return provided by the 3-month 
sterling LIBID, or in accordance with the measures specified in the contract. 

 
The performance of investment managed by Fund Managers is reviewed at least quarterly 
by the Section 151 or Deputy Section 151 Officer. 
 
 

143



This page is intentionally left blank



Governance and Audit Committee Work Plan 2020-21 
 

Item Current Issues/Status Meeting Date Outcome Sought 

Certification of the 2019/20 
Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim 
 

The Committee are updated annually on any 
significant payments or errors to report from 
the Housing Benefit Subsidy Claim. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

18 March 2021 

To note the update 

External Audit Plan 
 

Overview of the planned scope and timing of 
the statutory audit of the final accounts and 
the Value for Money work in respect of the 
financial year 2020/21. 
 

To consider accepting the External Audit Plan. 

Internal Audit Progress Report Update from the Council’s Internal Auditors. 
 

To review and note the contents of the report. 

Internal Audit Follow Up Report 
– Housing Compliance 

Report to follow up progress made to 
implement any previously agreed 
management actions. 

To review and note the contents of the report. 

Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 Draft internal audit plan for 2021/22. To review and consider approving the Internal 
Audit Plan for 2021/22. 

Statement of Accounting 
Policies 
 

Annual report prior to the preparation of the 
Statement of Accounts to ensure that the 
policies are up to date and in line with the 
CIPFA Code of Practice. 
 

To consider approving the Statement of 
Accounting Policies. 
 

    

To be Scheduled in the new municipal year 

Internal Audit Annual Report 
 

Annual report on the audit work undertaken 
during the 2020/21 period. 
 

May/June 2021 (TBC) To review and note the contents of the report.  

Risk Management Framework 
2021-23  

Report presenting the Risk Management 
Framework.  
 

To be confirmed To review and consider approving the Risk 
Management Framework 2021-23 

Planning Service External 
Review 

Outcomes of the external review of the 
Planning Service commissioned by South 
Kesteven District Council. 

To be confirmed To receive an update on progress against the 
targets in the action plan (following review by 
Planning Committee Members). 

Counter Fraud Strategy  

 

A review of the Council’s counter fraud 
arrangements on a biennial basis. 

To be confirmed To approve the Counter Fraud Strategy. 

 

145

A
genda Item

 12



Governance and Audit Committee Work Plan 2020-21 
 

Item Current Issues/Status Meeting Date Outcome Sought 

Considered as needed 

External Audit Ad hoc reporting   
 
 
 
As required 

 

Code of Corporate Governance 

Regulatory policies e.g. 
Contract and Procurement 
Procedure Rules, Code of 
Conduct 

Financial Regulations 
 

Treasury Management Strategy 
 

 

146


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 19 November 2020
	Minutes

	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 30 November 2020
	Minutes

	5 Updates from previous meetings
	6 Internal Audit Progress Report
	7 Internal Audit Follow-up Report
	8 Update on Internal Audit Follow-up 1 Report
	Appendix A - Follow Up Part 1 - Update on implementation of actions

	9 Indicative Internal Audit Plan 2021-22
	Appendix A Indicative Internal Audit Plan 21.22

	10 Strategic Risk Register
	Appendix A - Strategic Risk Register

	11 Treasury Management Strategy 2021-22
	TM Strategy 2021-22 - draft

	12 Work Programme



